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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao

(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)
Mr. XU Da
Mr. MA Baofeng
Ms. WANG Jianfei

(Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)
Mr. WENG Li (Resigned on 8 April 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairperson)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. XING Zhiying

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Chairperson)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. XING Zhiying

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Chairperson)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. XING Zhiying

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208

Level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District
Guangzhou City, The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 1303, 13th Floor, MassMutual Tower
No. 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th F1., Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road

P0O.Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110,

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
905 Silvercord, Tower 2, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Minsheng Bank Corp., Ltd
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd

STOCK CODE
00866

WEBSITE

http://www.ginfagroup.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER

FERFEELEME
FR R & N
BEREEIMNERS 5
REEBRES
221822015 2208%

BRITEERME

EBEHE LITE385R
EFEBAE13E1303F

FTERDBFETE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th F1., Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road

P.0. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BERODBFEETIRE

HEESFERBRAR
A

RE3BE3385R
ERZ 5 ES2H
3313301-04F

23 Ll
RESHEGHMNEHHMERAF
BEANBERD A ER B0
L E2EI05E

FEFREIT
FERAERITERAA
PR T EEIT
HERITIRDBR AR
FERITRHOER DA
BERIRTTIRMDBR AR

RAD LR
00866
vk

http://www.qginfagroup.com

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MRRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity

AEBERBERBEMBFEENES

BE BENEDH

for the last five financial years is set out below: E=R /I
RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1% —T-mEF —F-=F it St It S
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR ANRETT ANRETT ANRETT ARETT
(Note) (Note) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(HfE) (i) (15 =31) (&E5)) (15 %51)
Turnover L 1,414,524 6,488,279 10,830,133 11,085,285 9,971,106
Gross (loss)/profit (£B)/£H (706,918) (190,400) 1,063,016 1,518,379 1,088,408
Results from operating activities ,ﬁ%%iﬁb% (7,689,352) (641,619) 524,902 924,486 925,417
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEH (B1B)/ 5H (8,037,702) 1, 77 656) (14,605) 452,268 697137
Income tax credit/(expense) FEREYES /(BX) 1,105,525 (114,657) (121,475) (119,118) (99,105)
(Loss)/profit for the year £R ( Eﬁ )/ &l (6,932,177) (1,292,313) (136,080) 333,150 598,032
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FElk (B51),/ 157 -
Equity shareholders of the Company m/‘ﬂﬁééﬁﬁ A (6,011,184) (1,183,426) (247765) 257748 570470
Non-controlling interests HFifiER (920,993) (108,887) 11,685 75,402 27562
(6,932,177) (1,292,313) (136,080) 333,150 598,032
Coal handling and trading volume (000 tonnes) ~ BREERE 52 (TH) 3,952 15,935 24,034 22,093 15,927
Note: The results of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 MsE - %@i: S—AFR_FT—WNF+_A=+—AHIEFEZE
were presented on a combined basis of the Group from both TR EHAER 7 IHERE &E?ﬂlt%« SR HED
continuing and discontinued operations. EIJ °
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B E
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RE| ZT2—mF ZT—= —ET——-F ZZT—

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARBETIT ARETT AREBTT ARETT

Total assets BEME 5,310,782 | 14,881,169 18,546,277 18,186,687 13,079,089

Total liabilities BfE#RE (9,940,178)| (12,514,827) (14,855,639) (14,298,021)  (9,824,241)

Total (deficit)/equity (4L / HemiB s (4,629,396)| 2,366,342 3,690,638 3,888,666 3,254,848

Note: P -

1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 1. ARV ZZEZENFZANHRASHEESFMKY - K27
March 2008 and became the holding company of the Group BHAZZTAFEATNABNREER (BRER]) E
with effect from 12 June 2009 upon completion of certain NETEALRETKE AR _ZEZENEASAAT2HE
reorganisation steps as set forth in the prospectus of the BAREBRER AR o

Company dated 19 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”).

In order to improve asset structure, the Company has ARNELEERE  AXQARECR_ZE—F+_ABF
reorganised the trading business of Hong Kong Qinfa BRELEFERAR (I BBERES ) (KEB 2
Trading Limited (“HK Qinfa Trading”), a wholly owned BWNEBAR) NESEXKERAZEALZEREESE
subsidiary of the Group to Hong Kong Qinfa International RAR (REES—ZRE2EMBRR) MNEFBFRY
Trading Limited, another wholly owned subsidiary of the B BEERES5TELYE BEERBLEINEERK
Group, in December 2011. HK Qinfa Trading is dormant B &R -

as at the dispatch date of the annual report. The audited
financial information of HK Qinfa Trading is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E-HEF —ZE—OF

t=A=+—-RA| +ZA=1+—H

UsD’000 usD’000

FERT FET

Revenue KA - -
Gross profit EH - -
Net profit/(loss) before tax B ALEFRE S (EiE) 416 (77)
Total assets BEME 10,534 10,113
Net assets BEFE 10,529 10,113
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“the Directors”) (“the Board”) China
Qinfa Group Limited (“the Qinfa Group” or “the Company”), | hereby
present the annual result of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

In the end of 2015, China’s coal price index decreased by 12.7 or 9.2%
to 125.1 or as compared with the beginning of 2015. The Bohai-Rim
Steam-Coal Price Index of Qinhuangdao decreased from the apex of
RMB860 per ton in October 2011 to RMB370 per ton in the end of 2015,
at the same level as in the end of 2004. Due to factors such as slowing
economic growth, optimisation of industrial structure, change of energy
structure and ecological constraint, growth of demand for coal is
seriously imbalanced in the constantly slowing coal market. The entire
industry is in excess capacity. The profit has substantially decreased,
with a loss of more than 90%.

In the tough period of the coal market, with the constantly falling coal
price, the downstream sector is unable to clear its stock. As a result,
the Group’s business and trade amount of coal also substantially
decreased, with an increased loss. Under the difficult operation
environment, the Group has adopted the following measures:

DISPOSAL OF 60% OF EQUITY HELD IN ZHUHAI
QINFA PORT CO., LTD.

Prior to the disposal, the Group held 60% of equity interest in Zhuhai
Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. In order to improve the Group’s cash position and
lower its gearing ratio, on 26 June 2015, Hong Kong Qinfa Trading
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“the Seller”)
entered into a conditional disposal agreement with Zhuhai Port
Logistics Centre Co., Limited (B8 &1 H LB R A 7)) (“the Buyer”),
pursuant to which the Seller conditionally agreed to sell and the Buyer
conditionally agreed to purchase 60% of equity interest in Zhuhai

Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. for a total cash consideration of RMB350 million. All
conditions of the conditional disposal agreement had been met, and the
disposal was completed in accordance with terms and conditions of the
conditional disposal agreement on 7 August 2015.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT
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COMPLETING EQUITY PLACING, MAINTAINING
LIQUIDITY

On 21 December 2015, in accordance with the placing agreement
between the Company and Sincere Securities Limited, a total of
200,000,000 placing shares have been placed to no less than six
placees at the placing price of HKD0.249 per placing share. The net
proceeds from the placing of approximately HKD47,917,000 will be used
for the Group’s general working capital to maintain the Group’s liquidity.

OPTIMISING ALLOCATION, CONTROLLING COSTS
AND SAVING RESOURCES

In order to ensure the daily operation of the Group under the difficult
business environment, we will (a) continue to optimise the Group’s
organisational structure and asset allocation, and activate bad assets;
(b) increase production quality control over its coal products and reduce
penalty; (c) reduce the staff size and ensure high efficiency; (d) explore
multichannel sales combining traditional industry with “internet+"; and
(e) increase control over cash flow, maintain the current bank balance
and expand means of finance.

In the period when the overall industry is under major reform, the Group
will concentrate its power to exploit at low cost and high profit. It will
overcome market pressure, speed up structural adjustment, enhance
management, increase cost control, optimise sales channels and
improve the business situation. In addition, the Group is also looking for
opportunities to introduce strategic investors to improve asset structure
and develop new business models:

- further research the sales method combining internet and future
exchange platform with the coal industry, and complete the value-
added customer service integrating the coal industrial chain;

- respond the state’s initiative to use clean coal and upgrade the
Company’s industrial structure, pay attention to low calorific coal
projects, and discuss the feasibility of the pithead power plant
project based on its own colliery.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FTEHRES

TERBRERE - RERBM
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRES

Finally, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to the board of directors and all shareholders, management,
employees and business partners who have supported the Group for
years. In 2016, the Group will take dramatic actions to establish a new
business environment and create more value for the investors.

Xu Jihua
Chairman
29 April 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading non-State owned thermal coal supplier in

China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain, including coal
mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending and shipping
transportation business. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group continued to focus on these business activities and expanded its
integrated coal supply chain through upward vertical integration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Disposal of 60% of Equity Interest Held in Zhuhai Qinfa Port
Co., Ltd.

Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. is mainly engaged in operating its own dock
as a coal port. It provides port handling services. Under the impact of
the coal industry, it operates under very difficult business environment.

Prior to the disposal, the Group held 60% of equity interest in Zhuhai
Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. In order to improve the Group’s cash position and
lower its gearing ratio, on 26 June 2015, Hong Kong Qinfa Trading
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“the Seller”)
entered into a conditional disposal agreement with Zhuhai Port
Logistics Centre Co., Limited G&/& &4 0B R A 7)) (“the Buyer”),
pursuant to which the Seller conditionally agreed to sell, and the Buyer
conditionally agreed to purchase, 60% of equity interest in Zhuhai
Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. for a total cash consideration of RMB350 million. All
conditions of the conditional disposal agreement have been met, and
the disposal was completed in accordance with terms and conditions of
the conditional disposal agreement on 7 August 2015, after which the
Company has collected the cash consideration. The Company no longer
holds any equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd.

Completing Equity Placing, Maintaining Liquidity

On 21 December 2015, in accordance with the placing agreement
between the Company and Sincere Securities Limited, a total of
200,000,000 placing shares have been placed to no less than six
placees at the placing price of Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) 0.249 per
placing share. The net proceeds from the placing of approximately
HKD47,917,000 will be used for the Group’s general wording capital to
maintain the Group’s liquidity.

B ER AT

AEBRTEBLNIEER R EER &2
—RB R Rt ERE BERE  RREH &
B T EREMEESRE - BE—F -0
F+A=1THULFE FAEEEREZIZSE
EBEDMEB L EERAIMRAE —BIERR
THIE -

B E OB
HERENRERRER RO T60%RE

WERBEEBAERAAIBZEE RELERKK
BONBEIHHE  RITEQDRKIRS - XRERKRT
X E-ENBAKBENEBRETES -

RHEEZAT - AEEHRBEHREREBBERA A
Z60%HE - RN ESERSRMAR  BEE
EBELE RZT-—RFAAZTRB BH
BERBESHERLDA (REARBZ2ENBR
m)) BEGIKEBYRT LARA BRI LA G
hEWZ - Bt EHVEAGHRELENESA
R EWBIRER BB AR R A60%MHE -
BESRER/ARKIOAET - BIERHLER
AZLZBRAHEERK - HEFECDREA KT
HEWBEZ ERARGER_Z—RF N \ALB%
X e SERTR - AR BWEIRERE - KAFT
BREAEHERERBEH AR QAR RE -

ERBRERE  REREM
R-ZE—RFE+-A=-+—08  RBERQAFTHEE
EREMEZSFERARG YN E RS - 6
200,000,000 R ER M EREEEFREEER
150.249%8 L ([Bx]) BE T T DR NZER
A o BREFIBFTSHIAFREX47,917,0008 L%
REEB—REEED  RESERIIE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

Adjustment in the Group’s management structure

To improve the effectiveness of the decision-making process and
execution, and to adapt to the fast-changing market situations,

the Group has segregated the management of its businesses

into the Northern segment and the Southern segment. It has also
implemented a new vertically-stratified management model. Following
the adjustments of the management structure, the Northern and
Southern segments will be responsible for their own profit and loss,
and responsibilities will be assigned to management staff of different
levels, thereby maximising the incentives and responsibilities of the
employees, as well as the management staff of various levels.

Strengthening internal controls

In view of the fact that signs of inadequate internal controls surfaced
in the Group recently, an internal audit division was established to
enhance the risk management of the Group. By performing internal
inspection and consultation activities, the audit division facilitates the
construction of a comprehensive auditing system for the Group. It will
improve and monitor the effectiveness of the system’s operation on an
on-going basis. The audit division also assists the Board and the audit
committee of the Board to discharge their supervision responsibilities
regarding the internal control functions, for the sake of guaranteeing

the long-term effectiveness of the operation management in the Group.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WEDH

As of 31 December 2015, the Group owned and operated five coalmines W_-_ZE—RAF+_A=+—H "EEETHE
in the PRC. The table sets forth certain information about these coal ENRETEAERE - TRHVEEXSEBENS
mines. TFEL} o
Note Location Ownership Site area Operation status
BitEE ih 2 BRSO [EiE i EERR
(sq. km)
(FHFH)
Huameiao Energy 1,2 Shuozhou 80% 4.3 Under operation
- Xingtao Coal Shanxi BiEmR
FEXHFLR — BEKE LI 78 A M
Huameiao Energy 1,3 Shuozhou 80% 2.4 Under operation
- Fengxi Coal Shanxi g
HEXRER — BAEE L ZE A M
Huameiao Energy 1,4 Shuozhou 80% 2.9 Under operation
- Chongsheng Coal Shanxi EiER
EXRER — SIHE LI 7E A M
Xinglong Coal 1,5,6 Xinzhou 100% 4.0 Under development
B2 R 2 Shanxi FEEH
L Fa T
Hongyuan Coal 1,5,7 Xinzhou 100% 41 Under operation
RIBEREFE Shanxi EiET
LU P T
Tiaro Coal Australia - n.a. Disposed during 2015
M (2014:26.31%) TEA BERZT—RFHE
(ZZF—mF -
26.31%)
Notes: BYAE
(1) The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultant to (1) AEEZT— 5B EXRER A AR ZJORCT A
estimate the total coal reserves and resources as of 31 December 2015 in fEE‘l'E/\‘\E}E\*EﬁEWL:ﬂ =t BEMBRREE
accordance with the JORC Code. KRR ERE
(2) The production capacity for Xingtao coal mine of Huameiao Energy is 1.5 (2) FEXREFEREM R EZEMIRB1,500,0008
million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget (excluding coal f cBIEEBERAR M380,OOO,OQLO (T8
washing plant) of RMB380 million. The construction was commenced in SARE)  —E-—FTARTRER - BE_
October 2011. As of 31 December 2015, the accumulated actual investment §*£¢+:_ﬂ =+—H E%E‘f‘ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ/\%%
was RMB380 million. The mine has started joint trial operation since 30 380,000,0007T ° /:ig: P FRA=ZTHRBH
June 2014, and is now subject to testing and inspection. ERE - BATERFETRR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

(3) The production capacity for Fengxi coal mine of Huameiao Energy is 0.9 (3) EEEE ARG PO IR A 2% AR 48 8900,000M8
million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget of RMB400 F BRI EBEE B ARKL00,000,000T © = F
million. The construction was commenced in September 2011. As of ——FNARTIEZ HE_ZT— ﬁi‘f’ A=
31 December 2015, the accumulated actual investment was RMB397 +—8B 25EKE ﬁé}\ﬁﬁ%w 000,0007T °
million. The construction of Fengxi coal mine and coal washing plant was R-T—mE—A—+—0 B AR
completed on 21 January 2014 and delivered a capacity of 0.9 million 28T - BFRERL900,000WF /£ -
tonnes per annum.

(4) The production capacity for Chongsheng coal mine of Huameiao Energy is (4) EERERSABEAE R IRIEA900,0000
0.9 million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget of RMB391 . BmIgEEE B ARE391,000,000T 0 =&
million. The construction was commenced in September 2011. As of 31 ——FNAMTER -HE— ? fﬁi"f— )5] =
December 2015, the accumulated actual investment was RMB392 million. +—HB 25 8FBEEARK3I9?2, OOO 0007T °
The construction of the coal mine and coal washing plant was completed, PR M e BB T2 098 T+ T A 2= £2900,000
delivering a capacity of 0.9 million tonnes per annum. It has commenced We /& —E-NE-—FB-_+—ADKRE °
operation on 21 January 2014.

(5) The Group completed the establishment of two companies, Xinglong (5) RZZE—=F L¥F KEBKY TEHERER
Coal and Hongyuan Coal, both wholly-owned by Shenchi Shenda Energy TEBRZEMFE N T - %W A A B R =
Investment Co., Ltd. during the first half year of 2013. BEREEER AT ZEHRE -

(6) The production capacity for Xinglong coal mine is 0.9 million tonnes (6) IR A2 R AR A8 A900,000MF F - BIGE
per annum, with a total investment budget of RMB348 million. The JEHE B AR®348,000,000r n —E—Z—F =
construction was commenced in December 2012. As of 31 December ARAIEXR -#HEZE-_T—RF+=-_A=+—8"
2015, the accumulated actual investment was RMB222 million. The mine EHEREEAR mj 222,000,000t © 1B B #&
construction, civil engineering and installation works are in progress. B TERIFAETS -

(7) The production capacity for Hongyuan coal mine is 0.9 million tonnes per (7) Zi=BEERNRERIEA900,0000F F » BILE
annum, with a total investment budget of RMB446 million. The construction BHE B AR®446,000,000 0 —E—=F=H
was commenced in March 2013. As of 31 December 2015, the accumulated HIgXk - #z2-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—H" 2
actual investment was RMB294 million. AEBRKREA E’#}%‘ZEM 000,0007T °

COAL CHARACTERISTICS B RS

Characteristics of the commercial coal produced by the Group’s REERELSEEMEENEERNEZRNT

operating mines are as follows:

Huameiao

Huameiao Huameiao Energy -
Energy - Energy - Chongsheng
Xingtao Coal Fengxi Coal Coal
HEIRER EXRER EXRER

Coal Quality Characteristic REHR — FRE - BAEKE - RARE

Seam HE 4 4 4

Moisture (%) K5 (%) 8.09-10.57% 2.19-2.65% 2.31-3.59%

Ash (%) K5 (%) 15.561-24.27% 20.58-27.53%  23.25-30.74%

Sulfur (%) SHE(%) 0.86-0.92% 0.69-0.88% 0.84-1.80%

Volatile Matter (%) BEDNZE(%) 26.27-28.31%  28.58-27.46%  23.58-25.91%

Energy Content (MJ/kg) BEe OkEE /Tr) 18.24-22.35 17.35-2112 1714-19.35

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWEDN

OPERATING DATA EEHE
Reserves and Resources RERERE

Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao

Energy - Energy - Energy -
Xingtao Fengxi  Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal Total
EXR EXR EXR
R - R - R -
AMEE BEE%E SRR RERE RERE h
Reserves e
Reserves as of HE-Z-RF+-A=t-H
31 December 2015 (Mt) S (REM)
- Proven reserves -HEHE 6313 1719 3010 22.49 3016 163.07
- Probable reserves -HERES 12.26 2743 19.51 9.53 117 69.90
Total reserves as of BE-T-15+ZA=1—H
31 December 2015 (Mt) E@%@ﬁ (5EM) 75.39 44,62 49,61 32.02 31.33 232.97
Resources ﬁ?ﬁ%
Resources as of HE-Z-RF+-A=1—H
31 December 2015 (M) mERE (AEH) 111.94 69.09 7370 45.96 4178 342.47
The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultant to RNEBZIE—FBIYBEBEB QAR IEJIORCS
estimate the total coal reserves and resources as of 31 December 2015 B{FstA T —RHE+ - A =+— A W@ E R
in accordance with JORC Code. ENBEERERE -

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at the THAR FiEEA R EEN 2 FES D

abovementioned mines for the years indicated:-

Year ended 31 December
BE+=A=+-ALEE

2015 2014

= —F-MF

(’000 tonnes) ('000 tonnes)

Raw coal production volume REEE (FHE) (Fm8)

Huameiao Energy - Xingtao Coal EERRAR — HFEE 452 1,313

Huameiao Energy - Fengxi Coal EEXRER - SAEE 545 2,212

Huameiao Energy - Chongsheng Coal EXBRER - =R E 445 1,342

Ruifeng Coal RS - 191

Hongyuan Coal PN EYE S - 172

Total #ET 1,442 5,230

Year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=+—-ALEE

2015 2014

—E-1F —TEF

(’000 tonnes) | (000 tonnes)

Commercial coal production volume BMEREE (Fmg) (Fg)

Huameiao Energy - Xingtao Coal EXHALIR — HfEEE 294+ 854+

Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EEREAER - BEEE 354* 1,438%

Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EFXBEER - SEE 289+ 873+

Ruifeng Coal EEVesS - 191"

Hongyuan Coal NS - 136+

Total Bt 937 3,492
A :  Nowashing process is applied to the coal produced by Ruifeng Coal. n ImREEEENRRIEEITE

+ :  Perthe competent person’s report issued on 30 September 2011 and + BE-ZE—FNA=F+BR-_ZE—=F1

31 May 2013, the volume of commercial coal produced by Huameiao
Energy and Hongyuan Coal is calculated by a yield rate of 65% and
79% of raw coal respectively.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT
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Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses

The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses consist of

the following amounts:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWEDN

BE - BERRAZRER

AEENHE RREFAZEAEBATESRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—RHALEE

2015 2014
—E—-HF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
Materials and consumables YRt M OBRE SR 45,833 66,614
Staff cost B IR 139,185 120,142
Other direct cost Hi HERA 37,453 59,244
Overhead and others B AR & E b 193,776 248,574
Evaluation fee FHE 2,455 16,869
Total st 418,702 511,443
FINANCIAL REVIEW 51 %5 (21 A
. . R AR =
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume BWAREERESE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
Revenue WA 2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBFIT
Coal business IR ZETE 1,220,485 6,292,314
Shipping transportation fiEEs 156,722 157132
Port service income 7B O BRISUA
(reclassified as discontinued operation) (B DEADRILEEER) 37,317 38,833

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Handling and Trading volume HEREGZ 2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—OF

’000 tonnes ‘000 tonnes

F g FHE

Coal Handling and Trading HREERE S 3,952 15,935

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the volume of the Group’s
coal handling and trading recorded a 75.2% decrease as compared with
2014.The monthly average coal selling prices during the year ended 31
December 2015 were in range between RMB206 per tonne and RMB354
per tonne, which were lower than the average selling prices between
RMB263 per tonne and RMB452 per tonne in 2014. The decrease in
coal handling and trading and monthly average coal selling price were
principally because of the slow down in the growth of economics in
China and resulting the sluggish coal demand during 2015, as well

as the decline of international energy prices which aggravated the
adjustment of coal price in China during 2015.

The average coal selling price and the coal handling and trading volume
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2015 are set forth in the
table below:

HE_ZT-—AFt+-_A=+—BItFE BH_-F
—HFRL  AEBNREREERBESERD
752%  c MEBE-_E—hF+-_A=+—HIHF
EANFSAFHIEREEN THWEARK2067T
EEMAREISLT - BR - —UEN T
ARBE263TETMARKAL52TTHFEIERE -
B ERBESUARERAFHEREB THRNE
ZREAE_ZE—RAFPELCEIERNE  BFE
RERKEEBTR - LT HEERERER
TE - B B R E AR o

BE_T-—HAFt-_A=+—HIL=F%@EF
B FEORKHEEBRERREENEHEHT
R

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1T-HLEE

2015 2014 2013

—E-HF | ZTmF T =F

Average selling price (RMB per tonne) FHEE (BHARET) 309 395 445
Average monthly handling and FHEBAKERESE (THE)

trading volume (000 tonnes) 329 1,328 2,003

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced from both overseas

and the PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants,
cement plants and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are
located in the coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal

for use in the combustion processes to produce steam for power and
heat. Cement plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production
process. The following table sets forth information regarding the Group’s
coal sales by industry segment during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014:

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

A5 2 5 50 R o B B PO T SRR MO B AR
ERAEHETREN  ARBMARBEIRSE
F - AEERFS BN ELIHE - BER
SRR RARRBBRR - UELZSAREER
B TACRBUEEBIR HF BYOR AR -
TRUSIFEEAREE "2 —FEFR T —N4F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WEDH

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T-HLEE

2015 2014

—E-AF —T—F
Percentage of Percentage of
Net sales Net sales Net sales Net sales
HBHE TR G HESHE F R
SHEFHE HWEL HHEFRR Col=ERz)=d
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
ARBT R (%) ARBFT (%)
Power plants EE R 273,611 22.4 1,152,187 18.3
Coal traders BXE 5 502,924 41.2 1,844,004 29.3
Cement plants and others* KB M E fth* 443,950 36.4 3,296,123 52.4
Total st 1,220,485 100.0 6,292,314 100.0

*  Others mainly represented large State-owned coal suppliers.

The segment turnover for shipping transportation from external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB156.7

million as compared with RMB157.1 million for the same period in 2014.

The freight rates and the number of chartering vessels to external
customers remain stable in 2015.

The Group disposed of its equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co.,
Limited on 7 August 2015. After that Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Limited
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The Group’s port business
has discontinued and the revenue and result of port business have not
been recognised in the Group’s revenue and result since then.

* HEREARRERRMER

HE - ZT-—AF+-_A=1+—BIEERXAH
NBEFPFHAOMEER D BEEEAARE
156,700,0007C * M — T —MMEFH A AR
157,100,0007T ° E& R [MIMN PR P MM
BR - —RFREFETE -

AEBR-_ZE-RAFN\ALAHEERKERHE
BHEARDRZBAE - IR IWEREABHAR
RETBAARRMBAR - AEBENEQER
ERIEEE  BOERBH RS MEELERTER
AR B e MR B P RERR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

Cost of sales SHER A

Cost of sales of the Group in 2015 amounted to RMB2,053.9 million, AEBR _ZT—HAFHNHEHEXRAEARE

representing a decrease of 69.1% compared with RMB6,652.7 million 2,053,900,000c " & — & — M F A B ¥

in 2014.The decrease was due to the fall in coal trading and handling 6,652,700,000 T8 2°69.1% ° $§ERK AN ™ &%+

volume during the year of 2015. EZHRERECERBESEN S —RAF KM
ﬁ o

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business segment:  FNR&F|ERES D ILAHER KX :

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2015 2014

—F-1fF —F-mF

RMB million RMB million

AREEER | ARKBEEBT

Cost of coal purchased AN PR B AR AR 1,322.8 5,735.8

Cost of coal transportation* B R B B Y R AR+ 66.7 211.5

Cost of self-produced coal EV=F597d: )% 445.4 523.6

Materials, fuel, power FRE - BRE S B 45.8 104.2

Staff costs B TR 139.2 1201

Transportation B 2.8 2.9

Depreciation and amortisation HTE R 145.5 146.3

Others Ht 1124 150.1

Other costs E MR 491 457

Total cost of sales of coal business segment FEIRZETS D BB R B S E A AR 1,884.0 6,516.6
*  Cost of coal transportation refers to the transportation cost before * o BRERKAES T HEATAE B -

elimination on consolidation.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWEDN

The Group purchases coal from both overseas and the PRC market. The ~ AKN&EE G /F5N N H NTHISEREREK - T&RE

following table sets forth information regarding the Group’s origins of JIBEBRAAEER —_E—AF K T —NFHEE
coal based on sales volume and net sales in 2015 and 2014: HERHEFEI A IERIRZER ¢

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2015 2014

—E-hF —E—F
Sales volume Net sales | Sales volume Net sales
tHe HERE HE SHE HEE
’000 tonnes RMB’000 ’000 tonnes RMB’000
Origins of coal R 5% R F g ARETR F1iE ARETT
China 2] 3,944 1,216,981 14,735 5,751,675
Indonesia E1fe 1 384 625 260,122
South Africa [EZE: 4 2,031 4 1,604
Australia M 1 240 376 179,776
Canada mex 1 726 153 75,734
Others EAh 1 123 42 23,403
Total #az 3,952 1,220,485 15,935 6,292,314

The Group keeps expanding the network of suppliers to ensure a supply  ANEFEEREHEFER @ UEEREAMEE
of coal with reliable and stable quantity and quality. =ENETHENERME -

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its key NEFEHETFEHINGH NE R ERG RS
overseas and PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed business TETAEEBREZE  BHEXKZHZSHERER D

relationships with the majority of them over a period of not less than —ENEBTRBEIER ESAEERNETAER
three years. This enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality {88 #y& ik L FE -
coal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

Gross Loss

The Group’s gross loss was RMB676.7 million during the year ended

31 December 2015 as compared with RMB203.3 million during the
same period in 2014.The Group recorded gross loss in 2015 principally
because of the extended downturn of coal market in China and the
sharp decrease in average selling prices of thermal coal price since the
beginning of 2015, which was significantly higher than the reduction in
cost of material and other costs of production.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s other income,
gains and losses amounted to RMB17.4 million, as compared with
-RMB46.8 million in the same period in 2014. The increase in other
income, gains and losses in 2015 was mainly due to the absence of
the one-off loss arising from the loss on disposal of Ruifeng Coal of
RMB162.6 million in 2014.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses decreased by 65.2% to RMB30.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, compared by the RMB88.4 million in the
same period in 2014. The decrease was in line with the decrease in coal
handling and trading volume in 2015.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s administrative
expenses amounted to RMB208.3 million, representing a decrease of
10.8% compared by the RMB233.4 million in the same period in 2014.
The decrease was mainly due to the fact that the Group has launched a
series of cost saving controls during the year to lower the administrative
expenses.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

EE
BE-_Z-—hFt+-_A=1+—BILtEE K&£H
HEE A ARK676,700,0007T ° M_Z— WA
HRRI & A R #203,300,0007T  REBNR T —
REHSEE  TEARE T RFEFYEH
BT SFET BRI NE L FHEEBART
B - RSP R R E A A EE K AN KR o

Bl - REREE
BHE_Z—AFt+t-_A=1+—RBILFEE B_-FT
— P REE AR¥46,800,0007CH8E, @ ANEH
RE MU A - s K EE A AR17,400,000
TC o HALWA - W kBB -T—AFENEE
TR ESES - T NFHERREERES
Z—RMEEE ARE162,600,0007THTER ©

DEHB

7 iR B = T — P04 A H) A R #88,400,0007T
o B 2% EEHE—TE—RAF+_A=+
—BIEFE/ARE30,800,0007T @ KigE -
—hFEHREERIEEE TR -

THEX
HE-_ZT—AF+_-_A=+—BIFE " &
SENTHRAX A AR®208,300,0007T
== —pUF[F A A R#233,400,0007T L8R
WA T10.8%  HARAEERAEBEREARE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s other expenses
amounted to RMB6,760.4 million, which mainly included impairment
losses recognised in respect of (i) property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB3,067.5 million; (ii) coal mining rights amounted to
RMB2,678.4 million; (iii) interests in associates amounted to RMB70.7
million; (iv) trade receivables amounted to RMB502.5 million; and (v)
prepayments and other receivables amounted to RMB394.9 million.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2015 amounted to RMB368.0 million,
representing a decrease of RMB148.1 million or 28.7% from RMB516.1
million in 2014.

Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2015 was RMB6,011.2 million as compared with
RMB1,183.4 million in the same period in 2014. The increase in loss was
principally due to the non-cash loss arising from the impairment losses,
with an aggregate amount of RMB6,714.0 million recorded in other
expenses.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and strives
to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group funds its business
operations and general working capital by internally generated financial
resources and bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group recorded net current liabilities

of RMB6,229.0 million. The Group has taken initiative to enhance the
financial flexibility by diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium
term loans to replace short term loans. The Group is currently in the
process of negotiating with certain banks in the PRC to raise new
medium to long term interest-bearing bank borrowings.

B WEDH

Hapx
BHE-_Z-—AF+-A=1+—BILtFE  &x&H
I H B A A R%6,760,400,0007T * T E
BREBUTSERRARESE (VDX BE

& AR ¥3,067,500,0007T (i) iR SR A AE
AR#2,678,400,0007T ; (iii)AABE & A Rl MM e
AER#70,700,0007T ; (VEKE ZERAREK
502,500,0007T ; K (v)TEF BR 1 & H At B Uk BR 31
AR #394,900,0007T °

BT RR AR R
AEBR_ZE—HAFNPBRAFEEA
R #£368,000,000c 8 - T — M HF AR
516,100,0007C B 4 7 AR #148,100,0007T 3¢
28.7% o

EZEEAEEER
HE-_Z—RAF+Z_A=+—HIEFE &R
AERIEE AB(NEE A ARKSE,011,200,000
TT MEEHE AR S —NFERPNELER
A ARE1,183,400,0007T ° EBHEEMNNEER
A& REFBE (B AR6,714,000,0007T 5
AEMFAE) BEER S EIBATE ©

RBEE - BBERRERRSE

7R 52 B BR A R 2 1O B 7S i IR ORI BN M R AR R
E BB - ANEEBBANEE LM B EIR K
RITEERNEXT RS L REEES -

BE-Z-AF+-A=1t—H AKEHSE
mE A EF A RY6,229,000,0007T © AEME
ERIUER - BRZTCRAEREAMERE
- WESTHEFAMKEHER - ARE T
BETERRITETER - UEENNHREAR
TRrEfEE -
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MANAGEM ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RE DT

On 30 November 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”) with Sincere Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) pursuant to which the Placing Agent has agreed to place to
independent placees for up to 200,000,000 new shares in the capital

at the Company (the “Shares”) at a price of HKD0.249 per placing
share, for and on behalf of the Company. The net proceeds from the
placing amounted to HK$47.9 million. The Directors believe that the
subscription can provide an opportunity to broaden the shareholder
base and strengthen the capital base and financial position of the
Company for the Group’s future business developments. The conditions
of Placing Agreement have been fulfilled and completion of the placing
took place on 21 December 2015. As a result of the placing, the number
of Shares increased from 2,078,413,985 Shares (31 December 2014) to
2,278,413,985 Shares (31 December 2015).

As of 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to RMB20.7 million (as at 31 December 2014: RMB53.9
million), representing a decrease of 61.6%. The decrease in cash and
cash equivalents was mainly due to the repayment of short term
borrowings.

As of 31 December 2015, the total bank and other borrowings of the
Group were RMB5,905.3 million (as at 31 December 2014: RMB7,651.9
million), RMB3,303.0 million of which were repayable within one year
(as at 31 December 2014: RMB4,734.1 million) and carried interest at
market rates ranging from 4.35% to 12.96% (31 December 2014: 2.09%
t0 9.00%) per annum.

Non-current bank loans as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014 carried at variable and fixed interest rates.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had total banking facilities of
RMB6,313.1 million (as of 31 December 2014: RMB8,314.6 million),
of which RMB5,975.0 million (as at 31 December 2014: RMB6,842.6
million) were utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, except
amount of RMB8.9 million in United States dollars (“USD”) and amount
of RMBO.6 million in HKD, were held in RMB. All the Group’s bank and
other borrowings made in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as bank and other borrowings netted off
sum of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted deposits
divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
109.9% (as of 31 December 2014:47.7%). The increase in gearing ratio
was mainly due to decrease of total assets as a result of impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights, interests in
associates, trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in RMB
and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while overseas purchases are
usually denominated in USD. The Group’s subsidiaries usually receive
revenue in RMB. Hence, the Directors do not consider that the Group
faces significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s assets in an aggregate amount
of RMB3,073.7 million (as at 31 December 2014: RMB9,782.4 million)
in forms of property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights, lease
prepayments, inventories, trade and bill receivables and bank deposits
were pledged to banks for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for certain matters disclosed in the note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDAN

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(i)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27
December 2015, the Company has entered into the debt to equity
agreement dated 25 December 2015 (the “Agreement”) in relation
to the capitalisation of RMB48,822,000 (the “Loan”) with Link
Beautiful Limited (the “Creditor”) pursuant to which the Creditor
requested the full and final settlement of the Loan by capitalising
the Loan. On 25 December 2015, the Group consolidated certain
loans due to China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd by its subsidiaries
of RMB141,533,000 (the “Minsheng Loan”) and novated the
Minsheng Loan from the subsidiaries of the Company to the
Company as the principal debtor. China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd, on the same date, signed a deed to assign the Minsheng Loan,
including the Loan, to the Creditor. Subsequent to year end, the
condition of the Agreement has been fulfilled and completion of
the Agreement took place on 6 January 2016, whereby a total of
215,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued to the Creditor at
the subscription price of approximately HKD0.272 per Share.

On 25 April 2016, the Group entered into a share sale and purchase
agreement with Bo Hai Investment Limited, a related company
wholly owned by Mr. Xu, in relation to the disposal of entire equity
interest in Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Proposed Disposal”). The Proposed Disposal is
yet to complete and is subject to approval of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and independent shareholders and certain
conditions precedent as stated in the share sale and purchase
agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Except for the disposal of the equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port

Co., Limited on 7 August 2015 as disclosed in the note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements, there was no material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2015.
Additional information is set forth in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationships with customers, suppliers and other business partners
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior management
has kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with them when appropriate. Except for certain
outstanding litigations as disclosed in note 41(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its customers, suppliers and other business
partners during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2015, the Group employed 1,557 employees. The
Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to motivate its
staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the
basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to staff members with
outstanding performance.

Members of the Group established in the PRC are also subject to
social insurance contribution plans organised by the PRC government.
In accordance with the relevant national and local labour and social
welfare laws and regulations, members of the Group established in the
PRC are required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly social
insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance. Members of
the Group incorporated in Hong Kong have participated in mandatory
provident fund scheme, if applicable, in accordance with the applicable
Hong Kong laws and regulations.

In addition, a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme
were adopted in June 2009 to retain staff members who have made
contribution to the success of the Group. As at 31 December 2015,
the total number of share options outstanding was 154,393,369. The
Directors believe that the compensation packages offered by the
Group to its staff members are competitive in comparing with market
standards and practices.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In the tough period of the coal market, with the constantly falling coal
price, the downstream sector is unable to clear its stock. As a result,
the Group’s business and trade amount of coal also substantially
decreased, with an increased loss. Under the difficult operation
environment, the Group has adopted the following measures:

Optimising Allocation, Controlling Costs and Saving Resources

In order to ensure the daily operation of the Group under the difficult
business environment, we will (a) continue to optimise the Group’s
organisational structure and asset allocation, and activate bad assets;
(b) increase production quality control over its coal products and reduce
penalty; (c) reduce the staff size and ensure high efficiency; (d) explore
multichannel sales combining traditional industry with “internet+”; and
(e) increase control over cash flow, maintain the current bank balance
and expand means of finance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Looking forward to the coming year, under the state policy of “cut
excessive industrial capacity”, the coal market is hard to recover from
the difficult situation in short period as China’s economic development
isnow in a new normal of structural adjustment. However, the
Thirteenth Five Year Plan will continue to apply to regional development
strategies, mainly “the Belt and the Road”, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
integration, and Yangtze River Economic Zone. In 2016, China will invest
RMB500 billion to launch a series of major infrastructure projects to
stimulate domestic demand for steel and cement. Coal will remain

as the main fuel used in China within a short period. Meanwhile,
eliminating backward capacity is beneficial for the long-term steady
development of the coal industry.

In the period when the overall industry is under major reform, China
Qinfa will concentrate its power to exploit at low cost and high profit.
It will overcome market pressure, speed up structural adjustment,
enhance management, increase cost control, optimise sales channels
and improve the business situation. In addition, the Group is also
looking for opportunities to introduce strategic investors to improve
asset structure and develop new business models:

- further research the sales method combing internet and future
exchange platform with the coal industry, and complete the value-
added customer service integrating the coal industrial chain;

- respond the state’s initiative to use clean coal and upgrade the
Company’s industrial structure, pay attention to low calorific coal
projects, and discuss the feasibility of the pithead power plant
project based on its own colliery.

Last but not least, the management would like to take this opportunity
to express their heartfelt gratitude to the Board, and our shareholders,
all staff members and business partners for supporting the
development of the Group over the years. The management believes that
the high quality assets of the Group will be able to turn in considerable
returns for the Group and its shareholders when the Group emerges

out of this difficult period. In 2016, all staff members of the Group will
work as one team, remain trustworthy and prudent, be willing to bear
responsibilities and explore new frontiers so that maximum value can
be delivered to our investors.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business involving
coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal in
the PRC and shipping transportation. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 20 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 27 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 76 to 77 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30(b) to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year under review are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 80 and 81 and note 43 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share
premium account are distributable to Shareholders, subject to the
condition that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December
2015, the Company did not have any distributable reserves (2014:
RMB249,350,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years ended

31 December 2015 and the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2011,2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 are set out on page 4 to 5 of
this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2015 and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao

(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)
Mr.XU Da
Mr. MA Baofeng
Ms. WANG Jianfei

(Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)
Mr. WENG Li (Resigned on 8 April 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying
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Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting

of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken
into account in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, Mr. XU
Jihua, Ms. WANG Jianfei and Mr. MA Baofeng will retire by rotation in
accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles. All retiring Directors, being
eligible, would offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus), the
details of which are set forth in the paragraphs under “Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
and any of its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 53 to 57 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap.571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Interests in the Company
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Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares of the Company (%)
HARATEBITRE
RDEE ZHRBE D (%)

Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
EEnA EatE Hr 28] He RE
Mr. XU Jihua* Corporate 1,168,229,610 Nil 51.27 Nil

(Note 1)

REERE NC] (B¥EE1) i i
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 4.39 Nil
TR EREAA i Eas
Mr. XU Da Beneficial Owner 145,135,251 Nil 6.37 Nil
TRESE BEmEEA i i
Mr. MA Baofeng Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 54,164,457 Nil 2.38 Nil
HRIESEE EmlEa A (f2) i i
Mr. BAI Tao Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 Nil 219 Nil
A#EkLE EmMmAA i d
Mr. HUANG Guosheng Beneficial owner (Note 3) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
mERS L BB A (FI3) i i
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 4) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
&yt EmEA A (FizEs) i i
Mr. XING Zhiying Beneficial owner (Note 5) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
MEREE BB A (FI:E5) i i
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Notes:

1. These Shares include 1,036,000,000 Shares and 118,000,000 Shares
to be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the perpetual
subordinated convertible securities (“PSCS”) are held directly by
Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”) which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Xu Jihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is deemed to have
interests in the Shares so held by Fortune Pearl. The remaining Shares
are held directly by Mr. Xu.

2. The beneficial interest represents 1,200,000 Shares and 2,964,457
Shares that may be issued pursuant to the full exercise of the options
granted to Mr. MA under the Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009
and 17 January 2012 respectively.

3. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. HUANG
Guosheng under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

4. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

5. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. XING Zhiying

under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

*  Mr.XUJihua, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the
Board.

2. Interests in associated corporations
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or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (a) to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Approximate percentage of
issued share capital of the

Number of shares Company (%)
ROEE HAEABEBRITRAZBAE D (%)

Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholder positions positions positions positions
RERHEE Ha )29} iy R
Fortune Pearl (Note 1) 1,154,000,000 Nil 50.65 Nil
v (Misx1) i i
Link Beautiful Limited 215,000,000 Nil 9.44 Nil
e RERR LA i i
Note: B 5T -

1. The 1,154,000,000 Shares include the interests in Shares by virtue of the
118,000,000 Shares to be allotted and issued to Fortune Pearl upon full
conversion of the PSCS. Fortune Pearl is wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Jihua, a
Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PLACING OF SHARES

On 30 November 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”) with Sincere Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) pursuant to which the Placing Agent has agreed to place to
independent placees for up to 200,000,000 new shares in the capital

at the Company (the “Shares”) at a price of HKD0.249 per placing
share, for and on behalf of the Company. The net proceeds from the
placing amounted to HK$47.9 million. The Directors believe that the
subscription can provide an opportunity to broaden the shareholder
base and strengthen the capital base and financial position of the
Company for the Group’s future business developments. The conditions
of Placing Agreement have been fulfilled and completion of the placing
took place on 21 December 2015. As a result of the placing, the number
of Shares increased from 2,078,413,985 Shares (31 December 2014) to
2,278,413,985 Shares (31 December 2015).
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than in pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Share Option Scheme detailed in note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2015 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount of
HK$194,700,000 as at 31 December 2015, which was convertible
into ordinary Shares in the Company at the initial Conversion Price
of HK$1.65 per conversion share (subject to adjustments). Assuming
the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to the PSCS at
the initial Conversion Price, a total of 118,000,000 conversion shares
will be issued. The PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl International
Limited. The sole ultimate beneficial owner of the Fortune Pearl
International Limited is Mr. Xu, who is a Director of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s companies
shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her

in the execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto
pursuant to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31 December
2015 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees is
based on their performance, duties and responsibilities, qualifications
and competence displayed. The Group has adopted a performance-
based rewarding system to motivate its employees and such system
is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-
end bonuses will be offered to those staff members with outstanding
performance.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

EEBARDHES ZEF

Bir e M MRS AR BB R AREE
w%h%ﬁ%&%h%ﬁ%%'$ AR EAE
MBARERNSE—_E—AF+=-A=1+—8
IR AR AR AR SR8 M%%%Lﬁ%
AR RRSEMEMEERZ BN EBES (B
wBER) MERN  EF - ERBH18EATZF
2 TREEEARBARRES TR - 3
ETEEM L FRER -

KA IR AR IR R T 25

RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—H AQAREES
¥ /3194,700,000% T Al BB B AR A 7] B K
BRI K ARBAIRRBS - I ERER
EREHBERM1.65F T (A THE)  BFKiL
IR R BB BT K AR R AT IR EE 5
e - Bl4 ££118,000,0000% 8 #2 f% 1
TET o REKARGFA IR FE FH BFortune
Pearl International Limited4§% ° Fortune Pearl
Internat|onal LimitedM M — B ERHEB AR
NEIEBREE -

EEFHREMRX

HEREENERT  KREARSREFTHERER
BEEARNASERARESE R BELLHR
TRETRERSIBEEEABOMARAE - UL
g BX ERARES - WFHRIXERE2015
FI2ANBUEFBFERAEHER > ARAHE
BT AR o

P BR
AEBENTFHERREAEBERERE  BE -
ERELFEENENUNLDREREES - BHE
B8 AEBEKRA—EURBAER 28
BHEYEHREZANELETRY BRELRH
I AEEBRRBEZNE IREFR
TE4T ©



Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual experience, performance and
responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by companies of
comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers were as follows:
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None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Disposal of 60% of equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd.

On 26 June 2015, Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) (the “Seller”) entered into a conditional
disposal agreement with Zhuhai Port Logistics Centre Co., Limited (Ek
R F LA AT (the “Buyer”), pursuant to which the Seller
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Buyer conditionally agreed to
purchase, 60% of equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. for a
total cash consideration of RMB350 million. All conditions of the
disposal agreement had been met, and the disposal was completed
in accordance with terms and conditions of the conditional disposal
agreement on 7 August 2015.

The Buyer is a wholly owned subsidiary of Zhuhai Port Holdings Group
Co., Limited (PR/E B 1E AR £ B H R 2 7)) (“Zhuhai Holdings™), which
owned 40% of the equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd as at
the date of the disposal agreement. As such, each of Zhuhai Holdings
and the Buyer was a connected person at subsidiary level of the Group.
Accordingly, the disposal constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Proposed disposal of entire equity interest in Hong Kong Qinfa
International Trading Limited

On 25 April 2016, Qinfa Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Bo
Hai Investment Limited to dispose of the entire shareholding interest
in Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited (the “Proposed
Disposal”). As Bo Hai Investment Limited is a company wholly owned
by Mr. XU Jihua, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,
Bo Hai Investment Limited is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the Proposed Disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Proposed
Disposal is yet to complete and is subject to approval of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and independent shareholders and
certain conditions precedent as stated in the sale and purchase
agreement.

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions
(other than continuing connected transactions that are exempted under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December
2014:
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On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, each member

of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus), and their
respective equity interest holders (which include Mr. XU Jihua, an
executive director and the chairman of the Board, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU
Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being controlling shareholders of

the Company) entered into the Structure Contracts (as defined in the
Prospectus) for a term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics
agreed to pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation of the coal
operation business and the inland shipping transportation business of
the China Qinfa Group, and all economic benefits and risks arising from
the business of the China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Further details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant to the
Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company for all transactions
under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance with the
applicable announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions for the Company
were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business; (ii) in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and
(iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable

to the Group than those available to or from independent third parties.
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Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed that (i)
the transactions carried out during 2015 have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions
carried out during 2015 have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa Logistics;
(iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have been entered into on
the same terms as the existing Structure Contracts and are fair and
reasonable so far as the Group is concerned and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole; and (iv) no dividends or other distributions
have been made by any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity
interest holders.

The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus)
and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus). Having
considered the demand for coal imported from overseas into China
and the expansion of the Group’s overseas coal operation business,
the Directors strategically planned to centralise the management and
operation of the Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets
and determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage and
operate the coal operation business in China through the establishment
of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”), a member of Hong
Kong Qinfa Group and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in February 2008.

However, after verbal consultations with the relevant PRC governmental
authorities at Zhuhai at which the Group operates its coal business, the
Directors understand that the PRC governmental authorities currently
do not grant Coal Operation Certificates to foreign equity controlled
companies as a matter of practice. In addition, according to (i) Article 7
of (The Regulations on the Management of Waterway Transport of the
PRC) promulgated by the State Council on 12 May 1987 and revised

on 27 December 2008 and (ii) (the Guidance of Foreign Investment
(Amended 2007)); and after the verbal consultations with the relevant
PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai, the Directors understand that
the PRC laws and regulations currently prohibit the issue of Waterway
Transportation Licences to foreign equity controlled companies. These
views have been confirmed by the PRC legal advisers of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and operate the
coal operation business in China, the Engagement Agreements and
the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the Prospectus) (collectively the
“Structure Contracts”) were entered into under which all the business
activities of China Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa
Logistics and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Pursuant to the
equity transfer agreements dated 25 October 2010, 15 December 2010
and 17 December 2010, equity interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa Trading
Co., Ltd., Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd.
and Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd have
been transferred to the Group. As of 31 December 2015, Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai Qinfa Trading”) and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping”) remained controlled by the Group under
the Structure Contracts.

Mr. Xu, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement Agreements and the
Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009. Qinfa Logistics is entitled to all
the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping after
deducting all relevant costs and expenses (including taxes) and has
the right to acquire any or all of the equity interests and/or assets of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest possible
amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa Logistics a pledge over the equity
interests in equity holders for the purpose of securing the performance
of the contractual obligations under the Structure Contracts. Any
amendment to the Structure Contracts shall be subject to the approvals
of (i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the purpose of promoting

good corporate governance, the Shareholders in general meeting. No
amendments to the Structure Contracts can be made unless required
under the Listing Rules or approved by Qinfa Logistics in writing in
advance. For details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the
section headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.
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The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial results
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and economic
benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa Logistics. In addition, all the
directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be
nominated by Qinfa Logistics. Through its control over the directors of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is able
to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business, operations
and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
so as to ensure due implementation of the Structure Contracts. The
Structure Contracts also enable Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over
and to acquire the equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time as
permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with an undertaking
from the Controlling Shareholders to provide to Qinfa Logistics all the
consideration received pursuant to any such acquisition. Based on the
Structure Contracts, the Directors consider that, notwithstanding the
lack of equity ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading

and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa Logistics
is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this basis, the financial position and
operating results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are
included in the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the Company’s subsidiaries, and
their financial position and operating results are consolidated in the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements. The revenue and total
asset value subject to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts
amounted to approximately RMB43,090,561 (2014: RMB140,192,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and approximately
RMB68,473,000 (2014: RMB73,183,000) as of 31 December 2015,
respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and provide for
the resolution of disputes through arbitration in accordance with the
arbitration rules of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in force at that time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in
China. Accordingly, the Structure Contracts would be interpreted in
accordance with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved
by arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.
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There are risks involved with the operation of the Group under the
Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the Directors, if the
Structure Contracts are considered to be in breach of any existing or
future PRC laws or regulations, the relevant regulatory authorities would
have broad discretion in dealing with such breach, including:

imposing economic penalties;

discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong Qinfa
Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping;

imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the Structure
Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping may not be able to comply;

requiring the Group to restructure the relevant ownership
structure or operations;

taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could
adversely affect the business of the Group; and

revoking the business licences and/or the licences or certificates
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and/or voiding
the Structure Contracts.

The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the risk and to
ensure proper implementation of the Structure Contracts:

(a)

as part of the internal control measures, major issues arising
from implementation and performance of the Structured
Contracts are reviewed by the board of directors of Qinfa
Logistics on a regular basis which is no less frequent than on a
quarterly basis;

matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at such regular
meetings which is no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
and

the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Hong
Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is no less frequent than
on a monthly basis, to the senior management of Qinfa Logistics
on the compliance and performance conditions under the
Structured Contracts and other related matters.
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The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the contractual
arrangements under the Structure Contracts and/or the circumstances
under which they were adopted, and their impact on the Group. The
Board also confirmed that there is no removal of restrictions that led to
the adoption of the Structured Contracts.

InJanuary 2015, the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (the “MOFCOM”)
published the draft Foreign Investment Law (the “Draft FIL”) under
which a foreign investor may be permitted to invest directly or indirectly
in restricted industries (i.e. without the need to use contractual
arrangements), so long as the foreign investor’s ultimate control
person(s) is/are PRC investors, subject to competent authorities’
approval and certain limitations. The explanatory memorandum
accompanying the Draft FIL proposed three options for dealing with
existing VIE structures. According to these three options, a foreign
investor would only be able to retain its business under contractual
arrangements after the Draft FIL becomes effective if is is in fact
controlled by PRC investors, subject to reporting or verification, or
otherwise with MOFCOM’s prior approval.

Based on the fact that Mr. Xu holds 42.12% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and is hence capable of exerting decisive impact on the
management and decisions of China Qinfa Group through the Structure
Contracts, the PRC legal advisers of the Company advise that Mr. Xu is
likely to be deemed as “ultimate control person” under the Draft FIL and
that the contractual arrangements under the Structure Contracts are
likely to be permitted to continue under the Draft FIL.

Since a number of legislative stages have to be undergone before the
promulgation and implementation of the new Foreign Investment Law,
the Directors are given no reasonably sufficient evidence to believe that
the new Foreign Investment Law will be adopted immediately and/or the
new Foreign Investment Law will be the same content or form with the
Draft FIL and the accompanying notes. The Company will keep a close
eye on the development of legislation and retain external legal advisers
who will advise on the effect and the possible solutions to ensure that
timely reaction and necessary adjustment is made in accordance with
the new Foreign Investment Law, and the relevant rules and regulation
taking effect in the future.
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Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The related party transactions with Qinfa Industry, Mr. XU
and Mr. XU’s close family members as disclosed in note 37(b) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements constituted exempt continuing
connected transaction and exempt connected transaction, respectively,
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and accordingly, are exempted
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The related party transactions as disclosed in note 37(c) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements are not regarded as connected
transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on 31
December 2012 and the Company paid interest of HKD5,841,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015 pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The principal terms of the two
schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
whereby one executive Director and 25 employees of the Group were
granted the rights to subscribe for Shares.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise the
contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the Group and/
or the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are substantially the same as the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i) the exercise price per share;and

(i) the total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share MIBEE X A AMEERERETZIE R EOER
Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted under the SN B REBEBE X AFREREIRETEE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right to do so has been terminated  —#45 T e iF HEENRHE - R EF D2 AR A TH

upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. No share is R ER R T E AR IE o IRIBEE XN AFREER
available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. BT S W PR (D 7] T 31T

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted ~ RAZARIFRER @ RIBEE A AR R ERTHEARET 2
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report: RTEHE R EBEBRENE —FSHEFHNO T -

Number of Share options outstanding

AT RES A
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Exercised Lapsed At of the
Category/Name of 1January during during 31 December Exercise price Company
Participant Date of grant 2015 the year the year 2015 HK$ Exercise period (%)
i ® EART
—E-If —Z-EF ERTREAN
SHEER HE RHAH —B—B RERTE RERXM T=A=+-H THE TEH BRESH
BT (%)
Executive director 12 June 2009
HITES ZEEAERATZAH
Mr. MA Baofeng 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 1.26 12 June 2009 to 0.05
HRERE 11June 2019
—TETNEF
~NAtTZRZE
—E-NE
~AT—H
Employees 12 June 2009 10,800,000 - - 10,800,000 1.26 12 June 2009 to 0.48
== ZEBNFAATZH 11 June 2019
ZEENE
~Et-BE
—T-NEF
A~AT—H
12,000,000 - - 12,000,000 0.53
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Notes:

1.

The exercise price per share is HK$1.26 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from 3 July 2009, being the listing
date of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the option in cash.

Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(@) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the first
anniversary of the Listing Date;

(b) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the second

anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(c) 40% of the total number of the options can be exercised from the
expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing Date.

The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was

determined using the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”.

The significant inputs into the model were:

. risk-free rate of return — 3.029% per annum;

. forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and

- forecastdividend yield - 1.50% per annum.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”, the total
fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e. 12 June 2009)
was HK$7,650,000.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the fair value of
options and is a common choice among various option pricing models for
assessing the fair value of options. The value of the options depends on the
valuation arrived at based on certain subjective assumptions on variables.
Any changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect on the

assessment of the fair value of the options.

45

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

GEX

BREDOITEERER.26ET

BNRBERAMESNBRETSIME NG
RERBHA—E=F (AROVERZMMH LT
HE-ZTAF+AZHRH) c- KAFTWEETE
SHEERME - URESEEISENERE -

FERBEXAMABESAHBRESERTER
BEEAIRA - Al

(a) BEMAMSR—BFZARAITEERER
H30%

(b) B ESERASE BT ERREe
B1030% ; R

(c) BEMAMR-BAFZARAITEERER
H40% ©

RIBER RSB R D NBREN
ARETRA [ —EABREEERLY | BE -

BAZBERNEBEHAES

o ERBPEFHRE - FF3.029%

o TERIMRERIE —56% : &

. TERIRBRER - FF1.50% °

RIE L I —EXBRETCEER | Mg AE  »
REBE (=T AFA+=RH) MERTELN
AR REE N 72 E57,650,0007T ©
[TEABREETERL DAFHEREARE
Mk ELEAEFHEREAAENBERET
BREAFRATANEE - BREEEIANIE

SUHE T BRTEROEE o FEHEHNE
BEDDETETS VNG PR Z-E

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



46

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Exgms

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme which shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Company and to enable the Company
and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the share;
(i) the closing price of the shares on the date of the offer; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to an
employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be determined
by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed ten years from the
date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not specify any minimum
holding period. The acceptance of an offer must be made within 30 days
from the date of offer with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 57,606,631 Shares, representing approximately 2.53% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 29 April 2016.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options (the
“Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the Share Option Scheme to 15 eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share
(which represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392 per Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of HKDO0.10 per Share). The Options are valid for a period of 10 years
from 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee is
entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16 January 20183,
40% of the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16 January 2014,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) inrespect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16 January 2015,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him.

On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options to subscribe
for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme to eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD0.485 per share (which represents
the highest of (i) the closing price of HKDO0.485 per Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKD0.484 per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKD0.10

per Share). The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 30 April
2015 to 29 April 2025. Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted,
1,500,000 were granted to the directors of the Company. The remaining
share options of 156,000,000 were granted to other eligible participants
who are not directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of
the Company, nor an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of
them.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee is
entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(a) inrespect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2016, 40% of

the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April 2017, 30% of
the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) inrespect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April 2018, 30% of
the total number of Options granted to him.
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The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015
under Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the
“Binomial Option Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model
were:

« risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

«  forecast fluctuations in share price — 55.31% and 53.89%
respectively; and

« forecast dividend yield = 2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model’, the
total fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e.

17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively) was approximately
HKD11,642,000 and HKD28,667,000. The “Binomial Option Pricing
Model” is designed to assess the fair value of options and is a common
choice among various option pricing models for assessing the fair value
of options. The value of the options depends on the valuation arrived at
based on certain subjective assumptions on variables. Any changes in
the variables used may cause a substantial effect on the assessment of
the fair value of the options.

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted
under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:
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Number of share options outstanding

FATTREBRES
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise capital of
At1January during during during 31 December price Exercise the Company
Category/Name of participant Date of grant 2015 the year the year the year 2015 HKS$ period (%)
i i HEERE
E-1f E-1f i3 BRTRE
SREEH/#4 RiAH -A-8 RERRL RERGE REREN  TZR=t-H ER R BREDL%)
Executive director
gz
Mr.MA Baofeng 17 January 2012 2,964,457 - - - 2,964,457 150 17/01/2012 to 014
BRisEE ZB-CF-fAttH 16/01/2022
—ATtRE
“5-°F
—At7A
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Number of share options outstanding
HATRBRERA
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise capital of
At 1 January during during during 31 December price Exercise the Company
Category/Name of participant Date of grant 2015 the year the year the year 2015 HKS period (%)
B R EARE
Z%-1% -1 ke BRIRA
SREER /2 RiAH -A-8 REREL RERTRE RERER  TZR=t-B A7 88 BREDL
Independent non-executive directors
BUFiTES
Mr.HUANG Guosheng 30 April 2015 - 500,000 - - 500,000 0485 30/04/2016t0 002
EHBTE “E-n5MmA=+A 29/04/2025
_2-1f
MA=1+RZ
it
BAZTAA
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 201 - 500,000 - - 500,000 0485 30/04/201610 002
HEREE s ils 29/04/2025
mA=tA “T-nf
MA=1+RE
—ECRE
mAZTAA
Mr.XING Zhiying 30 April 2016 - 500,000 - - 500,000 0485 30/04/2016t0 002
plrytes “Z-REMA=TH 29/04/2025
%1k
MA=1+RE
“E-nfF
BAZtAA
Sub-total 2,964,457 1,500,000 - - 4,464,457 0.20
It
Employees 17 January 2012 5,928,912 - - - 5,928,912 150 1701720120 0.26
fE8 ZB-CE-AttA 16/01/2022
“F-CF
-AttAE
I
—At7H
30 April 201 - 156,000,000 - (24,000,000 132,000,000 0485 30/04/201610 579
“Z-RERA=TE 29/04/2025
—3-1f
MA=1+HE
“ECRE
mAZTAA
Sub-total 5928912 156,000,000 - (24,000,000 137928912 6.05
Pt
Total 8,893,369 157500,000 - (24,000,000 142,393,369 6.25
aif
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As at the 31 December 2015, the total number of share options
outstanding is 154,393,369.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately RMB5,905.3 million (2014:
RMB7,651.9 million). Particulars of the bank and other borrowings are
set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the public
as required by the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to compete (either
directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report, save for
Mr. XU Jihua’s legal ownership in the equity interest in members of the
China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus).

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus) and the executive Directors (collectively, the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12
June 2009 in favour of the Company. The Covenantors have provided the
Group with written confirmations that they and their associates (other
than members of the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-
competition throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an

annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed of non-
competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of refusals
provided by the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus)
on their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Covenantors and their
respective close associates did not direct any Business Opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the independent
non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on the decision
made in relation to Business Opportunity.
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EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Details of the events after the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the section headed “Events after the Reporting Period” on page
24 under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this report.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the Company’s
Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject to Hong Kong
stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the purchaser and
seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the consideration or, if
greater, the fair value of the shares being bought/sold or transferred
(rounded up to the nearest HK$’000). In addition, a fixed duty of HK$5.00
is currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from Hong Kong
may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from Cayman Islands
stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in

any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of
subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It
is emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of
shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for, purchase,
holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.
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AUDITORS

KPMG, the preceding auditor, did not seek re-appointment as
the auditor of the Company at the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 30 June 2014. An ordinary resolution was
passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
on 30 June 2014 to appoint Moore Stephens Certified Public
Accountants as the auditors of the Company. On 1 January
2015, Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants practised
in the name of another certified public accountant, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited. Moore Stephens CPA Limited will retire
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,
XuJihua
Chairman

Guangzhou, 29 April 2016
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Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (8 & ), aged 59, is the chairman of the Group and an
executive Director. Mr. XU is principally responsible for the Group’s
overall business strategic development. Mr. XU has more than 20
years of management and operation experience in the logistics and
coal operation industries. In 1996, Mr. XU acquired Qinhuangdao
Development Zone Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., a member of the Group, and
has led the Group to become one of the leading non-state-owned coal
operation companies in China in terms of annual coal trading volume.
Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. XU was a manager in the Trading
Department of Qinhuangdao Goods Exchange Center from 1992 to
1994. During the period from 1989 to 1991, Mr. XU was the deputy head
of Materials Bureau of Haigang District, Qinhuangdao City, the PRC.
Mr. XU did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during the
last three years. Mr. XU was appointed as a Director on 4 March 2008
and was re-designated as an executive Director on 6 May 2008. Mr. XU
is the sole beneficial owner and Director of Fortune Pearl, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Ms. WANG Jianfei (£ &), aged 45, an executive Director. Ms. WANG

is principally responsible for the Group’s overall management and
operation. Ms. WANG is also a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Board. Ms. WANG obtained an
associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles University Foundation
in consortium with Hebei Business College in 1995. Ms. WANG
completed an Executive MBA Programme sponsored by the B A K
KEE R E AN EPEAOEZTH O (Risk Capital and Network Economy
Research Center of China Renmin University) and A7 B {b 2 & I 52 5 o
L (China Enterprise Management Training Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG
has more than 14 years of enterprise management and operation
experience. Before joining the Group in 2000, Ms. WANG worked in
RIEEIERFEES)EMRAF (COFCO Industry (Qinhuangdao) Pangthai
Co., Ltd) from 1995 to 2000. Ms. WANG has been a director of Tiaro Coal
Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, since
30 November 2009. Save as disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years. Ms.
WANG was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.
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Mr. XU Da (#3), aged 30, achieved a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr.

XU is currently a vice president and the director of procurement of

the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). Mr. XU has
more than 5 years of working experience in thermal coal procurement
operation from overseas. He joined the Group as import and export
manager in 2009. Mr. XU is the son of Mr. XU Jihua, the chairman, an
executive director and the controlling shareholder of the company. Mr.
XU did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during the last
three years.

Mr. MA Baofeng (5 {R1£), aged 39, graduated from Taiyuan University
of Technology in Shanxi with a bachelor degree. Mr. MA is currently

a vice president of the Group and the chairman of Shanxi Huameiao
Energy Group Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company. Mr. MA is principally responsible for coal purchasing

in the PRC and supervision of coal mines of the Group. Mr. MA has

more than 15 years of working experience in coal trading and mining
industry. Mr. MA joined the Group in 1999, and worked as the deputy
general manager of the sales and purchase department and purchasing
manager of the mining zone. Mr. MA did not hold any directorship in any
listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. BAl Tao (B &), aged 32, is the chief of executive officer and an
executive Director. Mr. BAl graduated from Cardiff University with a
bachelor and master degree in civil engineering. Mr. BAl is also currently
a president of the Group. Mr. BAl has more than 5 years of working
experience in construction project management. He joined the Group as
general manager of Zhuhau Henggin Coal Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior
to joining the Group in 2012, Mr. BAl worked as a manager of engineering
management department in a company listed in the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. BAl did not hold any directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (EEIf$), aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. HUANG is
also a member of the audit committee and the chairperson of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Board. Mr.
HUANG graduated from # F5 X2 (Zhong Nan University), formerly
known as £/ &8 Zt (Chang Sha Railway College), majoring in
railway transportation in 1965. Mr. HUANG served as the head of E /!
7% B (Guangzhou Port Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed
as a visiting professor by /88 % K2 (Shanghai Maritime University),
formerly known as _E/8/8&E k5t (Shanghai Maritime Transportation
College), in 1996. Mr. HUANG is also a senior engineer in railway
transportation and has enjoyed a special government allowance
granted by the State Council since 1992 for his outstanding contribution
in engineering technology for the nation. Mr. HUANG did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (885)5), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU is also the chairman
of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. LAU graduated with a bachelor
degree of science in Business Administration from Oregon State
University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as well as a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since April 2003. Prior to joining Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in 2003,
Mr. LAU was the financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board, for over three years and
had worked with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong for

five years. Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (“Dragon Crown”) on
30 November 2010. Dragon Crown was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 10 June 2011. Mr. LAU was also appointed as an
Independent non-executive Directors of SDM Group Holdings Limited
(“SDM Group”) on 26 September 2014, SDM Group was listed on GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014. From 3 September
2013 to 29 December 2014, Mr. LAU was also a non-executive director of
ZMFY Automobile Glass Services Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
LAU did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during the
last three years.
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Mr. XING Zhiying (FRE &), aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 January 2013. Mr. XING received a
Bachelor of Arts from Sun Yat-sen University (7 LI X&) in Guangzhou,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. XING served in various
managerial roles, including the vice president of the Guangdong
Branch, the president of the Hainan Branch and the senior expert in the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1996 to 2011. Mr. XING
is currently a senior economist (m AL &L M), the chief of Supervisory
Committee of the Finance Arbitration Center in Guangzhou (B /N < &4
HEPTEEE L 8 9), the vice president of Finance Expert Association in
Guangdong province, the PRC (ER £ gt A EERIHE) and a member
of the China Society for Finance and Banking (P El£ B2 &). Mr. XING
has been appointed the independent director of China Mercantile Bank
(FERSR77) in Shenzhen, the PRC since 2011. Mr. XING did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing ({2 ), aged 46, graduated from University

of London and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with bachelor
degree in banking and finance and MBA in finance respectively. He is
an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
with over 18 years experience in finance, auditing and accounting fields.
Prior to joining the Group in 2014, he was the chief financial officer of

a private group since June 2010. He was the qualified accountant and
company secretary of Ko Yo Chemical (Group) Limited (previous stock
code: 8042, current stock code: 827) from February 2002 to December
2005. Mr. Fung was also the independent non-executive director of TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited (stock code: 8022) from 12 August 2008 to
11 July 2012.
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Mr. LI Yong (Z28), aged 42, is the standing deputy general manager

of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., a member of the Group, and is
principally responsible for the domestic shipping transportation
business of the Group. Mr. LI graduated with a bachelor degree in
timber processing from Nanjing Forestry University (F R KX Z) in
June 1997 and obtained a master degree in management from Tianjin
Normal University (CK;ZRNEEAZ) in June 2004. Mr. LI has more than
12 years of working experience. Mr. LI was appointed as the standing
deputy general manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., in February
2008. During the period from June 2004 to February 2008, Mr. LI worked
as a project manager in Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co. Ltd., a
connected person of the Group. Mr. LI worked as a business manager
in Qinhuangdao Huasheng Trading Co., Ltd. (R2 &5 EXZE 5 ER A A)
during the period from August 1997 to April 2004.

Mr. YU Tao (F7%), aged 43, is the vice president of the Group. Mr. Yu

is responsible for both domestic and international shipping business

of the Group. Mr.Yu has a Master degree of Maritime Law of Dalian
Maritime University, is a professional manager with rich experiences in
international shipping practice and management. Mr. Yu has worked on
board of vessel and then engaged in shipping practice and management
for over 16 years. Mr. Yu joined the group in 2008 and worked as
shipping manager, deputy shipping general manager, and was appointed
as shipping general manager in 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasise on accountability and transparency and are
adopted in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and to fulfil its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate governance code

of practices since the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange. In
the opinion of the Board, save for the deviations to code provisions
A.6.7 below, the Company had complied with the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2015.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
independent non-executive Directors should attend the general
meetings of the Company. However, due to other business commitment,
Mr. HUANG Guosheng and Mr. XING Zhiying, independent non-executive
Directors, did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 25 June 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, monitoring its operating and
financial performance, performing the corporate governance duties and
evaluating the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group

and the company secretary. Management information is provided to
enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when requested.
The company secretary provides secretarial support to the Board and
ensures adherence to Board procedures and the relevant rules and
regulations which are applicable to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of

the Company are managed by the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to these officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board
periodically reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to
obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, five of whom are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive directors:
Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)
Mr. BAl Tao
(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)
Mr. XU Da
Mr. MA Baofeng
Ms. WANG Jianfei
(Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)
Mr. WENG Li (Resigned on 8 April 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. XING Zhiying

All five executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not
limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Group. The Company maintains appropriate directors’
and officers’ liabilities insurance.
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The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has
appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. Biographical details of the independent non-executive
Directors are set out on pages 55 to 56 of this annual report. Each of
the independent non-executive Director has confirmed in writing of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors and
auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company held an annual
general meeting and the Board held eight Board meetings, all of which
were convened in accordance with the Articles, and the individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

HERE EREERE
Name of directors £ Annual General Meeting Board Meeting
BRRBFERE EEE223
Mr. XU Jihua REELE 1/1 8/8
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIF Lzt 1/1 8/8

Mr. WENG Li H MhHAE

(Resigned on 8 April 2015) (R=ZZE—RFMEANBEE) 01 1/1
Mr. XU Da "OEEE 1/1 8/8
Mr. MA Baofeng BRIEL A 1/1 8/8
Mr. BAl Tao H #E4E 1/1 8/8
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R A 0/1 8/8
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen %IJ%%?J??EE 1/1 8/8
Mr. XING Zhiying PE&TgHE 0/1 8/8
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Jihua is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director,
responsible for providing advice for the overall management and
strategic development and overseeing the operation of the Board.
The other executive Directors Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned as the
Group’s Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015) and Mr. BAl Tao

(appointed as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer on 10 December 2015)

who is responsible for the Group’s overall management, corporate
development, strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day
operation. The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of power
and authority.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration committee
consists of an executive Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng
and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of the
remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board

are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The remuneration committee held two meetings during 2015 to assess

performance of executive Directors and certain senior management and

review their remuneration. The duties of the remuneration committee
include determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration

FNZEeRN T RAFARBITMAREE - JUF
EARTERRETEREERBORTENU s
- R EENBERREETEAETE
ELERERENFMNES - TERBEBHES

packages of Directors and senior management. All the members E
attended the meeting.
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend
Name of directors EEpE HERE EREEERE
Ms. WANG Jianfei TR L 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =P A 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying MERBEE 2/2
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference. The nomination committee consists
of an executive Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei, and two independent non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng and Mr. XING Zhiying.

Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of the nomination committee.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board include
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The nomination committee held two meetings during 2015 to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to meet the requirements of the business of the Company.
The nomination committee also evaluated the effectiveness of the
board diversity policy. All the members attended the meeting.
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings

entitled to attend
Name of directors BEEpE HERE EREERE
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIRZ L 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R A 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying MERLE 2/2
APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF FI - ERAERES
DIRECTORS
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with BHTEEDHEANTRIIRE S B -5 —

the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on 12 June
2012. All the independent non-executive Directors entered into renewed
appointment letters with the Company in 2012 for a term of three year.
Such term is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set out the
requirements for diversity in Board members and the principles for the
selection of Directors.

(1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increased diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In planning the Board’s composition,
board diversity needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the Board
Diversity Policy
Selection of candidates of the Company will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the reporting period, the nomination committee reviewed

the composition of the Board and concluded that the Company had

met the diversification requirements with regard to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
When making the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the
future, the nomination committee will nominate new Directors pursuant
to the requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the objective
of diversity in Board members.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded of
their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference. The audit committee consists

of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG
Guosheng, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is
the chairperson of the audit committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and approve
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
The audit committee had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.
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During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and all the FRBREEEBITTMIAEE  TEKEY
members attended the meetings. HEE% o

Number of attendance/

Number of meetings

entitled to attend

Name of directors BEEHNR HERE BREEERE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2R %E & 2/2

Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R LA 2/2

Mr. XING Zhiying MR 2/2

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and annual

report for the year ended 31 December 2015 and interim report for

the six months ended 30 June 2015 to the Board for approval. The

audit committee also reviewed the accounting issues raised by the
independent auditor of the Company in respect of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and are in the
process of reviewing the relevant issues as described in the paragraphs
under “Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive induction
package which includes introduction on the business operations, internal
procedures and general policy of the Company and a summary of
statutory and regulatory obligations of directors under the Listing Rules
and other relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors are
provided with regular updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. During the year, all Directors participated
in various trainings organised by the Company, including the “Introduction
on obligations of Director of Hong Kong Listed Companies” According

to the training records provided by the Directors to the Company, each
Director has confirmed that he/she has obtained reading and training
materials during the year under review and has attended the trainings in
relation to various aspects, including but not limited to, Director’s duties,
update on the Listing Rules amendments and corporate governance
practices.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of the
Board and its senior management.

The Group has adopted certain internal control policies to manage
and minimise financial and other risks, to ensure timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and to monitor
compliance with laws by the senior management of the Group in the
performance of their duties.

The Group has also established an audit committee under the Board,
which has the functions of monitoring compliance with laws by the
Group’s senior management and in its daily operations, and of carrying
out investigations for suspected breaches of law. The Company
convened meetings with the audit committee periodically to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control. During the year, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group and the Directors are of the view that the existing system of
internal control is effective and adequate to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of results and
cash flow for the year.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent

and reasonable judgements and estimates, and have prepared

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors also warrant that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements will be published in a timely manner.
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The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 72 to 75 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration to the Group’s
external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group is set forth below:
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RMB’000

AR®T T

Audit services ZERT 2,108
Non-audit services® FERZE RS+ 1116
Total il 3,224

*  Non audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the
Company review its interim financial statements and certain services for
assisting the Company prepare its circular in relation to the disposal of
Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing Rules
to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate, complete

and timely basis and all other information that might have significant
impact on the decisions of shareholders and other concerned parties in
an active and timely manner. Also, the Company takes effort in ensuring
all shareholders have equal access to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. The executive Directors and the
chief financial officer of the Company hold regular briefings and results
presentation, attend investor forums and respond to investors’ call-
in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional investors and
financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries to
keep them abreast of the Company’s business and development as
well as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and collects the
feedback from them, in the interests of developing an interactive and
mutually beneficial relationship with the Company’s investors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company secretary to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company, which is presently situated at Room 1303, 13th
Floor, MassMutual Tower, No. 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at
shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The Board will
review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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The Group is a long-time, continuous supporter of corporate

social responsibility, dedicated to contributing to society through
nature preservation and helping the underprivileged. To maintain

its sustainable development momentum and become a leading
international coal operator, the Group treats its employees, customers,
the society and the natural environment ethically.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has been working tirelessly to build green communities.
Besides promoting a green lifestyle, the Group strives to minimise

damage to the environment while increasing production efficiency,
creating win-win outcomes for the Group and the society.

Land reclamation

Consistent with the “those who destroys shall reclaim” guidance issued
by the State Council, three coal mines of the Group (namely Fengxi
Coal Mine, Chongsheng Coal Mine and Xingtao Coal Mine) carried out
reclamation activities for all parcels of land compromised during the
course of mine construction and production. The reclamation project
focuses on agricultural production and forest restoration according to
the principle of “using for agriculture, forestry or animal husbandry as
appropriate.” The Group will spend approximately RMB157 million on
reclamation projects for the three coal mines over periods of 22, 27 and
31 years respectively. Throughout the process, the Group will provide
streamlined management and land protection services, thereby allowing
the land to maximise its economic, social and ecological benefits.

Office 4R

The Group actively encourages its employees to apply “4R” (reduce,
reuse, recycle and replace) rules in the office. Under the 4R policy,

the Group’s employees replace direct paper printing with electronic
scanning and use email to transmit documents in order to reduce the
use of paper, and avoid the use of disposable products. From time to
time, the Group reminds its employees to reuse single-side printed
waste paper for printing internal documents. The Group’s office drinking
fountains also use recyclable plastic bottles. In the future, the Group
will continue to pursue the 4R policy and maintain a green working
environment.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group considers its employees to be essential for the business
success. Therefore, the Group attaches great importance to its
employees’ physical and mental health and working environment, as
well as their continuous skill development to enhance competitiveness.
Thus, the Group has formulated occupational safety guidelines and
policies for the working environment, along with related requirements
for different employees, and provides regular safety training.

Communication channels

The Group believes that work performance and learning attitudes are
affected by internal factors such as the working environment, attitudes
of co-workers and company policies. The Group therefore adopts an
open approach which encourages employees to report their opinions
to the management and provide the Group with ways to improve our
operations.

Employee benefits

The Group’'s employees are an important part of its assets. This is why
employees are covered by insurance policies taken out by the Group
and receive medical benefits in addition to wages and bonuses. The
Group also holds an annual year-end party to express its gratitude for
the efforts made by the employees throughout the year and grants
outstanding performance awards to employees with especially excellent
performance.

Employee training

The Group’s ability to maintain continuous development amid severe
competition depends on each employee performing their role well.
Towards this end, the Group regularly invites professionals to organise
training seminars on management, law, accounting, finance and other
corporate fields for its employees, allowing employees to keep abreast
of the latest information and making sure they have the knowledge and
skills they need to handle the demands of their jobs.
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Housing allowance

In addition to general and basic benefits, the Group also offers housing
allowances to coal miners to help limit the inconvenience they may
encounter in getting to and from the workplace. This arrangement
allows them to relocate to locations near the coal mine at lower cost to
themselves, thereby saving commuting time and expense.

Safety code

As a coal operator, the Group attaches great importance to the safety
of coal miners at work. Workers are therefore required to comply with
the Group’s strict safety code and wear appropriate safety equipment
before entering coal mines. The Group is particularly proud that the
Xingtao coal mine operated by Huameiao Energy was designated

a Grade 1 Safety Demonstration Mine by the China National Coal
Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR ET RS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements

of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 228, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely

to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
as explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. Because of the
matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs,
however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Limitation of scope in respect of corresponding figures of
financial performance, cash flows and relevant disclosures

As detailed in the auditor’s report dated 31 March 2015, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about certain trade
receivables of RMB1,085,712,000, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of RMB622,327,000 and prepayments of RMB161,460,000
as at 31 December 2013. Any adjustments that might have been found
to be necessary in respect of the above would have a consequential
effect on the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2013. Since
certain balances at 31 December 2013 formed the basis for the
calculation of the loss on disposal of a subsidiary and impairment
losses on prepayments for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
corresponding cash flows, we were unable to determine whether the
loss on disposal of a subsidiary and impairment losses on prepayments
for the year ended 31 December 2014, the net cash flows and the
related disclosures were free from material misstatement. Our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 was disclaimed accordingly.

Our opinion on the current year’s consolidated financial statements
is also disclaimed because of the possible effect of the matter on the
comparability of the current period’s figures and the corresponding
figures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuep)
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in Note 1.2(c) to the consolidated financial statements

which indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated net loss of
RMB6,932,177,000 during the year ended 31 December 2015 and, as

of that date, the Group had net current liabilities of RMB6,228,989,000
and capital deficiency of RMB4,629,396,000, of which the outstanding
borrowings of RMB3,302,997,000 are due on demand or within one

year. As at 31 December 2015, there were several pending litigations
mainly requesting repayment of long outstanding payables with interest
against the Group, as set out in Note 41(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As further explained in Note 1.2(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are taking certain measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and solvency position. These measures
mainly include (i) applying cost control measures in cost of sales and
administrative expenses; (i) obtaining financing from banks through
negotiations for extension or renewal of outstanding borrowings;

(iii) obtaining additional sources of debt financing from banks; and

(iv) executing the disposal of the entire equity interest in Hong Kong
Qinfa International Trading Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries.

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
these measures had not yet been concluded. Whether the Group is able
to implement the abovementioned measures is subject to material
uncertainties. The foregoing facts and circumstances indicate the
existence of multiple material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The

validity of the going concern assumption on which the consolidated
financial statements are prepared is dependent on the successful and
favourable outcomes of the measures being taken by the directors of
the Company as described in Note 1.2(c) to the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the assumption that the Group will continue as a going concern and,
therefore, do not include any adjustments relating to the realisation of
assets, discharging of liabilities and classification of non-current assets
and non-current liabilities that may be necessary if the Group is unable
to continue as a going concern.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuep)
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
might be required to write down the value of assets to the estimated
recoverable amounts, to provide for any future liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of
these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, and whether the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 29 April 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZHEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—F—AF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-&¥ —F-lF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARBTIT
Notes (Restated)
M5 (g &%)
Revenue Wz 5 1,377,207 6,449,446
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,053,885) (6,652,720)
Gross loss EE (676,678) (203,274)
Other income, gains and losses B - ek RESE 6 17,381 (46,798)
Distribution expenses =155 (30,831) (88,350)
Administrative expenses THHX (208,260) (233,380)
Other expenses HibF X 8(b) (6,760,418) (77,662)
Results from operating activities rexgexm | (7,658,806)|  (649,464)
Finance income B 75 A 2,826 50,228
Finance costs 20N (370,803) (566,318)
Net finance costs B R AN R R 7 (367977)|  (516,090)
Share of loss of associates DIGEE R REE (6,522) (11,269)
Loss before taxation MBI 18 8(a) (8,033,305) (1,176,823)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiisfiEe /(AX) 9 1,105,525 (114,417)
Loss for the year from continuing operations R HIFEZSLEKNFEAEIE (6,927,780) (1,291,240)
Discontinued operation R R K
Loss for the year from RE BRI & TSR
discontinued operation FAEE 10 (4,397) (1,073)
Loss for the year FREE (6,932,177) (1,292,313)
Other comprehensive income Hib2EBA
ltem that may be reclassified Hielgegamsis
subsequently to profit or loss: EmWIEE
Foreign currency translation differences BINETFEE 2
for foreign operations HNEE IR B = 5 30,799 263
ltem that was reclassified to profit or loss: BEEFNSE=EEMNIER :
Foreign currency translation HEM B A RIRER
differences reclassified to profit or DEEERA
loss upon disposal of subsidiaries HNEE A 2 RE (4,438) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREME2EKA @ RE#E
net of tax 13 26,361 263
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEIBERE (6,905,816) (1,292,050)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—F—RAF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—¥-1% —FmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
Notes (Restated)
B & (&E51)
Loss for the year attributable to: EiEFRER
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFEARA (6,011,184) (1,183,426)
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS (920,993) (108,887)
Loss for the year FREE (6,932,177) (1,292,313)
Total comprehensive loss for FRE2HEEGELHE
the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company RATERREB A (5,984,823) (1,183,163)
Non-controlling interests At e (920,993) (108,887)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREZHEBGELE (6,905,816) (1,292,050)
(Loss)/earnings per share from continuing FRARARERIEEAEML
and discontinued operations attributable REFERCDRLLEER
to the equity shareholders of 2Bk (F1E) BF
the Company during the year 14
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share FREAREE (B5B),/ BF
From continuing operations REFELEES (RMB284 cents) | (RMB56 cents)
(AR¥2847) (AR¥56%)
From discontinued operation REDKRIEREER RMB1 cent (RMBO cent)
AR®19 (AR¥07)
From continuing and discontinued operations REFBERORIEEETS (RMB283 cents) | (RMBH56 cents)
(AR#283%) (AR¥569)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRIR R

At 31 December 2015 R=—ZE—FHFE+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-IF —ET-MmF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR®TR ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB RE 15 2,437,991 7,028,164
Coal mining rights B R R R 16 1,942,708 4,633,632
Lease prepayments HEFBRRR 17 5,213 112,921
Interests in associates N AANCIwe - ey 18 - 77,267
Deferred tax assets BLEHBEE 19(a) 690 19,384
4,386,602 11,871,368
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 75 21 88,073 326,355
Trade and bill receivables FEW B Z R0 & B 2 1 22 582,284 1,268,992
Prepayments and other receivables TR ER R f FEURAR X 23 187,243 863,461
Pledged and restricted deposits BEHEREZREFR 24 45,911 497129
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBEEEED 25 20,669 53,864
924,180 3,009,801
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bill payables ERESEFRENRE 26 (1,088,711) (1,048,131)
Other payables Hf fEfTER X 27 (2,525,023) (2,258,701)
Borrowings B 28 (3,302,997) (4,734,105)
Tax payable 1A (236,438) (247145)
(7153,169) (8,288,082)
Net current liabilities REBEEFH (6,228,989) (5,278,281)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER (1,842,387) 6,593,087
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables H A FERERSR 27 (82,195) (95,782)
Borrowings BE 28 (2,602,325) (2,917.796)
Accrued reclamation obligations BIREREH 29 (79,047) (74,693)
Deferred tax liabilities EREIEEE 19(b) (23,442) (1138,474)
(2,787,009) (4,226,745)
Net (liabilities)/assets (&) BE%E (4,629,396) 2,366,342
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REBARIRR

At 31 December 2015 W=ZE—HF+_A=+—H

2015 2014
—¥-1% —FmF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{oFz3 AR®TR ARBTT
Capital and reserves RAR #iE

Share capital B 30(b) 193,275 176,531
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities 7K AR 4R Al # A% 3B 5 30(c) 156,931 156,931
Quasi-capital BENR 30(d) 45,771 -
(Deficit)/reserves (B4L), /1% 30(e) (5,169,798) 781,592

Total (deficit)/equity attributable to equity AAREREFE ARG
shareholders of the Company (B54t) R 4% (4,773,821) 1,115,054
Non-controlling interests =R R 144,425 1,251,288
Total (deficit)/equity (B54k), R4 (4,629,396) 2,366,342

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China R-ZFE—NEMNA -+ HBEFHRZEREFBER

Qinfa Group Limited on 29 April 2016. NEIEEDHE RIS -
Xu Jihua Wang Jianfei
E T I
Director Director
BE BFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—F—AF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—%-1% —FmF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B E AR¥T T ARBTT
Operating activities ReEEH
Cash generated from operations RETHMERE 25(b) 373,741 1,347,618
Interest paid BRFE (283,064) (770,223)
PRC Corporate Income Tax (paid)/refunded (Bf),/ REFRBESEFEH (1,280) 14,180
Net cash generated from RETHAEHES TR
operating activites 89,397 ________ 591575
Investing activities REED
Interest received EUFE 2,844 50,519
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BE KEEHEHRE
plant and equipment 18,537 =
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WEEYIZ - BE Rk (312,948) (1,218,464)
Net proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries HEMRBARIRKEBE AR
and associates SRR S5 32 346,712 79,992
Acquisition of associates WiigEE & A A = (9,698)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBRE (iR R 38
investing activities 55,145 (1,097,651)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—F—RAF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—¥-1% —FmF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AR®T T ARET T
Financing activities MEED
Distribution relating to perpetual EEOK R AR AR AR 75
subordinated convertible securities NS 30(c) (4,728) (4,628)
Proceeds from borrowings BEE RS KIAE 3,605,561 6,781,000
Repayment of borrowings EEgEE (4,269,964) (8,189,980)
Change in pledged and restricted deposits B R R TR # 451,218 1,486,475
Capital contribution received from BE— R IEERARR
a non-controlling shareholder WTEALE - 3,333
Net proceeds from placing of shares B RN FT1S RIB T 7R 30(b)(ix) 40,116 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FiF),/
financing activities FIBEEFHE (177,797) 76,200
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReERBRESEBEYRDFEE (33,255) (429,876)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZHRERRSLEEY 53,864 483,310
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSBNTE 60 430
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—H2
RERRESEEY 25(a) 20,669 53,864
Significant non-cash transaction EAEEERS

Certain interest payable to a financial institution of RMB48,822,000 is
to be settled by issuance of shares of the Company (Note 30(d)). Such
amount is capitalised as Quasi-capital in the consolidated financial

statements.

FEf — & i r S T 5 S A K% 48,822,000
TTREBEITARRRD T (HEE30(d) - B
AR REAMBREAANENMEREER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P RRMEE

31 December 2015 —ZE—FHFE+-F=+—H

1

1.1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

General information

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2007 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 3 July 2009 (the “Listing Date”). The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is 22nd Floor, South Tower,
Poly International Plaza, No. 1 Pazhou East Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong, People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering,
storage, blending of coal in the PRC and shipping transportation.
The Group was also engaged in the provision of port services,
which the Group has discontinued during the year as a result of the
disposal of a subsidiary, as disclosed in Note 10.

1.2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and
related Interpretations, promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The amendments to the Listing Rules with reference to the
requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into effect for the first
time during the current financial year and the main impact is on
the presentation and disclosure of certain information in these
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except
when otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
the directors of the Company have given consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that the Group
incurred a consolidated net loss of RMB6,932,177,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceed its current assets by approximately
RMB6,228,989,000 and capital deficiency of RMB4,629,396,000,
of which the outstanding borrowings of RMB3,302,997,000 are due
on demand or within one year. As at 31 December 2015, there were
several pending litigation mainly requesting repayment of long
outstanding payables with interest against the Group, as set out in
Note 41(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H¥+=-A=+—H

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Going concern (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had entered into agreements
to construct coal mines thereon which will involve capital
expenditures totalling approximately RMB48,176,000. Pursuant to
the terms of these agreements, such committed capital expenditure
totalling approximately RMB48,176,000 has to be settled within
the next twelve months from the date of the consolidated financial
statements.

As set out in Note 28, certain borrowings of RMB197,102,000 were
overdue and carried interest at rates ranging from 6.72% to 12.96%
per annum and additional penalty interest at rates ranging from
3.36% to 6.48% per annum. Subsequent to 31 December 2015
and up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, these borrowings have not been renewed or settled.
In addition, subsequent to 31 December 2015 and up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements, further
borrowings of RMB297,540,000 were overdue.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1 REAIERREBREE w

PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued) 1.2EBEE @)
(c) Going concern (continued) (c) HELE w0

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumptions that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at
31 December 2015 and subsequently thereto up to the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements. In order to
improve the Group’s financial positions, immediate liquidity and
cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern,
the directors of the Company have adopted several measures
together with other measures in progress at the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements which include, but not
limited to, the followings:

(i) The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales and
administrative expenses;

(i) The Group is currently in the process of negotiating with certain
banks to renew its existing and obtain new borrowings with an
aggregate amount of RMB430,422,000;

(iii) Subsequent to 31 December 2015, the Group has renewed
banking facilities of RMB650,000,000 of which borrowings of
RMB326,650,000 have been drawn down to repay its existing
borrowings. The renewed borrowings would be repayable after
31 December 2016;

(iv) For borrowings which will be mature before 31 December 20186,
the Group will actively negotiate with the banks when they
fall due to secure necessary fund to meet the Group’s working
capital and financial requirements in the future. The directors
of the Company, have evaluated all the relevant facts available
to them, are of the opinion that the Group would be able to
renew such borrowings upon maturity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H¥+=-A=+—H

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Going concern (continued)

(v)

On 25 April 2016, the Group entered into a share sale and
purchase agreement with Bo Hai Investment Limited, a related
company wholly owned by Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”), the chairman
of the Group in relation to the disposal of entire equity interest
in Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (“HK
Qinfa International Group”). The principal activities of HK
Qinfa International Group are coal mining, purchase and sales,
filtering, storage, blending of coal and shipping transportation
in the PRC. The aggregate disposal consideration is expected to
be approximately RMB22,040,000.

As at 31 December 2015, HK Qinfa International Group
was in net current liabilities and net liabilities position of
RMB6,058,874,000 and RMB4,869,345,000 respectively. The
directors of the Company considered that the Group would be
able to substantially improve its financial position by easing its
debt burden and enhancing its flexibilities of fund utilisation
upon completion of this disposal.

The proposed transaction is yet to complete and is subject to
approval of the Stock Exchange and independent shareholders
and certain conditions precedent as stated in the share sale
and purchase agreement.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the measures
described above in the foreseeable future and after assessing the
Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the twelve months
from 31 December 2015. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group has been prepared on the going concern
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Going concern (continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their estimated recoverable amounts, to provide
further liabilities that might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other resources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H¥+=-A=+—H

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates (continued)

(ii)

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are described as
follows:

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables are assessed and
provided based on management’s regular review of ageing analysis
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual customer.
Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the profit or loss in future years. At
31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s trade and
bill receivables was RMB582,284,000 (2014: RMB1,268,992,000).
Further details are disclosed in Note 22.

Depreciation

Other than the mining structures, property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual values.
The management periodically reviews changes in technology and
industry conditions, asset retirement activity and residual values
to determine adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives
and depreciation rates. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expenses in future
periods. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, other than the mining structures,
was RMB1,776,612,000 (2014: RMB5,410,913,000). Further details
are disclosed in Note 15.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

1

NAIEEREREE g

1.2RBE%E (1)
(d) FTR 2 HE R G @)

(if)

% T 5 7E 8 PR S 4 S B R 0
B NG ANBRESEAYERTEL
RS R BRI TR

JE U B 55 B 2R % B Wk ZE 4 m) R BB 12

FEWE 5 R K BN IE 2 B B 18 T AR &
EIREH BRI D AT R FL A AT R B 32 E 2 TE AP
B BEREHTEHEREE EEERTES
M ERIEF A EE KB E WK EREL X
SHE o TR RIRBEE B R TR A
FERKREBENEE R-_T—AF+_-A
=t+—H8 AEERKEZERERLEREE
ZREEAARKESS2,284,000T (ZZF—
e - AR#1,268,992,0007T) © #—F5f
BERHT EE 228 5 -

e

Kt RBETERER - WX - BE KK HRM
TR E R FESHNER A ERBEREED
BroN o BIEEFTHREMRITEMRR &
ERELFGEEED  UBEHHIHT
AEAFHERTERNAR  ERCEFTH
AJRE B ET I A F HR R o T HIR T AT R
BWEFHUKBEZBRMNTERS - R=
T—RAF+-_A=+—H XEEYE &K
BEREE (RBEEYKRIIN cEREEAEA
R#1,776,612,0007T (ZZ— 4 : ARK
5,410,913,0007T) ° #— P FFIE R M FE 153
E‘go



1

91

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates (continued)

(iii) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of distributing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of competitor’s actions in response to severe industry
cycles or other changes in market condition. Management assesses
the estimations at each reporting date. At 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of the Group’s inventories was RMB88,073,000
(2014: RMB326,355,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 21.

Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated coal reserves can
be designated as “proved” and “probable” Proved and probable
coal reserve estimates are updated on a regular basis and have
taken into account recent production and technical information
about each mine. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from
year to year, the estimate of proved and probable coal reserves
also changes. This change is considered a change in estimate for
accounting purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in
related depreciation and amortisation rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MRIRRMEE
31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates (continued)

(iv) Coal reserves (continued)

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation and
amortisation expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation and
amortisation rates are determined based on estimated proved coal
reserve quantity (the denominator) and capitalised costs of mining
structures and coal mining rights (the numerator). The capitalised
cost of mining structures are depreciated and coal mining rights
are amortised based on the units of coal produced. At 31 December
2015, the carrying amounts of the Group’s mining structures
recognised in property, plant and equipment and the Group’s coal
mining rights were RMB661,379,000 (2014: RMB1,617,251,000) and
RMB1,942,708,000 (2014: RMB4,633,632,000) respectively. Further
details are disclosed in Notes 15 and 16 respectively.

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation and mine
closure involves the estimates of the amount and timing for
the future cash spending as well as the discount rate used for
reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The Group considers various
factors, including future production volume and development plan,
the geological structure of the mining regions and reserve volume,
to determine the scope, amount and timing of reclamation and
mine closure works to be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from the Group and the
estimated liabilities may turn out to be different from the actual
expenditure incurred. The discount rate used by the Group may also
be altered to reflect the changes in the market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, such as
changes of the borrowing rate and inflation rate in the market. As
changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes
in estimated costs, or changes in timing of the performance
of reclamation activities), revisions to the obligations will be
recognised. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the
Group’s accrued reclamation obligations was RMB79,047,000 (2014:
RMB74,693,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)
(vi)

(a)

Use of judgements and estimates (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that non-financial assets with definite lives may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(k)(ii). In assessing whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets may be impaired,
the Group considers indications from both internal and external
sources of information such as evidence of obsolescence or
decline in economic performance of the assets, changes in market
conditions and economic environment. These assessments are
subjective and require management’s judgements and estimations.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(e)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (Note 2(b)) or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2(k)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNuED)
(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (Note 2(k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’'s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue)

(b) Associates (continued)

(c)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(g)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“*CGU”), or groups of CGU, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(d) Foreign currency

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB (the
“presentation currency”), while the functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”).

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
financial year. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue)

(d) Foreign currency (continued)

(iii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RMB at
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to RMB at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling
interests.

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in
the foreseeable future, then foreign currency differences arising
from such item form part of the net investment in the foreign
operation. Accordingly, such differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve.

Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date
that they are originated. All other financial assets are recognised
initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control over the transferred assets. Any interest in such
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

Loans and receivables comprise pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bill receivables, and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the trade date
at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2
(e)
(ii)

(iii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)
Financial instruments (continued)
Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Such financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise trade and bill
payables, other payables and borrowings.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects,
are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued by the Group
gives the right to the holder to convert these securities into a fixed
number of the Company’s shares at any time at a fixed exercise
price per share. Perpetual subordinated convertible securities
with no contracted obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distribution are classified as equity. Respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Iltems of plant and buildings, machinery, vessels and other
properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for
its intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs (Note 2(s)) and changes in the measurement
of existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting from
changes in the timing or outflow of resources required to settle the
obligation or from changes in the discount rate. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When proved and probable coal reserves have been determined,
costs incurred to develop coal mines are capitalised as part of the
cost of the mining structures. All other expenditures, including
the costs of removing waste materials, the cost of repairs and
maintenance and major overhaul, are expensed as they are
incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different estimated useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and

equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a
component has an estimated useful life that is different from the
remainder of the asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of

property, plant and equipment, other than mining structures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iii) Depreciation (continued)

(g

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of
significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years
Electronic and other equipment 3-10years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years
Port 30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-production
method, utilising only proved and probable coal reserves in the
depletion base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. Assets under construction are transferred to the
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment upon the
completion of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights acquired from the
government or through a business combination. Coal mining rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (Note 2(k)), if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-production
method, utilising only proved and probable coal reserves in the
depletion base.
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2
(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights and
sea use rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Lease
prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (Note 2(k)), if any.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights except that the
amortisation is included as part of assets under construction when
the amortisation can be directly attributable to the cost of relevant
assets during the construction period.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of spending
estimates at both surface and underground mines in accordance
with the PRC rules and regulations. The Group estimates its
liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure based upon
detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash
spending to perform the required work. Spending estimates are
escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability such that the amount of
provision reflects the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The Group records a
corresponding asset associated with the liability for final
reclamation and mine closure. The obligation and corresponding
asset are recognised in the period in which the liability is incurred.
The asset is depreciated on the units-of-production method
over its expected life and the liability is accreted to the projected
spending date. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in timing of
the performance of reclamation activities), the revisions to the
obligation and the corresponding asset are recognised at the
appropriate discount rate.

Impairment of assets
Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss
are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event(s) had an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
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(k)
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers,
the disappearance of an active market for a security, or observable
data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash
flows from a group of financial assets. In addition, for an investment
in an equity security, objective evidence of impairment includes a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for financial assets
measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables) at both an
individual asset and a collective level. All individually significant
assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to
be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment.
Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets
with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical
information on the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss
incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or
less than suggested by historical trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an
allowance account against loans and receivables. When the Group
considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of
the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other
than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill that have indefinite
useful lives or coal mining rights that are not yet available for
use, are tested annually for impairment. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.
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(k)
(ii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an operating
segment ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is
performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash
inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate assets
are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the
corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of
CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
() Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme as specified by the
local municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to
reduce existing level of contributions for each of the years.

~

i BFEREL - AHFREFEEENX
- NMESRBEBREZFEARNRG - fi
RN ETREATE  REHRAARA
B8 -

ERBARAKETEIEE
AREERBARGIERTESF R - SEM
BEBRERERHEERHFRHEATRSRIN
wBHEE (RmEsE ) - #HRRERE
EXFezB LFHE  ARARARBERE
BmEEA B ZRAUAT N AGEEE
WARK - BIEEHECBEETVBYNASHE
ZEE UHBUEBZESHA -

AEBRPEEEZHBARZEEZESZM
B 3 T BT P (R R R RAR IR S 51 &
FREMBARAREFEKANETED
Lo A RAR RS R B - BRHFNR
E T REARE S 2 RAA R ALR
BEERARK -

RER BN & L A EADR UL S50
RAHRNRE -

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
(1) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to share
capital and share premium accounts) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained earnings or accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value added tax.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually
in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is
no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that
discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably,
then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the
sales are recognised.
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(n)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)
Revenue (continued)
Charter hire income

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in nature, is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised on a percentage-of-
completion basis, which is determined on the time proportion
method of each individual voyage.

Lease income from operating leases

Lease income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent leases are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
estimated useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total
lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprise interest income. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest
method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and bank
charges. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purpose and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2
(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue)
Income tax expense (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(g) Income tax expense (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Dividends payable

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they
are declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

2
(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Where
funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the purpose of
obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate at 5.75% has been
applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions on
behalf of subsidiaries to secure interest-bearing bank borrowings
and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
IAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by
management’s judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)
Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank borrowings
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”)
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

2
(w)

(x)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is

presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
(X) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

2
(y)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNuED)
(y) Fairvalue measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1:  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MRIRRMEE
31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 ZEBEREH
In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the REEBE_T—RAF+_A=+—HLF
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has applied, for the first E7HREMBEHmERE  KEE EE?'XT&T&%W LA
time, the following amendments issued by the IASB. THEESTEELZESHEMZEF
IAS 19 Amendments Defined Benefit Plans: BEER ezt FTEEMNTE - EEMHK
Employee Contributions F195%
(3T 4)
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - BRI fGaReE BRSE SR & AR
2012 Cycle ERIZEF] ZZE—TFHE

TR FRENE

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 - BRREI S sReE BB RS E - ——F

2013 Cycle HAZEET EZE=FREAZERENE
None of these amendments have had a material effect on how S s ITH AR EE AR B AR B R
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior TR R IRAR N T A S o REE T
periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not KRELFRTE A @ = EARG ok AE ik > {F{a] & Al
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective R o

for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has three reportable segments — coal business, shipping
transportation and port business — which are the Group’s strategic
business units. These strategic business units offer different
products and services, and are managed separately because they
require different technology and marketing strategies. During
the year, the port business segment was disposed of and was
presented as discontinued operation which details were set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. For each of the
strategic business units, the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the CEO monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment (loss)/profit is adjusted
loss before net finance costs and income tax expense. Items
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such as
unallocated head office and corporate administration costs are
further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, coal mining rights,
lease prepayments, interests in associates and current assets with
the exception of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and bill payables, other payables attributable to activities
of the individual segments, accrued reclamation obligations and
borrowings managed directly by the segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTiNuED)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

4

yaN ALB*&

CYPIE S EEKEF €9

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.

WAR T2
KX DR T A & D HB o

AENBEL ZHER

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
GEGEER BRLEERE
Coal business Shipping transportation Port business Total
R MEER BOEHK gt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-0F | Z5-QmF | Z%-1F | Z2-0OF | Z%-31fF | CE-ME | CF-1f | CE-ME
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETL | AR®TR | ARETR | ARETR | ARETR | ARETR | ARETR
Revenue from external customers HExFlE 1,220,485 6,292,314 156,722 157132 31317 38,833 1,414,524 6,488,219
Inter-segment revenue APENE - - - 75,354 - 1647 - 77001
Reportable segment revenue THEIDhE 1,220,485 | 6292314 156,722 232,486 37317 L0480 | 141452 | 6,565,280
Reportable segment (loss)/profitbefore  # A HBREE
taxation (BB)/ %A (7401,623) (666,224) (243,618) 18,668 40,288 9492 | (7,604,953) (638,164)
Depreciation and amortisation HERER 152,148 159,350 70,812 55,163 53,046 5,637 276,006 220150
Impairment losses on property plantand 9% - BERAE
equipment HEFE 2,848,840 18,674 218,665 = - = 3,067,505 18,674
Impairment losses on coal mining rights &%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ@éﬂé 2,678,444 - - - - - | 2,678,444 -
Impairment losses on interests in associates  REHE AR 7%
HEEE 70,705 9,333 - - - - 70,705 19,383
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment)  FEWE 5RRE
on trade receivables EE/(HEED) 502,479 0,011 - - - - 502,479 (9,017
Impairment losses on prepayments and other  EEREHRE el
recelvables B AERR 394,855 42136 - - - - 394,855 42136
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiariesand  HEMBR A REE
associates ARl (B18)/ K (2751) [ (162.589) - - 70,834 - 68,083 |  (162,589)
Reportable segment assets TRENPEE 5,016,443 | 12,399,005 669,135 896,359 - | 1998886 | 5,685,578 | 15,294,250
(incluing interests in associates) (PRENBENGZER) - 71,267 - - - - - 71,267
Reportable segment liabilities IREIHER (0,957818) [ (9818480 |  (963,345) |  (933,003) - | (1458739 | (10921463) | (12,210,220)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinuED) 4 DEWHRE @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, loss before (b) REFHEARER L EEXBNTRED
taxation from continuing and discontinued operations, Bz - BREATEE  EEREEYHER
assets and liabilities
Revenue from continuing and discontinued operations REFFE R DRI EER s

2015 2014
—E-HF T —{F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Reportable segment revenue Al R & o B S 1,414,524 6,565,280
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 5 EP R R 2 T8 = (77,001)
Consolidated revenue from continuing and REBERDKIECEEBL 2
discontinued operations tre Was 1,414,524 6,488,279
Loss before taxation from continuing and discontinued REFENERIEREER 2 R AIER
operations
2015 2014
—E-HF —=—{F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
(Restated)
€ ==))
Reportable segment loss before taxation Al 3RE D BT RS (7,604,953) (638,164)
Elimination of inter-segment profit 73 BB B A2 % 35 = 497
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses ROMB R RARIFAX (20,087) (15,215)
Net finance costs BIISRAF 58 (412,662) (524,768)
Consolidated loss before taxation from continuing REZFER DR ILELEK Y
and discontinued operations (included gain on  4RA& KT AIEIE
disposal of subsidiaries) (BRELEWB AR W)
(8,037,702) (1,177,656)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MRIRRMEE
31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinueD) 4 DEHE

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, loss before  (b) R B ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂ%iﬁé‘é“%ﬁﬂﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂy\
taxation from continuing and discontinued operations, iz - BRBEAEE EEREEYHER

assets and liabilities (continued) (%)
Assets BE
2015 2014
—E-HF —FT-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARBFIT
Reportable segment assets AIREDBEE 5,685,578 15,294,250
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 B Pl FE W AR 5k 2 4 8 (381,224) (434,207)
Deferred tax assets FRIER IR B E 690 19,384
Unallocated assets RO EE 5,738 1742
Consolidated total assets EEERE 5,310,782 14,881,169
(==
Liabilities afE
2015 2014
—E-HF = —lF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Reportable segment liabilities AMmEDHEE 10,921,163 12,210,222
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7 2B FEAS BR 3 2 1 H (1,251,696) (1,086,257)
Tax payable FERT AR IE 236,438 247145
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEA E 23,442 1,138,474
Unallocated liabilities APDEBE 10,831 5,243
Consolidated total liabilities e aERE 9,940,178 12,514,827
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinueD)
(c) Geographic information

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s total assets are primarily
dominated by assets handling its coal business and shipping
transportation business. The coal is sold primarily to the PRC
domestic customers and investments in most of the coal mines
are physically located in the PRC. At 31 December 2014, before the
disposal of port business, the port is physically located in the PRC.
Therefore, related assets and liabilities are almost all located in
the PRC. The vessels are primarily deployed across geographical
markets for shipping transportation throughout the world. As a
result, the directors of the Company consider that it will not be
meaningful to allocate the Group's assets and their related capital
expenditure to specific geographical segments. Accordingly,
geographical segment information is only presented for revenue,
which is based on the geographical location of customers.

Revenue from external customers from continuing and
discontinued operations

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

D ERERE @)

(c) BHESH

RZZE—RE+A=+—H xEEHE
BETZREEHRRESKMEERER
MEE -RKEBETHEBEARTFS - Ki
DRBREEL FURHE - R-F—M4F
TZA=1T—R8 REEBOXRKH - B0
APEEAR - Bt - HENEERBEE
FREFUATE - BT EREREBEAD
R fE M IS A o Bt - ARBEFAR
ARSI D AKEEERERAE
ARX T EEE - Bt - RIREPAEMIE
NEFENWNEZESIED EER

REFERCRLRBEXBHIIBES
6

2015 2014

—E—-HE —ZE—[OE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

PRC s 1,303,629 6,376,090
Other countries EmBER 110,895 112,189
Total =i 1,414,524 6,488,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTiNuED)
(d) Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, revenue
derived only from the following customers in coal business segment
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue
are as follows:

4 DEIRE @

d BERFEEFZEHR
REBEE_ZT—AFE-FT—NF+=A=+
—HLEFE  EXHEAEEREBIB10%
Z TR EBDHE AW EAT

2015 2014
—E-HF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Customer A ZEA 270,085 615,452
Customer B =FB 228,147 742,843
Customer C EFC N/A 7~EH 925,420
Customer D =FD N/A REH 680,572

5 REVENUE 5 W=

Revenue for the year mainly represents the sales of coal and
charter hire income.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
during the year is as follows:

RERWSF RIEHERRAOBARHBEKA -

RENEANSERR RS SEHIINT

2015 2014
=F-IfF —F-MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
(Restated)
(&&E7))

Continuing operations HEREEK
Sales of coal BEIR 8H & 1,220,485 6,292,314
Charter hire income e WA 156,722 157,132
1,377,207 6,449,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

6 OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

6 HWA - KRERkEE

2015 2014
—ZE-hHF | Z2—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e ARBT R | AR T
Continuing operations BEREEK
Leasing income HERA - 103,125
Government subsidies BB E 0) 3,237 7111
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net PN Wz (B E) - F8E 6,653 (16,975)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries and associates  H &M B AT &< AT
Z IR (2,751)| (162,585)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE¥ BEMEZEZ
Yoz 3,174 -
Fair value gain on capitalisation of payables SRR RER 2
DA EWEE (ii) 3,051 -
Others HAt 4,017 22,526
17,381 (46,798)
(i) The Group received unconditional subsidies from local () AEERFRNESEHBUTHEKREHE

government during the years as recognition of the Group’s
contribution to the development of local economy.

(i) The Group capitalised certain payables as quasi-capital as
disclosed in Note 30(d). The fair value gain represented the fair
value of the shares to be issued at quoted market price over the
carrying amount of payables extinguished.

PE ERRBAKREYEHKERR

FRYERRL -

(i) NEEHE TRNERENMESEER
(FBANPH TE30(d) P R ) -
1% P R T (B 317 IR {n 1Y

DA EWEE
NAEBHE

HREMRRNEEENSE o

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

7 NET FINANCE COSTS

7 PBARAFEE

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(g&=51)
Continuing operations RSB ETE
Interest income FEYA (2,826) (50,228)
Interest on borrowings BEEF S 400,741 630,675
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts FERR 2 NS (FEE29)
(Note 29) 4,354 5,224
Less: interest capitalised into property, W BB REERE
plant and equipment* B AL F B+ (51,206) (131,133)
353,889 504,766
Bank charges RITEM 16,914 61,552
Finance costs B TS AR AR 370,803 566,318
Net finance costs B TSR AN ) F 58 367,977 516,090
*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.75% per * EERADIRFENE75% (ZE—MFE

annum (2014:6.97%-10.87%).

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

7
6.97%210.87%) EAAL °



131

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

(a) Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8 BRBIAIEIE

(a) RBATEIEEHIBR /(FFA) LT &RIE :

2015 2014
—E-&F¥ —F-WF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
(Restated)
€S==))
Continuing operations HEREEK
Cost of inventories (Note (i) PR (FEEG)) 1,911,228 6,542,537
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value FEMR = &7 5E 35,542 35,650
Minimum lease payments under operating lease: KERE N o &ERENK -

— properties — 21,505 21,674

- vessels — MM 8,198 46,139
Depreciation for the property, plant and equipment M - BERZETE 210,340 170,966
Amortisation of coal mining rights (Note 16(ii)) IR S (PERE16() 12,480 43,407
Amortisation of lease prepayments (Note 17) TEEFEMEERES (FsE17) 140 140
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN

- audit services — BERZRE 2,108 2,000

- non-audit services — IEEIL RS 1,116 950
Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ and EERIAY (TEIEEER

chief executive’s remuneration) (Note 11) B TBAEME) (FisE11)

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - HelkEMmEH 257,316 251,451
Contribution to defined contribution plan B ERBAREE 31,936 23,577
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LR A AR ) BEFER R
3 14,562 443
303,814 275,471
(b) Other expenses (b) HApEsz
Impairment losses on property, plant and W - BERREREREE

equipment (Note 15) (FF&E15) 3,067,505 18,674
Impairment losses on coal mining rights xR R EEE (MiE16)

(Note 16) 2,678,444 =
Impairment losses on interests in associates MBS QR 2 EmRERE 70,705 19,333
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment) EUE Z R FRERE

on trade receivables (Note 22) CRE#E) (KzE22) 502,479 (9,011)
Impairment losses on prepayments and FEAT BR 30 B E A FE Y BR SR

other receivables (Note 23) WEEE (H5E23) 394,855 42136
Property, plant and equipment written-off ME - BB R ERIEME

(Note 15) (M43E15) 204 48
Others — HAh 46,226 6,482

6,760,418 77662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (conTinuED)

(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB378,772,000 (2014:
RMB376,269,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each
of these types of expenses.

9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(a) Income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated statement

8 KRFAIEE @

() TEXRABIFEEES THRA -« ITEREH
Fi > HRIRI A R #378,772,0007T (=&
— P4 AR#376,269,0007T) © B
CEMEFTARSZERTERR EX

EERBOERLEE -
9 FEH (ER) BX

(a) FEZEBRARABNFAES (ER) 5

of comprehensive income represents: X5
2015 2014
—E-1F —EF—lF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(ge=51)
Continuing operations BEREXK
Current tax expense ENEAR I8 F 2
- PRC Corporate Income Tax — PR EATERN 2 29,170
- Qver-provision of PRC Corporate Income Tax — BEFEREDEMEH
in prior years RER R (9,189) (86,990)
Deferred tax (Note 19) EERIE (FFE19) (1,096,338) 172,237
(1,105,525) 114,417

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries did not
have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the year (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continueD)

(a) Income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(iii) No provision for income tax has been made for the subsidiary

located in Macau as the subsidiary did not have assessable
profits subject to income tax in Macau during the year (2014:
Nil). The Group disposed of its entire interest in the subsidiary
located in Macau during the year (Note 32).

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on
the statutory rate of 25% (2014: 25%) of the assessable profits
of subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, 10%
(2014: 10%) withholding tax is levied on the foreign investor
in respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profits earned after 1 January 2008.
As at 31 December 2015, there are no temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries
(2014: RMB30,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company determined that it is probable that undistributed
profits of these PRC subsidiaries will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

9 FrEH (BR) BXwm

(a) MEZHEWARANFFES (%), B
XiE @
(iii) R PR PRI B A R F A ET

{A] P& AR P PR 1S B A FE SR B0 ) (=
T ) - HAKREWE SR
SUHIELEE AEEERFALEHR
FORFIM B AR 2 EiiE (FEE32) -

(iv) PEIBERMER DERPBEREERZ

M B A7 2 FERR B E PR A E R E25%
(ZE—FE : 25%) {EHBHE -

BIBEFBECEMGRE  INHRIEEEE
MIMNELER—_TTZNF—A—B#ER
BARMMEENKREDKIZHE10%
(ZZE—MF :10%) BAHENFHE - B
—E-RE+-_A=+—08B HEAHA
R B 2B A B B9 1 BT 900K i ) R B = B
(ZZE—M%F : AR¥30,0005T) - AR
AAREHEERARRRTEDRZE
N = RN S S 19 o R Qe i 3
MADIRZERR )& H A HTEN
RIERRELHRBAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MRIRRMEE
31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (conTinuED)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and

9 Fif8H (E&)  BxXw
(b) HEBRABRFE 2 FEH (ER),BX

loss before taxation at applicable tax rates: KRB AIE R 2R ¢
2015 2014
—E-RF —EF—lF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
(Restated)
(g=51)
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Loss before taxation K F R AR (8,033,305) (1,176,823)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, HRABRABERGTENRTATIEED
calculated at the applicable tax rates HENIA (1,922,910) (189,621)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RIER 2 RBAHIEBE 2 B
(Note 19(a)) T2 (Ff3E19(a) 662,300 218,179
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PRIHBF X 2 RIS 2 164,274 30,680
Reversal of tax loss recognised (Note 19(a)) BB mRNIEEE (F19(a)) - 142,169
Over-provision of PRC Corporate Income Tax in prior @A FE R B ESHBEEG
years (9,189) (86,990)
Income tax (credit)/expense PRSH (%), Fx (1,105,525) 114,417

10 DISCONTINUED OPERATION

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional disposal
agreement with Zhuhai Port Logistics Centre Co., Limited, a wholly

10 CRIEEEET
On 26 June 2015, Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Limited, a wholly owned R _—ZF—RAFRNAZ+ B EBRELEHA

owned subsidiary of Zhuhai Port Holdings Group Co., Limited to B AT Al B R H &=

dispose of its 60% of the equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co.,
Limited (“Zhuhai Port”) for a cash consideration of RMB350,000,000
(the “Disposal”). Zhuhai Port Holdings Group Co., Limited is the
non-controlling shareholder of Zhuhai Port who owned 40% of the

equity interest in Zhuhai Port immediately before the Disposal.
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E%%o 000,000CHHEERKERBEEHKER
N ([BREBIE]) 260%KE ((HEEFE]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (conTinuED)

Zhuhai Port was incorporated in the PRC and is principally engaged
in provision of port services. The Disposal was completed on 7
August 2015. The Disposal constitutes a discontinued operation as
Zhuhai Port represents the port business of the Group, a separate
major line of business.

The results for the period from 1 January 2015 and up to the date of
disposal and for the year ended 31 December 2014 were as follows:

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

10 BRIEREEIE )

ARSI RR MY - FERFIREED
Rg - HESHEER-_Z2—AFNALBTK
HEEHEEBK —HAORILEESER  AAKES
BRERAEERMEOER  B— KB EEERK

BE-ZE-AF A HREZLERHIEHEE
(ZE_T-MFE+_A=1+—HILFENEEN

I
2015 2014
—E-&F —F-WF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue W= 37,317 38,833
Cost of sales SHE R A (67,557) (25,959)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8),/ ER (30,240) 12,874
Other income, gains and losses HAa WA - s REE 2,012 -
Administrative expenses TTEREY (2,318) (5,029)
Results from operating activities REXBEE (30,546) 7,845
Finance income B 18 291
Finance costs BT R AR (44,703) (8,969)
Net finance costs MR AR (44,685) (8,678)
Loss before taxation RRBiATES 18 (75,231) (833)
Income tax expense FrefiFx = (240)
Loss after taxation BB EE (75,231) (1,073)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & B A Rz W 70,834 -
Loss for the year from discontinued operation RECRLEEERZFAEBE (4,397) (1,073)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued ELREERIEREEK >
operation attributable to: FRBER,(BR)
Equity shareholders of the Company RREMERFFE A 25,695 (644)
Non-controlling interests e R (30,092) (429)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REERLIEREEECFAFBE (4,397) (1,073)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

10 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (conTinuED)

The net cash flows of the discontinued operation for the period
from 1 January 2015 and up to the date of disposal and for the year

11

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

ended 31 December 2014 were as follows:

10 841t

B-ZE-AF A RAREELERHIEHER
BHE_T-—MF+_A=+—RHILFENERILL

5 90

REXRGREREFEAT

2015 2014
—_E—FHEF —E—POF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Net cash used in operating activities KEEREBFAR S8 (10,243) (190,503)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing ®EES (FTR),/ 3R <758
activities (1,094) 1,083
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing MEED (FTA) FisHReF8E
activities (300) 162,606
Net cash used in discontinued operation ERIEEEEBMAR ST (11,637) (26,814)
P
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1M EERTHRARMS
REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: EEME 2FBOT
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances toretirement
and benefits benefit Share-based 2015
Directors' fee inkind schemes Sub-total payment Total
e 2K BIRER NRARER
EZHe ENER AR gt PAES @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors EEfs AR¥ETR AR¥ETT AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT
Executive directors HTES
Mr.Xu i 632 740 24 1,396 - 1,396
Ms. Wang Jianfei (Note (i) FaREL (i) 632 496 18 1,146 - 1146
Mr. Weng Li (Note (i) DUKE (M3EGD) 129 127 1 257 - 257
Mr. Ma Baofeng SRERE 633 734 - 1,367 - 1,367
Mr.Xu Da gL 298 372 4 674 - 674
Mr. Bai Tao (Note (J) BELE (W) 449 531 6 986 - 986
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Huang Guosheng BEBLE 120 - - 120 76 196
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen HHRLE 303 - - 303 76 379
Mr. Xing Zhiying MEaLE 120 - - 120 76 196
3,316 3,000 53 6,369 228 6,597
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

MEBEERTHAZME @

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  toretirement
and benefits benefit Share-based 2014
Directors fee in kind schemes Sub-total payment Total
Hé 2R RIAER IR BER “T-ME
B ENER HE NGt pANE S &t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
Name of directors X ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HTER
Mr. Xu Gy 670 1,001 9 1,680 - 1,680
Ms. Wang Jianfei (Note (i) TR L () 670 635 2 1,307 - 1307
Ms. Liu Xiaomei (Note (i) Bzt (ki) 231 114 2 347 - 347
Mr. Weng Li (Note (ii) Sk (FzED) 516 463 3 982 - 982
Mr. Ma Baofeng (Note (iv) SREZE (W) 104 245 - 349 40 389
Mr. Xu Da (Note (iv) BERE (Feki) 52 9% 1 151 - 151
Mr. Bai Tao (Note (i) and (iv) RERE (M) RV) 52 11 1 164 - 164
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUEHTEE
Mr. Huang Guosheng BEBLE 286 - - 286 - 286
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen %J%fﬁiﬁ{ 286 - - 286 - 286
Mr. Xing Zhiying EREE 286 - - 286 - 286
3153 2,667 18 5,838 40 5,878
(i) Ms. Wang Jianfei, an executive director of the Company, resigned as () AR TEESTIRZEITR_ZE—RF+
the chief executive of the Company on 10 December 2015. On the same “ATHBAEARA&ESITHRAE - AR
day, Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the Company, was appointed ARBRITESAHEEERZEAA R A&
as the chief executive of the Company. Their remuneration disclosed BITHRAE ° A W5 2 Bl & B 35 4th 9 1E
above includes those for services rendered by them as the chief BARRETHRHRERS 2B -
executive of the Company.
(i) Mr. Weng Li resigned as an executive director of the Company on 8 (i) BUEFER-_ZE—RAFNANEBEHIEAR
April 2015. WITES -
(i) Ms. Liu Xiaomei resigned as an executive director of the Company on 9 (i) Y\ TR=T—EmF+ANBBEELRR

October 2014.

(iv) Mr.Xu Da, Mr. Ma Baofeng and Mr. Bai Tao were appointed as executive
directors of the Company on 9 October 2014.

There were no amounts paid during the year (2014: Nil) to the
directors in connection with their retirement from employment with
the Group, or inducement to join.

(iv)

FA AR
REBREABZE

T—

BELE BREAERATHALIR T —
R RARAE AR AR it

o

AT EAESENEMERES
K IR Bk (E 7] hN BE 228 (—

P04 : &) o
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e EmEME
31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

12 EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
include two (2014: two) directors of the Company, whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details
of remuneration paid to the remaining three (2014: three) highest
paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

12 EEREREEAETHMH

12 S %

FR - ARERRRSFH A LBEARAR
AlZMA(ZE-—HEFE: mR) BEF KRS
ZEHBRIA LA 2] - MAKEESRRS
=R (ZE—WEFE: =ZR) FMALINZ
BT

2015 2014

—E-REF —E—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZBEREMER 2,422 4,743
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RGBT B R 19 3
Discretionary bonuses IBTELL - 420
Share-based payment PARRD BETE 2 R 4,006 =
6,447 5,166

The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Hep =% (ZZ2—mF
o

P ZR) mEPMALTZ

2015 2014

—F-EF | ZTAF

Number of Number of

HKD individuals individuals
BIT A AE
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 2
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 =
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 1 -

There were no amounts paid during the year (2014: Nil) to the five
highest paid employees in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

12 EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (conTinuED)

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the senior management of the Group, eight (2014: nine) were the
directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosure above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2014:
three) for the year ended 31st December, 2015 were within the

122 BEERSREBAEFM @

BREEASEHH

AEBZEREBAE B N\L(ZF—
ME: i) BES  BEZHFHERER
UNEZHE -BE " T—RAF+_A=+—
BIEFE EHHB=f (ZFT—WNF: =f1)

following bands: AN ZHBM BT
2015 2014
—E-a% —F-WEF
Number of Number of
HKD individuals individuals
BT A ANEL
1-500,000 1 2
500,001 - 1,000,000 - 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

13 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 13 HbZEUW A
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive HEm2mEmBAMNSEKBLNRBEEE
income:
2015 2014
“B-1f —T-IE
Tax Tax
Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
P8 () BE (2d)/
HacH g HEeH Raes Wz fikes®

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR | ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

Foreign currency translation differences BNEBEL 2 NEHE

for foreign operations 8 30,799 - 30,799 263 - 263
Foreign currency translation differences HENBRARRENIEA

reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal ~ BREMERE £

of subsidiaries (4,438) = (4,438) - - -
Other comprehensive income EfhZEMA 26,361 - 26,361 263 - 263

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 5% (B518)  BF

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREARE®RE (&58) 2R
The calculations of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the FRER (BI8)  BIMIENRNERNKAT L
(loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the BRESEAAREN (BE) O8N RERITYE
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in BAREINFE Bt E o

issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on GRS (B1E), /B BENAN T EimiE
the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the B AFEWN (BB),HSHEtE - TmAkin
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is the e AFANDBITEMREE - IR
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year and assumed AR L B AR ATTE R ER A
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise TR AERBERITA T @AREE -

or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueD)

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued)

As the Company’s outstanding share options and perpetual
subordinated convertible securities had an anti-dilutive effect to
the diluted (loss)/earnings per share calculation for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014, the conversion of the above potential
dilutive shares is not assumed in the computation of diluted (loss)/
earnings per share.

The basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2014 has been adjusted to reflect the placing of
shares during the year.

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 are based on the following data:

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

14 8K (F8)  BF @

(i)

BREAREE (BR) &R @
EEEAZIK B2 RAT R AR Bk AR A AT 2

EFHBE T -RAFR-_T-HF+—
H +— Etif‘!ﬂxﬁﬁfé (&1#]) /&7
METEAGREENE  AESREE (B
8),/ &7 Bﬂlﬂifﬁj“iL/ EEERMNE
B -

HE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+t—RHIFENE
BEARKREE (E18),/ BFELEHAE UK
BRE AN ERE -

REFERCRIEREEK
&E:%*£¢&:§*E¢+—ﬂ*+*
AEFEARRREBERFE ABGERE
$&%%EEB%KMT%FJ%-

2015 2014
—F-HF| ZF-0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
(Restated)
(s E5)
Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders N2 BlkEzs 158 A FE(LENEE
of the Company (6,011,184) (1,183,426)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual Do ﬁﬁ%’“*ﬁﬁﬁé KA
subordinated convertible securities NGRSk e
classified as equity (Note 30(c)) (W%BO c)) (4,728) (4,628)
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity RArlLBEREE ABIGFEA
shareholders of the Company Eﬂﬁ (6,015,912) (1,188,054)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the st E &I EA K #EE & BT A
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share I AR nAE 19 2R 2127,243,347 | 2,118,294,542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EmEME
31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueD)
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued)

(ii)

From continuing operations

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 are based on the following data:

14 8K (B8), BF @

(i) REFELEE

E%

BREAREE (BB EF @

HE_ZT-—HFAR_FT-OF+T_HA=1+—
BIEFERRREBESFE ARGERE
RREEBRDERATEIRAE ¢

2015 2014
—E-IF —F-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
(Restated)
(#=751)
Loss for the year from continuing operations RARERRE ABGREFE
attributable to equity shareholders of the BEEBHFANBRE
Company (6,036,879) (1182,782)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual W BN ERER KA
subordinated convertible securities classified IR AR TE FH 2 DIk
as equity (Note 30(c)) (P EE30(c)) (4,728) (4,628)
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity RRal L BEREE ARG
shareholders of the Company REFELEEBHFEAN
& (6,041,607) (1187,410)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share

AAEBREANEGERAA
BN 52K

2,127,243,347

2,118,294,542

(iii) From discontinued operation

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are based on the

following data:

(i) RECKLE
BE_ZT-AFKZFOF+-A=+—
BIEFEARRERERHA ABEERE
AREERF (BR) THERAT SR

=
Ean

2015 2014

= —F-MF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARETT

(Restated)

(s&E:7)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation AR TR FEAEERED
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the 4% |F &L XN E R F

Company (&18) 25,695 (644)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purpose of basic and diluted loss per share

A HEEREAR M EEE RN A
BB AT 8

2,127,243,347

2,118,294,542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—HR%E+—-A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 % - RERRZE
Electronic Assets
Plantand and other Motor Mining under
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles Vessels structures Port  construction Total
BERET BE STREMRE e % REREN &0 EREE &3t

RMB000 RMB000 RMBO0D RMB000 RMB000 RMBO0D RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AR%TT  ARMTn  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Cost A
At 1January 2014 RZE-EF-f-A 588,460 617,384 39,165 142,003 1,250,910 1,284,133 = 2,769,988 6,692,043
Additions WE 1,050 93,686 1,629 5321 5126 = = 1,328,299 1,435,011
Transferred from assets under BALRLE
construction 456,470 720,082 4,848 20,700 - 619,816 1,333,384 (3,155,300) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE-HHEAR
(Mh3E32) (5,496) (10720) (303) (883) - (253,019) - (71.805) (342,226)
Written-off e = = (230) - - - - - (230)
Bxchange differences EXES - = = 6 2948 - - - 2,954
At 31 December 2014 and 1January ~ RZE-ME+=-A
2015 =t-BR
“Z-1f
-A-H 1,040,484 1,420,432 45,009 167147 1,258,984 1,650,930 1,333,384 871,182 7787552
Additions WE 2177 1164 1,341 10,594 34119 52,262 1,076 350,031 452,764
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—ANEAT
(Fz32) (1,278) (446,599) (990) (2,849) - = (1,334,460) - (1,786,166)
Disposals ik (15,257) = (10) (1,860) = = = - (17127)
Witten-off ik - - - - (191) = - (141) (332)
Bxchange differences ENZER 28 - - 78 37889 - - - 37995
At31 December 2015 RZF-RF+2A
== 1,026,154 975,003 45,350 173,114 1,330,801 1703192 = 1,221,072 0,474,686
Accumulated depreciation and ZitTERAERE
impairment losses
At 1January 2014 RZF-BE-A-A (42.913) (116,991) (11,049) (47195) (336,736) (28,483) = = (583,367)
Charge forthe year ERiE (15,08¢) (60.251) (2662) (22454) 155,339) (16309 (3704 - (176609
Impairment losses BEEA (10161) (859) (7660) = = = = = (18,674)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) LE-HHBAR
(F&32) 317 6,827 300 878 = 11,13 = = 19,435
Witten-off ik = = 182 = = = = = 182
Exchange differences EfzE - - - = (361) - - - (361)
At31 December 2014and 1 January  R=B—ME+=A
2015 =t-Ak
ZZ-1%
-A-H (68,641) (171,268) (20,889) (68.771) (392,436) (33,679) (3704) = (759,388)
Charge for the year FRfE (32,604) (98.897) (4512 (20741) (70,281) (8,961) (25,944) = (261,940)
Impairment losses HEER (536,940) (450,686) (16,611) (49,604) (218,665) (999.173) - (795,826) (3,067.605)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—FHELR
(F3Es2) 29 26,513 470 2152 = = 29,648 = 5,012
Disposals HE = = 9 1755 - - - - 1764
Written-off ik - - - - 128 - - - 128
Bxchange differences ERES (20 - - (51) (8,699) - - = (8766)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-R%+2A
=t-H (637976) (694,338) (41,633) (135,260) (669,949 (1,041,813) = (795,826) (4,036,695)
Carrying amounts AR
At31 December 2014 RZE-ME+A
E=F 971,843 1,249,164 24120 98,376 866,548 1,617,251 1,329,680 871,182 7,028,164
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1F+2A
=t-A 388,178 280,665 3817 37854 640,852 661,379 = 425,246 2437991

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTinuep)

The title certificates for certain items of plant and buildings
with an aggregate carrying amounts of RMB399,047,000 (2014:
RMB937,995,000) as at 31 December 2015 are yet to be obtained.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use the above mentioned
properties and therefore the aforesaid matter did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31
December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a
segmental loss in the shipping transportation segment, as a result,
the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of its vessels as at 31
December 2015. The carrying amounts of the vessels were written
down to their recoverable amount of RMB640,852,000. An impairment
loss of RMB218,665,000 was recognised in other expenses of the
shipping transportation segment. The estimates of recoverable
amount of the vessels were based on the vessels' fair value less costs
of disposal with reference to a professional valuation report issued by
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers. The fair value is
determined using market comparison approach by reference to recent
market prices of second-hand vessels of similar tonnage and usage,
adjusted for differences in tonnage and remaining useful lives. The fair
value on which the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a
level 3 measurement. The key assumption used to determine the fair
value less cost of disposal is that the management expected the sales
of the vessels would be completed on 31 December 2015 and these
second-hand vessels used as comparable are comparative to the
vessels of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, as the result of the continuously
unfavourable coal market circumstances and sustained operating
loss of coal business segment, the Group assessed the recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment, together with coal
mining rights of coal business segment the Group.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, each coal mine
constituted the smallest CGU, as a result, property, plant and
equipment, together with coal mining rights related to each CGU
are assessed for impairment independently.

The estimates of recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, together with coal mining rights of coal business
segment were based on their value in use with reference to
respective professional valuation reports issued by an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers.
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15 % - BMERZRE @
NR_E—RFE+_A=T—HHEEEMEA
R #399,047,000c (ZZE — M F: AR
937,995,0007T) WA TY% - BERZHEIEE
MERTZTENRES - ARAEERELAEES
BEEREBUEESER LS - At - £t
EEEAEBRNR T —AF+-_A=+—HHNH
EARR W EEMEARTE o

REBEE-_TE—AF+-_A=+—HLEFE " K
SEXMESIBHEGOIEE - At - A5 EF
FEEMMR —E—RAFE+_—_A=+—HMAK
E&%E - MMEEEMREEATKESEARE
640,852,0007T ° JA{E & B AR %218,665,000
TTHERAMESBHEMAS - el lkE &
BIE2ER T EXGHEMAFBRE 2 EXHE
BRERERMMANALEBEREER KGR - A0
BEN2ZEUMEN R BN —FHMNRoms
BFERAMIZYHLEEE - WARRBEA & FIRE
FAEREBNEE - sTERESBAKEZA
AEREAEE=HARENE - AREEAAE
BEERANEERIAEEEHEHHEEMME
—T-RF+-_A=+—HxK  M&ZIEAL
BH —FMM e B AREE MM ELLER o

R-ZE-—RAF+-A=+—H BREXRTSE
RSB MR ER D SRR L RE 258 -
AEBMEERREGDEME - BB REREE
[RCR PR ER AR AR A P U (2] 88 o

RABEERA  BEKEBERKNESELE
i - At - W% - BEARBERERSRSE
ALY R BRI AR OB S TR ERT S

BRIRES D BYE - BE MREERK KRR
A e BA A DERBRFHAEREE
SEHRNBUEXSERGEMTHANER
fHEHRSFEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTiNUED) 15 % - BERFE @
The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and coal I - R Mo 3% 8 DA I B Ik BRTE R A ] Lk B
mining rights had been allocated as follows: SHEEENTHR :

As at 31 December 2015
R-Z2—HE+=-HA=+—H

Recoverable Recoverable

amount amount

Pre-tax allocated to allocated to
discount rate Recoverable coal mining property, plant
of CGU amount of CGU rights and equipment

PBEF PETFYE-
ReELEN HREELEN BEREEEN BERREN
WHAEEIRE MNURE£E G E = G ek
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AR¥ TR AR®TF T

(Note 16(iii))

CGU ReELSBN (MfzE16(iii))
Xingtao Coal Mine B T 14.0% 1,050,000 745,011 304,989
Fengxi Coal Mine 5P 15.4% 1,298,000 675,000 623,000
Chongsheng Coal Mine SHETE 14.3% 914,000 343,827 570,173
Hongyuan Coal Mine RIR R 16.3% 233,000 69,000 164,000
Xinglong Coal Mine 0 22 T 15.8% 219,000 109,870 109,130
3,714,000 1,942,708 1,771,292
As a result, an impairment loss of RMB2,848,840,000 was At - BEEE AR?2,848,840,0007T HE
recognised in other expenses. RAEEMES -
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s property, plant and R-E—REFE+_A=1+—H8 A&E£EKER
equipment with carrying amount of RMB1,003,099,000 (2014: BAARE1,003,099,0007T (ZZ—PM4E :
RMB4,395,220,000) were pledged for borrowings (Note 28). ANE# 4 395,220,000) 9 - BE NL&ME

RIEMAEBEE (HfFE28) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

16 COAL MINING RIGHTS 16 J& ix BRIEE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost RS
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—HWHFE—HA—H 5,083,546
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) mE—FMHBAR (F3E32) (306,674)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 and RZZE—OE+A=+—HK
31 December 2015 —E-RF—A—HER
—F-HA%+=-A=t—-8B 4,776,872
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses 2B RRERER
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—HNF—H—H (112,146)
Charge for the year (Note (ii)) FREH () (43,407)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) &R B AR (M:E32) 12,313
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZFE—WOF+=ZA=+—HK
—T—H&F—H—H (143,240)
Charge for the year (Note (i) FREE (D)) (12,480)
Impairment losses BEEE (2,678,444)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H (2,834,164)
Carrying amounts ARTEE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MFE+=A=+—H 4,633,632
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—hF+-HA=+—H 1,942,708
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 COAL MINING RIGHTS (conTinueD)

(i)

The balance represents the rights to conduct mining activities
in Shanxi Province. The mine sites are located on land in the
PRC to which the Group has no formal title of certain pieces of
land. The Department of Land Resources of Shanxi Province
issued and renewed several mining rights certificates to the
Group. Details of the Group’s coal mining rights are as follows:

Coal mining rights Expiry date
Xingtao Coal Mine 14 October 2018
Fengxi Coal Mine 24 January 2034
Chongsheng Coal Mine 14 October 2018
Xinglong Coal Mine 29 February 2016
Hongyuan Coal Mine 12 July 2016

Up to the date of the consolidated financial statements, coal
mining rights of Xinglong Coal Mine were expired. Management
is in the process of renewing this certificate. With reference to
the legal opinion received by the management, there is no legal
barrier for the Group to renew its mining rights certificates.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will be able to continuously renew the mining
rights and the business licenses of respective mining
subsidiaries at minimal charges.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed
its entire equity interest in Shanxi Hun Yuan Ruifeng Coal
Co., Ltd (“Ruifeng Coal”), including the coal mining rights with
carrying amount of RMB294,361,000 (Note 32).

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

16 B ERIERE @

(i) RBEHENUAEFAREKBEBXEBOER -
BHSUNFEEL F AEETEET
EEMmEEAFE - WAEBELTERE
MAEBERENEELHREEZS -
AEBRRBEENFBLT

BRR SRR FHH

E 1) 1 1 —Z-N\Ft+HA+mA
TP e —T-mE-A-tWA
SRTT R —E-)N\Ft+AtHEAE

[ TR —E-RNE-A=-tAhA
RiEEE —E—XFELA+=H

BEARAMSEREE - BEREOER
RBECEHN  CREIEEZRE - 22
EREFEARE R  AEE SRR
BB YA -

At - "AREERAANEERERELRER
EEREESKRENB AR NRERE L E
R

RBE_E—NME+_A=+—HILFEE -
AEBERELAERERAKEEERETA
) ((REEE] N2BRE  BEFEAEA
R #294,361,000 T Fy KL ik R IE#E 2 BRI
(PfsE32) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

16 ERIRTERE @
(i) ERREEEEHOHEBPERREE - N

16 COAL MINING RIGHTS (conTinueD)

(i) Amortisation of the coal mining rights is based on the

units-of-production method, utilising only proved coal
reserves in the depletion base. Amortisation expenses of
RMB12,480,000 (2014: RMB43,407,000) have been charged in
cost of sales.

(iii) As at 31 December 2015, as the result of the continuously

unfavourable coal market circumstances and sustained
operating loss coal business segment, the Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment,
together with coal mining rights of coal business segment as
disclosed in Note 15. As a result, the carrying amount of coal
mining rights was written down to their recoverable amount of
RMB1,942,708,000. An impairment loss of RMB2,678,444,000
was recognised in other expenses.

(iv) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s coal mining rights

with carrying amount of RMB1,942,708,000 (2014:
RMB4,633,632,000) were pledged for borrowings (Note 28).

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

FERREER A EEBEMA TR - A
R#12,480,000c (ZE—WMF : AR
¥643,407,00070) < MY B AH
B o

(i R=ZF—AF+_A=+—H8 AR

IRTIB B RFETF R E k%55 204
BHALEEE  ASEFTEYE W
5 T2 5% 8 DA Je o ok SE 7 0 BB B IR ER IR
R AUk Bl 258 GRAFIEE15ATIHEE) -
It R ERIERE 2 BREEMUR E B AT
@458 AR%1,942,708,0007T ° JR{EE
BARM?2,678,444,000T R A M5
§ o

vy R=ZBE—RE+=-A=+—8 ' £58

BEEEAARE1,942,708,000T (=&
— P4 : AR¥4,633,632,0007T) K&
IR IRIRAESEES (H5F28) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

17 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 HEFRMERM
Sea Land use
use rights rights Total
I 5 A T AR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARET T
Cost A
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 20714 EA T—MFE—-—H—H -
and 1 January 2015 —MFE+=—HA=+—H
&_ Z—h&—H—H 45,971 84,982 130,953
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—FHEBAR (KFE32) (45,971) (77,984) (123,955)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+-_A=+—H e 6998 6,998
Accumulated amortisation HotEes
At 1 January 2014 RZE—NFE—H—H = (1,505) (1,505)
Charge for the year (Note (i) FREESE (MFEG) = (140) (140)
Amortisation capitalised in assets FREEAEFEEACEH
under construction (Note (i) (BF3EG)) (3,905) (12,482) (16,387)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January RZZE—HE+_HA=+—H
2015 F_E—RAF—H—H (3,905) (14127) (18,032)
Charge for the year (Note (i)) FRBHE (MEEG) (536) (1,050) (1,586)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE K BAR (MiE32) 4,441 13,392 17,833
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-—AF+-A=+—H = (1,785) (1,785)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+_A=+—H 42,066 70,855 112,921
At 31 December 2015 R_E—RF+_HA=+—H - 5,213 5,213
() During the year ended 31 December 2015, amortisation () REE-E—FHFE+-_A=+—HI1%

expenses of RMB1,446,000 and RMB140,000 have been
charged in cost of sales and administrative expenses
respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
amortisation expenses of RMB16,387,000 and RMB140,000
have been capitalised into assets under construction and
charged in administrate expenses respectively.

(i) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s lease prepayments with
carrying amount of RMB5,213,000 (2014: RMB5,353,000) were
pledged for borrowings (Note 28).

(if)

E o BB ARE,446,000T R AR
140,000 B A E D RIFTABEE
KARTHERES RBEE-_T—NF
+-A=Z+—BHLFEE BEARE
16,387,000 & A R #140,0007T &) &
HALEPRBREEEREE KT A
THRAX -

R-EBE—RFE+_A=+—H K&£HE
BRMEEAARES,213,0007T (ZZ—Y
£ AR¥5,353,000T) WA EFENEE
SRR A BB EE (MizE28) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REEE N T 2R
2015 2014
—E-FHF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Listed investments: WA

Listed shares, at cost TR - R E - 52,444
Share of losses FE(EEs1E = (27,279)
Impairment loss (Note (i) RERBE (MEE6) = (19,333)
Exchange differences MEH =R = (4179)
- 1,653

Unlisted investments: ELMIRE
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRG - BRAE 49,000 71,806
Share of (loss)/profit FEAE (B518) & F) (2,433) 4,089
Impairment loss (Note (ii)) BEEE (BEEG)) (46,567) -
Exchange differences MEH =5 = (281)
- 75,614
- 77,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinueD) 18 REEE N2 w)
The following list contains the particulars of associates, which TREVNEEXEREEXEREENRE
principally affected the results or assets of the Group: NAElFE

Proportion of ownership interest

REEERLA
Principal
Place of Listed/ Group's Held by activities and
establishment/ unlisted effective the Held by place
Name of associate incorporation company interest Company a subsidiary of operation
R,/ &M EW/kLEw r5E TEEBR
HERARER BRI 2 AF BRER i NGIES T HEBAREE EEME
Tiaro Coal Limited Australia Listed = = = Coal exploration,
(“Tiaro Coal”) (Note (i) BN company (2014: (2014: evaluation and
Tiaro Coal Limited ([ Tiaro Coal |) LHAR 26.31%) 26.31%) development
(PH&EG)) (ZZ—mF: (ZZ—mF: in Australia
26.31%) 26.31%) BREE - 3TE
R
i
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC Unlisted 49% = 49% Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa’) H company (2014: (2014: in the PRC
RRRSE (5E) ZEREB AR ¥ EMAF 49%) 49%) BRIEE
((RER%]) 49% 49% HE
(ZZ—m%E (ZE—HF -
49%) 49%)

Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. Australia Unlisted = = - Coal exploration and
(“Paragon Coal”) (Note (i) BN company (2014: (2014: development
Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. EVNG| 33.63%) 33.63%) in Australia
([ Paragon Coal |) (Bi#7E(])) (ZZ2—m4: (Z2-—mE: ERER R
33.63%) 33.63%) M
() At 31 December 2014, as the result of decrease in quote price () RZF—WEF+ZA=+—H RN
of shares of interest in Tiaro Coal, the Group assessed the Tiaro CoalfEfh#Em 2 FR{E T - A&
recoverable amounts of the interests in associates and as a FLRBE &R R 2 e Al B & R
result the carrying amount of the interest in Tiaro Coal was 17a1E o Bt - B Tiaro Coal Z#EmEREE
written down to its recoverable amount of RMB1,653,000. An EMUREE AT el £ 88 A K% 1,653,000
impairment loss of RMB19,333,000 was recognised in other 7T o BB E AK%19,333,0007T 2 i
expenses. The estimates of recoverable amount were based REBHMFX o ATYE & BIEETIRE
on interest in Tiaro Coals fair value less costs to disposal from M Tiaro Coal Z Bz A At E R B RN E
quoted price of Australian Securities Exchange subsequent XSGR EBRENREFMSHLEE
to the reporting date. The fair value on which the recoverable BRAMES - fERAIIRE @ BIREZA

amount is based on is categorised as a level 2 measurement. REBERAE_RAAEFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinuED)

The following list contains the particulars of associates, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group: (continued)

(i)

(i)

(continued)

In April 2015, Tiaro Coal announced to commerce a voluntary
administration. The directors of the Company determined that
the likelihood of recovering the interests in Tiaro Coal and
Paragon Coal, a subsidiary of Tiaro Coal, of RMB24,138,000
was remote. Accordingly, a full provision for impairment loss
of RMB24,138,000 was made and charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. On 30 December 2015,
Bright Rock Holdings Limited (“Bright Rock”), a subsidiary of
the Company was disposed of, together with its equity interests
in Tiaro Coal and Paragon Coal, for a consideration of Australian
Dollars (“AUD”)20,000 (equivalent to RMB95,000).

Tongmei Qinfa suffered losses and management re-assessed
the recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in Tongmei
Qinfa. The recoverable amount of equity interest in Tongmei
Qinfa has been determined to be minimum based on its value
in use with a pre-tax discount rate of 15.16%. The directors
of the Company determined that the likelihood of recovering
the interests in Tongmei Qinfa was remote. Accordingly, a full
provision for impairment loss of RMB46,567,000 was made
and charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below. All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

18 REEE N T 2=

TREVEBREAEEXENEENH L

UNGIES )
i @

MRZZE—RFMA - Tiaro CoalE 7
MEELERERT - ARFEFETE
Yz Bl Tiaro Coal%Paragon Coal (Tiaro
Coal®y fff B 2~ 7)) A R %24,138,000
TSN AREEEN At BEfER
% FE R B 5 18 B A R 24,138,000
T WERGREEZERARIR - R=
T-—HAE+_A=+H KRAZH
& A @]Bright Rock Holdings Limited
(I'Bright Rock]) * E[RHE X Tiaro Coal
K Paragon Coal®) iR #E# H & - R E
/320,000 7T ([Bx]) (BHERARE
95,0007T) °

(il IRFRHBEBE BEEEEMHLSE
BRAXRENEENAIKRESHE - [
BRRFENREATROSESERNEER
BEABATALIRE X15.16%EE /iR D °
ARAREEET  BWORKFREERD
ATREMEEM - Btk - EfFL E2EBIER
B E AR %46,567,0007T © W E AR
BEERARE -

FEBRERR T HENMBEE MK
RERAELEFAWBHRRAEDEYER
BREBIT - FIBZFHE QR AERAA
RN ZERAMBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinueD)

18 REEE N T 2w )

Tongmei Qinfa B 4 2= 2%
2015 2014
—E-IOF —=—-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Non-current assets IEMBEE 3 12
Current assets mEEE 1,005,299 1,230,985
Current liabilities mEaE (587,829) (1,122,977)
Non-current liabilities FEREBBE (322,655) -
Equity s 94,818 108,020
Revenue Wz 543,376 2174712
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (BE),/HH (13,202) 962
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FR2m (FR),/ WAL (13,202) 962
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in Tongmei Qinfa BN EFRAR R FE 2 HEm HIR
Net assets of Tongmei Qinfa FEERE 2 EEFE 94,818 108,020
Group’s effective interest AEB 2 B #ER 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of Tongmei Qinfa AEEEMRERE 2 EEFE 46,460 52,930
Goodwill EES 107 159
Impairment loss WIEEE (46,567) -
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REBERRIBERE 2 RREE
Tongmei Qinfa = 53,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinuED)

Paragon Coal

18 REEE N T 2=

Paragon Coal

2014
—ZE—mEF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Non-current assets FERBEE 63,959
Current assets MENVE B 18
Current liabilities MEAE (11,506)
Equity B 52,471
Revenue e 129
Loss for the year FAEE (584)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEGERE (584)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in Paragon Coal B KN F R Paragon Coal Z 1 zs 18k
Net assets of Paragon Coal Paragon CoalZ B EFE 52,471
Group’s effective interest AEB BB ED 33.63%
Group's share of net assets of Paragon Coal AEEE(EParagon CoalZ BEEFE 17,646
Goodwill Bk 4,879
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in ANEE R Paragon Coal Z iz REIE
Paragon Coal 22,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of the deferred
tax assets during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

19 EEHREBEEERERE

(a) EEBEEE

REBEZE-_ZT-—HAFR_T—MOF+_A=+

LFE ERANETHREENELE

& :
Charged
to consolidated
At1 statement of At 31
January comprehensive December
2015 income 2015
R=B-—HF REEEE R-ZF—HF
—H—H WARAKR +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR%T R ARET R
Deferred tax assets arising from: EXBTHRBENELEHIEE
B
Tax losses carried forward EERRIEEE 4,302 (3,612) 690
Deferred tax assets recognised for M EREERNELERE
inventory provision BE 8,913 (8,913) -
Deferred tax assets recognised for bad ~ HLEEAR & R AR MR AVIELEFIH
and doubtful debts BE 5,320 (5,320) -
Unrealised profit arising from intra- HEEBARARIBERSM
group transactions elimination B HE R AR B I T 849 (849) -
19,384 (18,694) 690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conTinuep)

(a) Deferred tax assets (continued)

19 EERBEERERE @
(a) EEMIBEE (&)

(Charged)/
credited
to consolidated
At 1 statement of At 31
January  comprehensive December
2014 income 2014
R-ZE—F (k) FA R-Z—0F
—H—RB ZazEkAKX TZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARETT ARET T
Deferred tax assets arising from: EEXATIISENELRE
BE:
Tax losses carried forward RENRIAER 147117 (142,815) 4,302
Deferred tax assets recognised for MEERERANELEIE
inventory provision BE 2,003 6,910 8,913
Deferred tax assets recognised for bad 43R M REIFFER AR LR 18
and doubtful debts BE 1,959 3,361 5,320
Unrealised profit arising from intra- HEHEE AR RIFER S
group transactions elimination EENREREF 330 519 849
151,409 (132,025) 19,384

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of RMB2,727,660,000 (2014:
RMB2,020,880,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which these losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entities. The tax loss will expire within

five years.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

BRARKRE@NE AR RERT KA
EFAEA AR RBEHIEEBEBNERN
wH MAEEBRERZEEBARK
2,727,660,000c (ZZE — W F: AR
2,020,880,0007T) HRELERIBEE - Fi1E
EEENAFREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conTinueD)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities recognised and the movements of the
deferred tax liabilities during the years ended 31 December 2015

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

19 EEREEEREE w
(b) IEEFIBEAME

HE_ZT—AFEk-_ZT—NF+=-A=+
IFFE  BEERANEEHREaEREE

and 2014: g :
Credited to
consolidated
At1 statement of At 31
January comprehensive December
2015 income 2015
R-Z—-1%F FFAGRE R-B—HEF
—A—H 2HWARX +t=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R ARET T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: ~ E4 A TH&ERNIELERE
=N
Revaluation surplus arising from ¥BEHEENEGHAL
business combinations 1,052,110 (1,036,758) 15,352
Depreciation allowances in excess BBAETE REHENITE
of the related depreciation and B
amortisation 86,364 (78,274) 8,090
1,138,474 (1,115,032) 23,442
Charged to
consolidated
At statement of Disposal At 31
January comprehensive of a December
2014 income subsidiary 2014
RZF—NF RiFa2E HE—H RZIT-—NEF
—A—H W AR MBR WEB2AR +=—A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: EEXB T IEENELRE
B
Revaluation surplus arising from business %A HEANELEH
combinations 1,076,558 16,616 (41,064) 1,052,110
Depreciation allowances in excess of the  #BBIRBNE M BN E
related depreciation and amortisation i 62,768 23,596 - 86,364
1,139,326 40,212 (41,064) 1,138,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmEME
31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
companies. The particulars of these subsidiaries are set out below:

20 R B AR ZIRE
R-T—RF+-A=+—8  FRFARTHIH
BARGEAEEREEES  MENBARNA
FART - ZEMBATMFEBRIIMT -

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRERRLS
Principal
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
B/ rEE HAAR HNEAR BERITRERE/ TEXBR
REER B3t B ERER 58 ekl &R EEBE
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% = United States dollars Investment
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands (“USD”) USD4,801/ holding
REREBRATA RERAEE USD50,000 in the PRC
([Z%RE]) 4801% T ([ER])/ REER
50,000% 7T i
Yuen Hoi Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Dormant
TRE AR lslands 1%7T,//50,000% 7T LEER
RBRAEE
Hong Kong Qinfa Coal British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Dormant
Trading Limited Islands 178 /50,000 T BmE
BERRERREHBRAA RBRAEE
Glory Explore International Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Dormant
B AR ERAR lslands 1%7T,//50,000% 7T LEEH
RERZEE
New Far Trading Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD100/ USD50,000 Dormant
New Far Trading Limited Islands 10037t /50,000% T TS
RBRZEE
More Star Development Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
ARERERAR Islands 1%7T,//50,000% T holding
RERLEE in the PRC
REER
&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 RV B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEBLA
Principal
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5HE HARE HNEAF BRTRERZ/ TEEBR
REER B 3L 36 ERER ekl ekl &R EENY
Billion Base Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
ERCEERAA lslands 178 /50,000 T holding
RERLEE in the PRC
REZR
i
Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD30,000,000/N/A Sales of coal
BERREHBRAF BE 30,000,000 7T,/ in the PRC
TER HERK
&
Hong Kong Qinfa International Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD689,635,000/N/A  Sales of coal and
Trading Limited Bk 689,635,000 7T,/ Investment
BERBERESBRAR M holding
inthe PRC
HERKR
RERK
hE
Lead Far Development Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Dormant
NEBERERRF i 10,0007/ & LEEY
World Victory (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Investment
Z (M) BRAA B 10,0007/ T @A holding
in the PRC
RERK
i

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EmEME
31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 R B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEERLA

Principal

Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and

establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place

Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation

R/ r5E HALE  HNWEAF BRTRER/ TEEBR

REER R 3L 4t B ERER ekl okl &R EENY

World Success (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Investment

£5 (M) BRAF BE 10,000%7 /@A holding

in the PRC

REER

&

Qinhuangdao Development Zone The PRC 100% = 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal

Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. ? g RMB68,000,000 in the PRC

RERBRERFEEHARAF O AR#68,000,0007,/ HERK

AR®68,000,0007T i

Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Sales of coal

Transportation Co., Ltd. ? s RMB20,000,000 inthe PRC

AARREEHEHEBRARO AR #20,000,0007/ HERK

A& #20,000,0007 R

Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal

Transportation Co., Ltd. © F RMB10,000,000 in the PRC

(Yangyuan Guotong”) AK¥10,000,0007T,/ HERK

EREEBRKEFEERAF O AK#10,000,0007 HE
([HEREE)

Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. © The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal

HREREEHBROAO i RMB5,000,000 in the PRC

AR#5,000,0007T,/ HERK

AK%5,000,0007T FE

Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% = 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal

(“Zhuhai Logistics ") F HKD315,000,000 inthe PRC

HWERENRBRAR O 315,000,000 7T/ HERR

(TR ]) 315,000,000% 7 HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 RV B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
ERERRLA

Principal
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5HE MALE  HNELAF BRTRERZ/ TEEBR
REER B 3L 36 ERER ekl ekl &R EENY
Zhuhai Qinfa Resource Development The PRC 100% = 100% RMB1,000,000/ Dormant
Co., Ltd.® i RMB1,000,000 EEEHG

HEREHRERERARO AE#1,000,0007 /

AR#%1,000,0007T
Baotou Danghui Materials Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Co., Ltd.? F RMB10,000,000 in the PRC
BETEENEESBRAR O AK#10,000,0007 / HERR
AE%10,000,0007T F
Ordos Dongsheng Yifa Materials The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd.? HE RMB5,000,000 holding
SR AT REBE AR #5,000,0007T,/ in the PRC
REMERRRF O AE#5,000,0007T REZR
i
Ordos Jinfa Materials Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
SRZIHEEMEBRAR O H RMB10,000,000 holding
AR #10,000,0007 / in the PRC
AE#10,000,0007C REZK
i
Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Investment The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd. " (“Shuozhou Guangfa’) F RMB10,000,000 holding
WNTERERREBRAR O AR#10,000,0007/ in the PRC
([HMEE ) AR #10,000,0007C REER
i
Shenchi Shenda Energy Investment The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd.® H RMB10,000,000 holding
WSS RRERRAR O AR#¥10,000,0007t/ in the PRC
AR®10,000,0007T REZR
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 R B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEERLA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5E HALE  HNWEAF BRTRER/ TEEBR

REER R 3L 4t B ERER ekl okl &R EENY

Shenchi Shenfa Coal Trading and The PRC 100% = 100% RMB30,700,000/ Dormant
Transportation Co., Ltd. " HE RMB30,700,000 EmEK

WhERREREEERAR O AR #30,700,0007T /

AR#%30,700,0007T
Huairen Shunfa Materials Co., Ltd. " The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Dormant
BCHIRENEEHERAA O i RMB20,000,000 EEXH
AE#20,000,0007T /
AE#%20,000,0007T

Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Co., The PRC 80% = 80% RMB300,000,000/ Investment
Ltd. ” ("Huameiao Energy”) H RMB300,000,000 holding

IEEEREREEBRAR O AR#300,000,0007,/ in the PRC
([EXRER]) AR®300,000,0007T RAZR

i

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 80% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., Ltd. ? HE RMB129,590,000 operation
(“Xingtao Coal”) AR¥129,590,0007T / inthe PRC

PPN T EREXRERE AR®129,590,000  KRFARKEE
BRRAA O th
([EREE])

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 80% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co., Ltd. " F RMB32,000,000 operation
(“Fengxi Coal’) AK%32,000,0007C,/ in the PRC

AN FRREXREAKSR AR¥32,000000m  BREFEKEE
BRAR O i
(EEEE])
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e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

20 RMTB AR 2 ’RE @)

BREEBLA
Principal
Place of Group'’s Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5HE HARE HNEAF BRTRERZ/ TEEBR
REER B 3L 36 ERER ekl ekl &R EENY
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 80% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal Co., i RMB107,290,000 operation
Ltd. (' (“Chongsheng Coal”) AK#107,290,0007T / in the PRC
WM FERREXREIRE AR¥107,2900000  ERFARREE
ARRA 0 i
([RAEE])

Shanxi Ruifeng Pharmaceutical The PRC 100% = 100% RMB1,200,000/ Dormant
Co,, Ltd.® i RMB1,200,000 TEXYG

WERBREEERAR O AR¥1,200,0007T /

AK%1,200,0007
Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Xinglong Coal The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
Co., Ltd. " ("Xinglong Coal’) F RMB100,000,000 operation
L7 47 M e A R 5 AK#100,000,0007T,/ in the PRC
BREARA O AR¥100,000000t  BERARKREE
([RERE]) th
Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Hongyuan The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
Coal Co., Ltd. " (‘Hongyuan Coal”) F RMB100,000,000 operation
AT R ERE AR#100,000,0007 / in the PRC
BREMERR O AR¥100,000000T  BRARREE
([REEE]) th
Succeed International Ltd. Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000 and Investment
B BB R A R Bk USD880,000/ N/A holding
10,000/7T & in the PRC
880,000% 7,/ TNER REER
G
Maxton International Enterprises Ltd. Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ N/A Dormant
BEARCEERAR &b 10,0007/~ @A LEEH
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

Proportion of ownership interest

20 RMTB AR 2 ’RE @)

ERERERLA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5E HALE  HNWEAF BRIREBRE TEEBR
RAEER R 3L 4t B B ekl okl &R EENY
Zhuhai Henggin New Zone Hengfa The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/  Sales of coaland
Commercial Service Co., Ltd. @ H RMB10,000,000 Investment
HEBEHEEERBRE AR#10,000,0007 / holding
BR 2R O AR #10,000,0007 inthe PRC
HERRK
REER
i
Zhuhai Henggin New Zone Lifa The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/  Sales of coal and
Commercial Service Co., Ltd. @ F RMB10,000,000 Investment
GERE R BEERE AR#10,000,0007c,/ holding
BRRR O AE#10,000,0007C inthe PRC
HERRK
REER
o
Zhuhai Henggin Hongyi Industrial The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
Development Co., Ltd. F RMB100,000,000 BEE

KWERERREXERARDA O AREOT,/

AE%100,000,0007T
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD50,000/ Goods transport
(“Super Grace”) Islands USD50,000  and logistics, and
Super Grace Enterprises Limited RBREIHE 50,000%7T,/ charter hire
([Super Grace ) 50,0003 7T in worldwide
AmER RN
NREMEE
£
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Proportion of ownership interest

20 RMTB AR 2 ’RE @)

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

BREEBLA
Principal
Place of Group'’s Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5HE HARE HNEAF BRTRERZ/ TEEBR
REER B 3L 36 ERER ekl ekl &R EENY
Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Goods transport
(“Oriental Wise”) Islands 1%70,//50,000%7C  and logistics, and
Oriental Wise Group Limited BBEAHE charter hire
([ Oriental Wise ) in worldwide
AmER RN
NREHHAE
2%
Qinfa Chartering Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Goods transport
Qinfa Chartering Limited Islands 1%7,/50,000%L  and logistics, and
EBRIHE charter hire
inthe PRC
AmERRIR
AREMEE
hE
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Goods transport
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited Islands 1%70,/50,000%7C  and logistics, and
EERIHS charter hire
in worldwide
AmER RN
UREHEE
2
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Goods transport
ERREMERRAA B30 10,0007 /@A and logistics, and

charter hire

in worldwide
BmEH R
WREREE

2%
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

20 RMTB AR 2 ’RE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

BREEERLA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5E HARE HNWERF BRTRER/ TEEBR
RNEER R 3L 4t B ERER ekl okl HEMER EEMY
Liberal City Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/N/A Dormant
Liberal City Limited it 1,007/ TER UEEH
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/N/A Goods transport
Perpetual Goodluck Limited E 1,000%7 /@A  and logistics, and
charter hire
in the PRC
AmEB RN
IR EMEE
7
Harbour Well Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Goods transport
Harbour Well Limited Islands 1%7L,/50,000%7L  and logistics, and
EERIHS charter hire
inworldwide
AmER kDR
AR EMEE
23
Merit Sino International Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Goods transport
BERBRARAA Islands 1%7,/50,000%6L  and logistics, and
EBRIHE charter hire
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 R B AR Z2IRE w0

Proportion of ownership interest

BREEBLA
Principal
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ r5HE MALE  HNELAF BRTRERZ/ TEEBR
REER B 3L 36 ERER ekl ekl &R EENY
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. © The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Goods transport
KEREMEERAA O H RMB5,000,000  and logistics, and
AR¥5,000,0007T,/ charter hire
AR #%5,000,0007T in the PRC
I mER RN
NREHHAE
i
Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange The PRC 60% = 60% RMBO/ Provision of
Center Co., Ltd." i RMB50,000,000 coal market
GEBEERERR HHOERAR O AR¥0L,/  information and
AE#50,000,0007t  training services
inthe PRC
RERRMHER
RIEFIAR
i
Shanghai Qinhe Trading Co., Ltd. ? The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
LEENESER AR O i RMB10,000,000 TEXG
AREOT,/
AE#10,000,0007C
Guangzhou Guangyihai Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
Co. Ltd. 0 H RMB10,000,000 LEER
Guangzhou Guangyihai Trading AREOT/

Co.,Ltd.®

AE#10,000,0007T
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

20 RMTB AR 2 ’RE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

EREERRLA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital of operation
BRI/ xEE HALAR  HREAR BRTRER/ TEXBR
AR ER PR 3L 4t 2 BRER BE o] HEEX EENY
Bright Rock British Virgin = = = USD1/USD50,000 Investment
Bright Rock Islands  (2014:100%) (2014:100%) 137t ,//50,000% T holding
RBRUEE = - in the PRC
(ZZ—HF: (ZE—HEF REAZK
100%) 100%) i
Gerrards Agents (Macao Commercial Macau = = = MOP100,000/ Dormant
Offshore) Limited ™ (“Gerrards P (2014:100%) (2014:100%) MOP100,000 EEEK
Agents”) - - 100,0008M97L,/
Gerrards Agents (Macao Commercial (ZT—mF (ZF—m%F 100,0002 T
Offshore) Limited ™ (“Gerrards 100%) 100%)
Agents”)
Zhuhai Port fi The PRC = = = RMB577,333,000/ Provision of port
TR/g AT W i (2014:60%) (2014:60%) RMB739,163,600 service
- - AR®577,333,0007,/ in the PRC
(Z2—m%: (Z2—nm% AR #739,163,6007 REEO RS
60%) 60%) i
(i)  These entities were established in the PRC as domestic companies. (i) ZEEBANPBEEINANERT -
(i) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign-owned (i) ZEERBRNPBEKIOINEEERE

enterprises.

(iii)

venture enterprise.

This entity was established in the PRC as a sino-foreign equity joint

(iii)

These entities were disposed of during the year ended 31 December  (iv)

(iv) = A
2015. BEWHE -
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings are secured by the
Group’'s equity interest in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi
Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou
Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise (2014: Huameiao Energy,
Xingtao Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal,
Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise) (Note 28). As at
31 December 2015, the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa, an associate
are secured by the Group’s equity interest in Yangyuan Guotong.

The following tables list out the financial information relating
to Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal and Zhuhai Port,
subsidiaries of the Company which have material non-controlling
interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

20 RMTB R R 2 ’RE @)

R_BE—RE+-A=1+—8 A&EB2E
ERASEREXRER  HEEEE  SA
B SAKE - BERE REEE -
M E % - Super GraceXOriental Wise (—
T—OF: EXRER BREEE SH
B HERSE ZEEX PMNER-
Super Grace&Oriental Wise) H) X AN 25
1R (FisE28) - R=ZE—RF+=A=+
—B - —HEERRRRERENEERAS
B A F5 R B8 2 IR VEE IR -

TREFIEFGHRE - BAKE - SFEER
WEEL (RARBAERIERER ([
ERER]) OB AR HENTEER
AT 25N EREE DY HER QR
RZAREHE o

Xingtao Coal izlzp o S
2015 2014
—E-HF —=-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
As at 31 December R+=—BA=+—H
NCI percentage FEFE R R A L 51 20% 20%
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,153,401 4,311,820
Current assets MENEE 2,723,206 2,767,847
Current liabilities mEAE (3,262,692) (3,651,469)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (1,128,849) (881,997)
Net assets BEFE 485,066 2,546,201
Carrying amount of NCI FEIEAR e AR T B 87,447 499,674
During the year ended 31 December BZE+-A=+—HILLEE
Revenue Uz 17,166 180,840
Loss for the year FNEE (2,061,135) (218,075)
Total comprehensive loss S EEIEER (2,061,135) (218,075)
Loss allocated to NCI DAL EIEE R A E1E (412,227) (43,615)
Cash flows used in operating activities KEEBFTRR SR (148,007) (363,983)
Cash flows used in investing activities BEZBMARER (87,096) (163,137)
Cash flows generated from financing activities BEEBASHR SR 174,798 445,000
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

20 RMTB AR 2 ’RE @)

Fengxi Coal B
2015 2014
—E-—RE —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
As at 31 December R+=—A=+-—8H
NCI percentage R ER A DL 20% 20%
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 1,298,000 2,369,934
Current assets MEE E 539,398 669,527
Current liabilities mBEaE (1,532,892) (1,390,197)
Non-current liabilities JEMBEE (59,287) (343,978)
Net assets BETFE 245,219 1,305,292
Carrying amount of NCI R ERAREE 49,044 261,059
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue Wz 16,844 218,829
Loss for the year FAEIE (1,060,073) (30,511)
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEIEEEE (1,060,073) (30,511)
Loss allocated to NCI DELE ISR SR (212,015) (6,102)
Cash flows generated from operating activities KEEBFSRESM 21,405 326,625
Cash flows used in investing activities BEZEFAR ST (24,935) (323,812)
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

20 RMTB R R 2 ’RE @)

Chongsheng Coal RAEE
2015 2014
—E-IOF —T—-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREET T
As at 31 December R+=—BA=+—H
NCI percentage SRR ER A DL 20% 20%
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 914,697 2,223,813
Current assets MEE E 974,355 1,239,734
Current liabilities DEE=RE (1,784,439) (1,760,580)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (45,383) (330,003)
Net assets BEFE 59,230 1,372,964
Carrying amount of NCI FEIEIR R BRTE (B 11,846 274,593
During the year ended 31 December BE+T-A=+—HLEE
Revenue Wz 34,572 168,509
Loss for the year FRNEE (1,313,734) (12,623)
Total comprehensive loss 2 THEIEEEE (1,313,734) (12,623)
Loss allocated to NCI S EIEE RIS EE (262,747) (2,525)
Cash flows generated from operating activities KEEEBSREM 156,149 157,424
Cash flows used in investing activities BEZBMAB ST (56,787) (257,156)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from BMEES (FTA)/ FBEER
financing activities (100,000) 100,000
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 AMIB R BRI ZBE w0
Zhuhai Port (Note (i) EBE (M)
2014
—ZE—mEF
RMB’000
ARETT
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H
NCI percentage SRR ER A DL 40%
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,884,134
Current assets mMENE E 114,751
Current liabilities MENEE (4617,794)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (1,041,185)
Net assets BERE 539,906
Carrying amount of NCI FEIE R R AR E (A 215,962
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HILLEE
Revenue g 40,479
Loss for the year FNEE (37,186)
Total comprehensive loss FHEEIBBE (37,186)
Loss allocated to NCI SRR ER A EE (14,971)
Cash flows used in operating activities BEEBFIRER 2R (99,310)
Cash flows used in investing activities WEEEFREER (90,109)
Cash flows generated from financing activities BEEBFFIRE N 162,605
(i)  The Group disposed of its 60% of the equity interest in Zhuhai Port for () RZZE—RFNALR XEEUBREKE
a cash consideration of RMB350,000,000 on 7 August 2015. Details of AR ¥350,000,0007T £ & H R EKG B K8
the disposal are set out in Note 10. B0%RIE o HEFIFHMHIFE0 ©
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21 INVENTORIES 21 78
2015 2014
—E-1% —T-lEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T
Finished goods BIRK 84,482 314,337
Fuel BREL 3,591 12,018
88,073 326,355
Provision for inventories amounting to RMB35,542,000 (2014: R-_E—AF+_A=+—"HEMAUER
RMB35,650,000) were made against those finished goods with net FEERNEEHENEKMATREEREBA
realisable value lower than carrying value as at 31 December 2015. K #35,542,000t (ZZE—MF: AR
35,650,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s inventories with carrying R-ZE—RF+_-_A=+—H AEEE@
amount of RMB68,329,000 (2014: RMB229,756,000) were pledged BE A AR%68,329,0000C (ZZT—PF : A
for borrowings (Note 28). R #229,756,0007T) < 7 EE BB EER
A (fg7E28) o
22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES 22 BB ZRAKREWEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —=—{F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Trade and bill receivables FEUE S ER AN RN R 995,734 1,312,139
Less: impairment B RE (413,450) (43147)
582,284 1,268,992
(a) Ageing analysis (a) RRER D AT
All of the trade and bill receivables are expected to be recovered BB R E SRR RBEREHN—F
within one year. The Group’s exposure to credit risk related to trade AYmE - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ% Ko E At g W B
and other receivables is disclosed in Note 34(a). FEENEERREENHTI4@E) °
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22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD) 22 EWESRIARERERE @
(a) Ageing analysis (continued) (a) BRER DT ()

An ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables (net of impairment
loss) of the Group is as follows:

AEEOEKE SRR SEREER (FIERE
BER) Rk ONWT :

2015 2014

—E-FE —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Within 2 months M E A A 303,534 519,102
Over 2 months but within 6 months R {E A LA 1B B8 < E A 39,650 271,261
Over 6 months but within 1 year NEA EETBB—F 95,688 285,078
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F BN EBEBMRE 143,312 192,386
Over 2 years BB F 100 1,165
582,284 1,268,992

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from 0 to 60 days
(2014: 0 to 60 days) depending on customers’ relationship with the
Group, their creditworthiness and past settlement record.

The ageing is counted from the date when trade and bill receivables
are recognised.

BREZFEAEEMNBEER ZFPNEANKE
FRNREE AEEBXTERTFEFLN T0E
BOK (ZZE—PEE : 0FE60K) HEEH] -

RIRERVESEANEBREEREERE B
FEETHE -

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWE B BRFRE

The movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

FRRKE ZRFREBRBESHIOT -

2015 2014

—E-EHF —ZT—UF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBT T

At 1 January n—HA—H 43147 51,947
Reversal of impairment losses BB = (9,011)
Impairment loss recognised BHRHRERBRE 502,479 -
Bad debts written-off M sH R AR (134,783) -
Exchange differences PEH =% 2,607 211
At 31 December Wn+ZA=+—H 413,450 43,147
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22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueb)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

The above provision for impairment losses of trade receivables
represents provision for individually and collectively impaired trade
receivables of RMB413,450,000 (2014: RMB43,147,000) with a
carrying amount of RMB413,450,000 (2014: RMB43,147,000). The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which
did not make any settlement during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

(c) Trade and bill receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bill receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

22 BEWESRARERERE @
(b) EWE B ERFRE (@)

Ll ERE SRFREBEBREERERMEA
R ¥413,450,000c (ZZE—HF : AR
43,147,0007T) 2 {5l K& HF R E - K E 5
BR XA R 413,450,000 (Z T — M4 :
AR ¥43147,0007T) © 18 B E & FE Uk BR
REBERHEE-_T—RAFR-_ZT—NF+
“A=T—BUEFERNAEEEAERZE
FBER -

WEBEEWE S RARERRE
I {8 7l 3k A RAR (ERAE 1O FE I B 5 BRI
R RIERE DA T

2015 2014

—F-HF | ZF0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired N 48 260 HA SRR (E 304,117 612,214
Less than 1 year past due BERLR—F 135,306 653,562
Over 1 year past due B AR A — 142,861 3,216
582,284 1,268,992

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

3 45 780 Y =k R (B A R LA AR SR BT A 88 40
EHNBEZEFAR -

BHERBERNRBKRRES ZEREEE
FRIEFNBERBNBILIEFAR - ENB
5 EEERSBEANZSEHRIRR
BfE AREELCEYEZELSZAES -
BESDR B RIBBUIRE o AN 5 E 3 5 5 5%
EREBRREAERSR -
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22
(d)

(e)

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (continuep)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain bill receivables
accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying
amount of RMB4,199,000 (2014: RMB14,452,000) to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to such Endorsed
Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale,
transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by the
Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers have recourse
was RMB4,199,000 (2014: RMB14,452,000) as at 31 December
2015.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2015, the Group, endorsed certain bill receivables
accepted by banks in the PRC to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of RMB37,041,000 (2014: RMB166,189,000).
The derecognised bills had a maturity of one to six months at
the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of
Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the derecognised
bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the derecognised bills. Accordingly,
it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the derecognised
bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to
loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the derecognised
bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
derecognised bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the derecognised bills are not significant.
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22 BRE ZRAKREBERER @
d) REZ2RULBERZCEZTRMEE

(e)

MW_EBE—RE+-A=+—8 A&EEEE
M E AR #4,199,000t (ZT—MFE: A
R ¥14,452,00070) B BE RN RITA R
ETRUEBEEETHETHER ([BEE
Bl UNEFERNZSEHEBZENES
R (TEE] - ARRESERE A8
RBEBRIBORBKRETR  BEZESE
ZEMENER Bt NEBEESERE
REEZEEN2EERENAC A ENIERE
NEBSER - BER  A5ETHBREBFEH
ZEEEZRNEMERN - BIEHEE  #@E
SEEEEBRERTERNEME=F - RF
NUABEZEEFEZHEEEERENER
BESRFR_E—HRF+_A=+—HHKE
HAAEAARK4199,0005T (ZZT—M4F :
AR#14,452,0007T) °

TERIBACEEREMEE

MN-_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—H K"EBKE
FEERRITEALNETRKEESETH
ATHER  UEBEHENZSHERER
WwE A ARE37,041,0007T (ZZF—PO4F :
AR ¥166,189,0007T) 2 BN E SR -
RIERZEZERBREHREE—E2~EA
FH - RBPBEZEEZRTE @ WEFBRE
WIRTTEY  RUIEBRZEEZHEELHAR
SENAERE ([FESH]) - ARAES
RE AEEEERERIBRIERZBX
Homk&EIR o Bt - NERE P EKLIE
RTRIERCEBEREEERNSE SRR
AEBEFELHEZR IR 2 ER 2&xANIE
AEBOZERIIBRCEB 2 RATRE S
RERREREE - ARFEERE ' A&
ERFELHERIIERCER I ARBELTE
j(o



22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinuep)
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22

(e) Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their (e)

(f)

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

entirety (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
derecognised bills (2014: Nil). No gains or losses were recognised
from the continuing involvement, both during the year or

cumulatively (2014: Nil).

Trade and bill receivables that are pledged

(f)

As at 31 December 2015, certain Group’s trade and bill receivables
with carrying amount of RMB9,382,000 (2014: Nil) were pledged for

borrowings (Note 28).

23

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

EREZEREFEEREE @
EERIEBRACECEHESHEE @

HE_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HIEFE " K
EEWANEZRIIERZ ZERE BERE
Ak EE (ZE—NF : £) c AEER
FARRTHYERERFESHENE AR
BB (ZE—NF : \)-

EEACERESRIARERERE
R-_E—RE+-_A=+—8 A&EBEETF
BREIE A A R%9,382,0007T (ZE—PY4 :
#) KB SERALEREZECHEEE
R (FiFE28) -

Other deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
Other non-trade receivables

Less: Impairment (Note (i)

Hipiz e M FARRK
& I FE A LA R R IR
H At IFE F IR K

R ORE (BEEEG))

MR R H A BB AR
2015 2014
—F-EF | ZTAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR | _ AE®TT
185,622 182,874
321,048 530,198
93,331 200,363
600,001 913,435
(412,758) (49,974)
187,243 863,461
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 YRR EMBKERMR @

(CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of prepayments and other receivables () FEMERR R A REUERTR < BB .
The movement in provision for impairment of prepayments and other FRNBMERREMERER Z RAERESE S
receivables during the year is as follows: ™
2015 2014
=F-1% —TmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 49,974 7,838
Impairment losses recognised ERERZRERE 394,855 42,136
Uncollectible amounts written-off ki RN R T (32,071) -
At 31 December W+=R=+—H 412,758 49,974
The above provision for impairment losses of prepayments and other TR AR R LAt R U BR B 2 R B IS 1R R 1R
receivables represents provision for individually and collectively EE@TE/\E%@ 2,758,0007T (:\i—lﬂlﬁ AR
impaired prepayments and other receivables of RMB412,758,000 #49,974,0007T) < 16 Rl & [ R (& &) T8 1 BR 3K
(2014: RMB49,974,000) with a carrying amount of RMB412,758,000 R HoAth i LS B K 088 5 A 841 2,758,0007T (ZF
(2014: RMB49,974,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly — M4 - AR#49,974,0007T) ° fEIRIRIE 2 U
relate to prepayments and other receivables which the directors of EREEHADNBNESRARE A M ARKE
the Company consider that the chances of collection/utilisation of the SRR RENTENRER R EEREREEA -
outstanding amounts are remote.
24 PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 24 EE K ZRHFR
Bank deposits of RMB45,468,000 (2014: RMB497,129,000) as at RZZE—RAF+ZRA=+—8  RITHEXK
31 December 2015 were pledged to banks to secure certain of the AR 45,468,000t (ZE—WF: AR
Group's bill payables (Note 26) and general credit facilities (2014: #497,129,0007T) EE B TRITIER RS
borrowings (Note 28) and general credit facilities). & TRENER ([E26) R—REEER
(ZZ—MF : FE (M328) R—REEHE
®) e
Bank deposits of RMB443,000 (2014: Nil) were frozen in relation to RITFRARK443,000t (ZF— 5 -
the litigation proceedings as disclosed in Note 41(a)(v). ) AWM 5E41 () (V)T E R SR ATE AR08
o
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERBASEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERBEEEBWEE !
2015 2014
—F-EF| ZTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 20,669 53,864
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (conTinueD) 25 HERBEEEY @
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash generated (b) RBIAIEIBERE THAERE Y
from operations: AR :
2015 2014
—B-AF —EmEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Loss before taxation from continuing and REFBERDKRIEEEEBLR
discontinued operations BR A% A BT 48 (8,037,702) (1177,656)
Adjustments for: TN RIEEHFE -
Depreciation for property, plant and M - BEREREITE
equipment 15 261,940 176,603
Amortisation of coal mining rights W TR BT A B 16 12,480 43,407
Amortisation of lease prepayments THETE R 17 1,586 140
Provision for inventories FEEE 21 35,542 35,650
Finance income B (2,844) (50,519)
Finance costs EUR I %N 415,506 575,287
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries and HENBARREBE R EZ
associates (fzs),/ BHE 32 (68,083) 162,585
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB EkREkE
equipment 6 (3,174) -
Impairment losses on property, plant and M - BRENEEREBE
equipment 8 3,067,505 18,674
Impairment losses on coal mining rights B TERE R BB A 8 2,678,444 -
Impairment losses on prepayments and other  TE1 B 5% K2 H b i L BR 3¢
receivables B 8 398,316 42136
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment)  BUE ZERZUREEIE
on trade receivables CR{E#E) 8 502,479 9,011)
Impairment losses on interests in associates  REF& A AR 2 REKE 18 70,705 19,333
Equity-settled share-based payment L i B AR
expenses BETER K 14,789 483
Share of loss of associates SIGEEE R RIEE 6,522 11,269
Property, plant and equipment written-off b E YN ki 8 204 48
Fair value gain on capitalisation of payables  JEfIBRFE AL IR A E U2 6 (3,051) -
Changes in working capital: LELEEE
Change in inventories FE® 202,629 38,463
Change in trade and bill receivables B E GRA R EKEEES) 177,634 708,700
Change in prepayments and other receivables &/t BR 7k K L th i Ui BR 7% 28 & 193,813 600,088
Change in trade and bill payables BB SRR R EEE E) 43,073 (78,781)
Change in other payables Hith ETBR R 405,428 235,719
Cash generated from operations RETBHHRERE 373,741 1,347,618
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

26 TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of the Group is as

26 ENEZRRKRENRE

AEEERMNE SRR MENEENRE DN

follows: wn
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREET T
Within 1 year —&ER 1,074,216 1,001,631
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA BB B HFE 13,636 46,107
QOver 2 years but within 3 years MELA EBN BB =F 859 393
1,088,711 1,048,131
27 OTHER PAYABLES 27 HAEESBRFX
2015 2014
—E-AF —F—WF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT
Current BN &R
Receipts in advance AU ERIA 296,448 49,572
Accrued expenses FEETFA X 339,312 229,823
Amount due to a related party FEN —RRBEES RIR 18,969 -
Amounts due to directors R EEFIAE 3,509 230
Amount due to the ultimate holding company FE R ERARAERR A RIFRIA 3,735 2,659
Other payables HAth FE (TR K 1,863,050 1,976,417
2,525,023 2,258,701
Non-current JEBNHA
Other payables HAth FEATBR SR 82,195 95,782
2,607,218 2,354,483

The amounts due to a related party, directors and ultimate holding
company are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of

repayment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

28 BORROWINGS 28 B E
2015 2014
—E-IF T —UF
Notes Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
B &E FHFEHR AR¥ETT EEFED ARETIT
Current BP &R
Secured bank loans BEARITER (i) 2016 2,634,845 2015 3,424,188
Unsecured bank loans EIRIRITE N (if) 2016 576,832 2015 514,872
Current portion of non-current  JEBNHA A EIFIRTT
secured bank loans BERHENEE S (iii) 2016 73,100 2015 713,325
Current portion of non-current  JEENHAME KRR TT N/A
unsecured bank loans BErBNHIE o (iii) TEA - 2015 81,720
Other borrowings Hithfg & N/A
(iv) 2016 18,220 NiE A =
3,302,997 4,734,105
Non-current JEBN AR
Secured bank loans BEMEBEITER (ii1) 2017-2019 2,602,325 | 2016-2026 2,677796
Unsecured bank loans EIMPIRITER N/A
(iif) TiE A - 2016 240,000
2,602,325 2,917,796
5,905,322 7,651,901
(i)  Current secured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% (i) RZE—RE+=-_A=+—H  BIEAEEIIE
t0 7.28% (2014:5.10% to 9.00%) per annum as at 31 December 2015. RITEFIEN F4.35%%27.28% (—ZF — M
& 5.10%%9.00%) HWEFIRAE -
(i) Current unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from (i) RZE—RFE+_A=+—8 - BNHAEIKIE
5.66% to 8.40% (2014:2.09% to 8.50%) per annum as at 31 December RITEFIEN F5.66%%28.40% (—ZF — M
2015. F 1 2.09%ZE8.50%) HEFRTE -
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31 December 2015 —Z—HR%E+—A=+—H

28 BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

(iii) Non-current borrowings (including current portion of non-current

(iv)

28 6 E @)

mnm:§—£$+:ﬂzt—av#%%%§

borrowings) as at 31 December 2015 bear the following interest rates: (g@ﬁ#ﬂﬂ HfEE R BIEIAE S ) & T 51 F =
2015 2014
—F-HF —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
(1) 30% premium on the per annum interest rate quoted (1) FEARBITHHRAEHES
by the People’s Bank of China in respect of five-year FFEEF30% ([FEAAR
borrowings (“5-year interest rate of PBOC”) BITRFHEERE]) - 340,000
(2) 20% premium on the 5-year interest rate of PBOC (2) FRARBITAFHEERNE
%20% = 635,000
(3) 5% premium on the per annum interest rate quoted  (3) B AREITATREAR A FIA
by the People’s Bank of China with terms longer than EEFERIE EF5%
five years = 1,083,510
(4) 38% premium on the per annum interest rate quoted  (4) A A RIBIT=FHREEER
by the People’s Bank of China in respect of three-year & 1)%238% ([FEIARERIT
borrowings (“3-year interest rate of PBOC”) =FEHEEFE]) - 585,000
(5) 13.82% premium on the 3-year interest rate of PBOC  (5) FEI A RIE1T=FHEEF =
F7#13.82% - 285,000
(6) 4.13% per annum over Raiffeisen Bank International  (6) Raiffeisen Bank International
AG’s cost of fund AGE A NMEF4.13% - 36,720
(7) 5% premium on the 3-year interest rate of PBOC (7) FERARBIT=FHEERN X
5% = 159,700
(8) 3-year interest rate of PBOC (8) FRIARBIT=FHEERE = 587,911
(9) Fixed rate: 5.50% (9) EEFE:550% 584,500 =
(10) Fixed rate: 7.01% (10) EEFIE : 7.01% 975,000 =
(11) 5-year interest rate of PBOC (1) FRARBITAFHEER X 1,048,935 -
(12) 10% premium on the 5-year interest rate of PBOC (12) FRIARBRITRF BB ERE
FZ10% 66,990 =
2,675,425 3,712,841

Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 10.00% to (iv)

12.96% per annum as at 31 December 2015.

Overdue borrowings

As 31 December 2015, secured bank loan of RMB148,882,000,
unsecured bank loan of RMB30,000,000 and other borrowings of
RMB18,220,000 were overdue and carried interest at rates ranging
from 6.72% to 12.96% per annum and additional penalty interest at
rates ranging from 3.36% to 6.48% per annum. As 31 December 2015,
these borrowings are secured by coal mining rights with a carrying
amount of RMB178,870,000 or personal guaranteed by Mr. Xu. In
addition, bank deposits of RMB443,000 were frozen as a result of the

overdue bank borrowings (Note 24).

Subsequent to 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report, the
Group is in the process of negotiating with the banks and the creditors

to renew or roll over these borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

28 BORROWINGS (conTinueD)

The Group’s borrowings are secured by the following assets:

28 6 E =)
REBEZEERTIEEELER :

2015 2014

—E-HF T —{F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®T ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 15 1,003,099 4,395,220
Coal mining rights B R PR 16 1,942,708 4,633,632
Lease prepayments GEN=S NN 17 5,213 5,353
Inventories FE 21 68,329 299,756
Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 RR R R B R R 22 9,382 -
Pledged deposits EHERER 24 - 448,462

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings are also secured
by other receivables of a related company of which Mr. Xu is the
shareholder, the ultimate holding company’s equity interest in
the Company and the Group's equity interest in Huameiao Energy,
Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal,
Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise
(2014: Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong
Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental
Wise). As at 31 December 2015, borrowings of RMB5,895,323,000
(2014: RMB4,535,747,000) were guaranteed by the Company, certain
subsidiaries of the Company and/or related parties (Note 37(b)).

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

WN_TE—RAF+-_A=+—8 A&EBZ
BETHERREEEEREN —BEEER
A RIE  RRERAERARQE M RE
RASEBREZRER - EEKSE  BEK
¥ AKX EEEREE - REREX B
M B& 2 - Super GraceXOriental Wise (=
TNF: EXRER BEEKE - 2
M EERE REEE BMNER.
Super GraceXOriental Wise) HJ X AN 25
B - RZZT—RFF+=_A=+—H " A
F¥5,895,323,0007 (ZZE—MF : AR
4,535,747,0007T) ZEEHBARA - NAF
ETHBAR KR, SEEFREER (i
37(b)) °

AEENEERTIIMREE

2015 2014

—E-HF —=—{mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Within 1 year —&R 3,302,997 4,734,105
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F A HET BB E 840,390 1,952,795
Over 2 years but within 5 years PEA FBETNEBBRE 1,761,935 304,737
Over 5 years AFMUE - 660,264
2,602,325 2,917,796

5,905,322 7,651,901
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

29 ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 20 EIRREEREH
2015 2014
—E-FE —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 74,693 81,869
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts (Note 7)  #r&## Z2 F S5 (Ki:x7) 4,354 5,224
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—FH B AR (M:E32) - (12,400)
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 79,047 74,693

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

0EX - ERKRE
(a) EHEHDEEH

WG BB -

AEBE MDA NPT KRR HER

(b) Share capital (b) A&
2015 2014
—E-1F —2-QmF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
BRE &8 A& i
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt = ARETR ARETTT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each B EE0.10E T L&A (i),(iii) 20,000,000,000 1,763,000 | 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, issued and EER ERTRAR
fully paid
At 1 January »—A—H 2,078,413,985 176,531 2,078,413,985 176,531
Shares issued in respect of REEROBTMRG
placing of shares (ix) 200,000,000 16,744 = =
At 31 December R+=R=+—H 2,278,413,985 193,275 | 2,078,413,985 176,531
(i)  The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March () ARARZZEZNF=ZANBEHRHEHS
2008 with an authorised share capital of HKD380,000 divided into A - JEE MR A A380,0008 T 0 oA
3,800,000 shares of par value HKD0.10 each. On 4 March 2008, a 3,800,000 FRXEMEO. 108 TTHIAR 5 » =
share of the Company with par value of HKD0.10 was allotted, issued ZZNF=HAMH ' Codan Trust Compan
and fully paid to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as the initial (Cayman) Limited ({EB¥ FRE ) & @%
subscriber, which was subsequently transferred by Codan Trust 2 NEET—REEAE0.I10B T AR A 82
Company (Cayman) Limited to Mr. Xu on the same day. On 12 June f% 15 » mCodan Trust Com y (Cayman)
2009, Mr. Xu transferred this one share to Fortune Pearl International Limited B RR ABEEE TR E - R
Limited (“Fortune Pearl’, the ultimate holding company of the Group). ZTNFANATZH  RAEFEBEBEN—
IR T2 RERARAR ([BE] - K
SEREZERAA]) ©
(i) Pursuant to a reorganisation on 12 June 2009 (the “Reorganisation”), (i) BRER-_ZETAhEA+t-_BNEHA(E
999,999 shares credited as fully paid were allotted and issued to #]) 999,999 1H ABR%I BE R - BREE
Fortune Pearl, in consideration for the acquisition by the Company of BAFER  EANATINERERITE (K&
the entire equity interest of Qinfa Investment, an intermediate holding E—FAARREERA ) 2ERENRE -

company of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continue)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(iii) Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder passed on
12 June 2009, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HKD380,000 to HKD2,000,000,000 by the creation of
an additional 19,996,200,000 shares of HKDO0.10 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder passed
on 12 June 2009, 749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each
in the Company were issued at par value on 3 July 2009 by way of
capitalisation of HKD74,900,000 (equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from
the share premium account upon the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

(iv) On 3 July 2009, 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each were
issued at a price of HKD2.52 per share under the Initial Public Offering
and the International Placing. The proceeds of HKD25,000,000
(equivalent to RMB22,042,000) representing the par value, were
credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining proceeds of
HKD605,000,000 (equivalent to RMB533,429,000), before the issuing
expenses, were credited to the share premium account.

(v) On 22 July 2009, the underwriters of the International Placing
exercised the over-allotment option for the issuance of 37,500,000
ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each at HKD2.52 per share. The proceeds
of HKD3,750,000 (equivalent to RMB3,305,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HKD90,750,000 (equivalent to RMB79,987,000), before the
issuing expenses, were credited to the share premium account.

(vi) On 8 April 2011, 60,000 share options under the Pre-IPO Option were
exercised for the same number of shares at an exercise price of
HKD2.52 per share (Note 31(a)). All issued shares have been fully paid.
The proceeds of HKD6,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000) representing the
par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HKD145,000 (equivalent to RMB122,000) were credited to
the share premium account.

(vii) The extraordinary general meeting held on 30 September 2011
approved the bonus issue of one share for every one existing share
held by the shareholders whose names are on the register of
members on 10 October 2011. As a result, the issued share capital
of the Company increased from HKD103,756,000 (equivalent to
RMB91,479,000) to HKD207,512,000 (equivalent to RMB176,266,000)
through capitalisation of share premium of HKD1083,756,000
(equivalent to RMB84,787,000).

(viii) On 19 July 2013, the Company issued and allotted 3,293,985 shares at
an issue price of HKDO.77 per share in respect of the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

As a result, during the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company’s
share capital and share premium were in aggregate increased
by approximately HKD329,000 (equivalent to RMB265,000) and
HKD2,207,000 (equivalent to RMB1,757,000), respectively.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —ZE—FHE+-F=+—H

30 &EX - ﬁﬁ IRE

(b) BRA (=

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(i) RZE——F N A=+ ARTHRRERIA
SEHAEBRR-_Z——F+ AT BRIRK
ReEMeMREGHE —RINFRHEET
—RARETERTAR - Bt BBEAR
b A% 19 3% 18103,756,00058 7T (HHE R AR
84 787,0007T) © AR Al 2 O 31T B A 6
103,756,000/ 7T (HHE M AR#91,479,000

50) B ANZ207,5612,0008 T (IHERARK

ViR = T—:itﬁ +hH &

}*ZLVAETHE—%%%:;? ZNEFE S A
T_HRBZEMAZR  ARER
19,996,200,000% & iR EI {B0.10/8 JT < %7 AR
0 AN 2 A #)% TE R AN B1380,00078 TT %
2,000,000,000/ 7T °
BRARAM—BRRR_TTAFASAT_—H
BB EERER - BB AR AR HOE
22 P b T 1% % 9 )4 {8 BR 974,900,000 7T
(F8E M AR %66,039,0007T) BIEEA + &
A 7]749,000,0000 GAREEO. 1078 A i@
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continue)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(ix) On 21 December 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10
each were issued at a price of HKD0.249 per share to not less than
six independent placees for a total consideration (before issuing
expenses) of HKD49,800,000 (equivalent to RMB41,693,000).
The proceeds of HKD20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB16,744,000)
representing the par value, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HKD27,917,000 (equivalent
to RMB23,372,000), after the issuing expenses of HKD1,883,000
(equivalent to RMB1,577,000), were credited to the share premium

account.

(c) Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued convertible securities
to Fortune Pearl with a value of HKD194,700,000 (equivalent to
RMB157,872,000). The direct transaction costs attributable to the
convertible securities amounted to RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the option of the holder
of convertible securities into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time after 31 December 2012 at the initial conversion price of
HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the Company. While the convertible
securities confer a right to receive distributions at 3% per annum,
the Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer a distribution
pursuant to the terms of the convertible securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity date and are
redeemable at the option of the Company at 100% or 50% of the
principal amount of the convertible securities each time, on any
distribution payment date at the face value of the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible securities to be redeemed plus
100% or 50% (as the case may be) of distributions accrued to such

date.

As the convertible securities have no contractual obligation to
repay its principal nor to pay any distributions, they do not meet the
definition for classification of a financial liabilities under IAS 32. As
a result, the whole instrument is classified as equity, and respective
distributions if and when declared are treated as equity dividends.

The Group had not elected to defer distribution payments for the
year ended 31 December 2015 of HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,728,000) (2014: HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to RMB4,628,000).
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)
(d) Quasi-capital

(e)

On 25 December 2015, the Group consolidated certain interest
payable due from its subsidiaries to a financial institution of
RMB141,533,000 (the “Payables”) and novated the Payables from
the subsidiaries of the Company to the Company as the principal
debtor. The financial institution, on the same date, transferred the
Loan to an independent third party (the “Creditor”).

Pursuant to an agreement between the Company and the Creditor
dated 25 December 2015, the Creditor has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for 215,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Shares to be
Issued”) each at a subscription price of approximately HKD0.272
per share by capitalisation of part of the Payables in the amount
of RMB48,822,000 (equivalent to approximately HKD58,480,000).
Accordingly, the Group has no contractual obligation to deliver cash
to settle such amount and such amount will be settled by a fixed
number of shares. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair value of the Shares to be Issued of RMB45,771,000 is
considered as quasi-capital to the Company. The difference
between capitalisation of part of the Payables of RMB48,822,000
and the fair value of the Shares to be Issued was recognised as fair
value gain on capitalisation of payables in other income, gains and
losses (Note 6).

(Deficit)/reserves
Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder passed
on 12 June 2009, 749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each
in the Company were issued at par value on 3 July 2009 by way of
capitalisation of HKD74,900,000 (equivalent to RMB66,039,000)
from the share premium account upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange.

250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each in the Company were
issued at HKD2.52 per share under the Initial Public Offering on 3
July 2009. The excess of the proceeds totalling HKD605,000,000
(equivalent to RMB533,429,000) over the nominal value of the
total number of ordinary shares issued, less certain listing costs
of HKD49,562,000 (equivalent to RMB43,699,000) incurred in
connection with the issue of the share capital, amounting to
HKD555,438,000 (equivalent to RMB489,730,000), were credited to
the share premium account.
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30
(e)
(i)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (conTinueD)
(Deficit)/reserves (continued)
Share premium (continued)

An additional 37,500,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each in
the Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share on 22 July 2009
pursuant to the over-allotment option related to the International
Placing. The excess of the proceeds totalling HKD90,750,000
(equivalent to RMB79,987,000) over the nominal value of the
total number of ordinary shares issued, less certain listing
costs of HKD10,259,000 (equivalent to RMB9,045,000) incurred
in connection with the issue of share capital, amounting to
HKD80,491,000 (equivalent to RMB70,942,000), were credited to
the share premium account.

On 8 April 2011, 60,000 shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company
were issued at HKD2.52 per share as a result of the exercise
of vested options arising from the Pre-IPO Option (Note 31(a)).
The excess of the proceeds totalling HKD145,000 (equivalent to
RMB122,000) was credited to the share premium of the Company.
HKD48,000 (equivalent to RMB40,000) has been transferred from
the share-based compensation reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note

2(0)(i).

Pursuant to a written resolution of the directors’ meeting passed on
23 August 2012, the Company declared a special interim dividend
of HKD41,502,000 (equivalent to RMB33,748,000). The amount was
out of the share premium account.

At a meeting held on 22 March 2013, the Board of Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK3 cents which could be satisfied
by allotment of new shares of the Company, credited as fully paid,
by way of scrip dividend, with an alternative to equity holders to
elect to receive such final dividend (or part thereof) in cash in lieu
of such allotment. On 19 July 2013, the Company settled the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 by cash payment
of HKD59,717,000 (equivalent to RMB47,544,000) and issuance
3,293,985 new ordinary shares at an issue price of HKDO.77 per
share (equivalent to RMB2,022,000) (Note 30(b)(viii)). The excess of
the proceeds totalling HKD2,207,000 (equivalent to RMB1,757,000)
was credited to the share premium of the Company.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)
(e) (Deficit)/reserves (continued)

(i)

Share premium (continued)

Pursuant to a written resolution of the directors’ meeting passed on
29 August 2013, the Company declared a special interim dividend
of HKD20,784,000 (equivalent to RMB16,439,000). The amount was
out of the share premium account.

On 21 December 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10
each were issued at a price of HKD0.249 per share to independent
third party placees. The excess of the proceeds totalling
HKD27,917,000 (equivalent to RMB23,372,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares issued was credited to
the share premium account, after deducting the issuing expenses.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries of the Company and
the amount of share capital of the Company transferred and issued
to Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire equity interests in all
members of the Group as part of the Reorganisation.

(iii) Reserves

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to
wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group
are required to allocate certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Board of Directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of liquidation
and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be
capitalised as issued capital.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)
(e) (Deficit)/reserves (continued)

(III) Reserves (continued)

Specific reserve — maintenance and production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required
to transfer an amount to specific reserve for the maintenance
and production funds and other related expenditures based on
coal production volume and revenue of shipping business. The
movement of specific reserve is as follows:

0ER - EERRE @

(e) (B#) #E @)

(iii) &1 ()
HIEFHE - HENEEES
BRIBEFRABEBEATE  ~EEARBERES
RAEE B - B —ERBERAZIRHGE
AlEEREEES UAREMEEAY - &
B REEIT

RMB’000

AREFTT

Balance at 1 January 2014 RZT—NF—H—B2#&R 274,742
Provision for the year FNEE 103,661
Utilisation for the year FANEA (70157)
Release of reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary R E — R B A R R AERBR R (59,778)

Balance at 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 AZE—NFE+—-_A=+—HK

“E-hAF A HZER 248,468

Provision for the year FNEE 42,228

Utilisation for the year FREH (74,699)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-E—RE+-_A=+—H2Z&H 215,997

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(d).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the value of
employee services in respect of share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Option and Share Option as set out in Note 31.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continue)

(f)

(g

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from that of prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
included borrowings disclosed in Note 28, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, comprising share capital, perpetual subordinated
convertible securities, quasi-capital and deficit (2014: reserves), as
disclosed in Notes 25 and 30, respectively.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Dividends
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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31
(a)

(i)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option”) whereby an executive director of the
Company and 25 employees of the Group (the “Grantees”) were
granted the rights to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option is 8,400,000
shares which were granted on 12 June 2009 with the subscription
price of HKD2.52 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from the Listing Date and
the options are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
option in cash.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

N RERGHURGAERAVIRK
(a) BRDBIBEATIB AR REAT &)

RIFE—BRNR-_FZEAFA AT _HBEB
MERZR  ARARBERAFEER
Bl E ([BRAHBREANERE]) &
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(TFEBEA]) BERTRBEARRRMDOER -

BEBAAHAZEMBERERHNER
R ETERITTRITINRDBEA
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hEFEHAE EhARES —ZE=F "M
BRER N FHBEATE - AAFLEE
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(i) SRBREMERRRIFENT :

Number of Contractual

options Vesting conditions life of options

RBIRAER

BREHE SRR SRR

Options granted to the Grantees 8,400,000 30% on both of the first and second 10 years
—on 12 June 2009 anniversary of the Listing 104F

BT RRANBRE
- RZETNAFRAT=H

Date, 40% on the third
anniversary of the Listing Date
T EEEREBF

KB ZBFHR/30% -
FHHBRE=ZRFR4I0%
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31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Number of options

BREHE
Balance at Granted Balance at
Exercise 1 January duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2015 year 2015
R=Z-1fF R-ZB-1fF
—-HA—8 +=HA=+-H
AERAER R A e TEE i0Fes oS FRRH M ER
HKD ’000 ’000 ’000
BT T4 T4 T4
Executive director
HTES
Mr. Ma Baofeng 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 1,200 = 1,200
SRELSE —TTNF —ZTNFERATZBZE
~NATZH “Z-NEFRAT—H
Employees
E&
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 10,800 = 10,800
k] —EThF —ETAEAATZRE
AATZH —Z-NFRA+T—H
12,000 = 12,000
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31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS N RERFEEURGH/ERNNTR @

(CONTINUED)

(a) BXR L HRERBRESTS @

(i) BERABRERNBRENSE R NEF
HITEEWNT @)
HE-_ET-—NE+_A=1+—BIFE

(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows: (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Number of options
BREZA
Effect for
appointment
Balance at and Lapse Balance at
Exercise TJanuary resignationof ~ duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2014 directors year 2014
RZZ-mE RIZE-ME
-A-B EFZfiR TZA=+-A
SN KRS f1es 1% Mg BENPE FAXX B e
HKD ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 000
A i i) i) Fh
Executive directors
HITES
Ms. Liu Xiaomei* 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 1,200 (1,200) = =
Ell e it = ik “EENERATZAE
~ATZH T-NERAT-H
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 = 1,200 = 1,200
SRETE ZTTNE EENERATZAE
~ATZH “E-NERAT-H
Employees
|
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 12,400 = (1,600) 10,800
ok EENE “EENERATZRE
~ATZH “E-NERAT-A
13,600 - (1,600) 12,000
*  Ms. Liu Xiaomei resigned as an executive direc_tor on 9 October * g%*éémﬁﬁ%iﬁj_;tg%i%%ﬁg
2014. Mr. Ma Baofeng was appointed as an executive director of the =1 ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ\%:

Company on 9 October 2014.
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31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS N REREEURGH/ERNNTR w0

(CONTINUED)
(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BEXRAMRERNBRESTE o)
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Pre- (i) BUX AR ER BRENEE R NEF

IPO Share Options are as follows: (continued)

During the year, no share option (2014: Nil) under the Pre-IPO Share
Option was exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one share for every one existing
share held by the shareholders whose names are on the register
of members on 10 October 2011 (Note 30(b)(vii)), the exercise
price of the Pre-IPO Share Options was adjusted from HKD2.52 to
HKD1.26, and the number of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options
as at 10 October 2011 was adjusted from 7,800,000 to 15,600,000
thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.5 years (2014:
4.5 years). The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December 2015 was HKD1.26 (2014:
HKD1.26) per share.
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AFE+-_A=+—H BRTEERIAFRE
ERBRENMEFITEER1.268 T
(ZZ—ME : 1.26/7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

31

(a)
(iii)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
Fair value of Pre-IPO Share Options and assumptions

The fair value of service received in return for Pre-IPO Share Options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of Pre-IPO Share
Options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted is measured based on the Binomial Model. The
contractual life of the Pre-IPO Share Options is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the Binomial Model.

3N BEREEURGAERNSTR @

(a) BRAHREAERESSE ()

(i BEXAHEEBERENA AEREE
BB XA 5 RS R RE AR T Uk ER A AR 7%
NRE - DR2RBREEREE RN ARESHE
RN AAREE - OREB X AFRZEESH
BRI AR ERE B IER AR
2o BANLFAREMBRRIENS MR A
BT E AE R - IRAITTEATEHE 4
AZIAABER o

Granted on

12 June 2009

R-ZBAE

AA+=H

&

Fair value at grant date REFE BN A RE HKD7,650,0007 7T
Share price before bonus issue AR EEATRIIRME HKD2.527% 7T
Exercise price before bonus issue AARFITRIATEE HKD2.527% 7T
Expected volatility TEHR IR 56%
Expected option life e HA B A A EARR 10 years104F
Expected dividend yield rate TEHAAR B a 1.560%
Risk-free interest rate 3 f A = 3.029%

The expected volatility and expected dividend yield rate are based
on the average volatilities and dividend yield rates in the similar
industry. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written
resolutions passed on 12 June 2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise
of all options which then has been granted and have yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of the
shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. Unless approved by the shareholders, no
option may be granted to any person which if exercised in full would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to be granted to
such person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding share
option) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
new grant exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of such new grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period as determined by the board of directors of the
Company, which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

3N BESEEURNARERNTR @

(b) fB AR =T &

RIFE—BRR-_FZEAFAA+T_HBB
MEMRZER © ARFINDRA —ABE
AtEl ([REMREsTE ) -

ATERBEBRES S RN R B EMEBE
B ERERE AR ARITENMEBR&
REMARETHNRRRNEE - EERE
BRAEBRT - ERIBBETKEHT
PR 4828 HI30% © BRIFEIRILAE - BRI -
HEBTEBEEZERNEIAZHRHBREE A
(BfEZ%E) pi12@ ABEERZA TR LK
BT ROCBERE (BERETE  2SEER
RITEBBRE) & SEHERTRHTH
TR EEBEENELBEREERA 2D
BITRNDER1% - MITFRZALELE
Pt -

R A M RT &I IR T A i A i AT AR IR B A RE AT
SEFRARREE BTN HMEAERTT
&£ - MARRBEA XL R RES NSEB10
ﬂz o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(b)

(CONTINUED)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

3N BEREEURGAERNSTR @

(b) BRAERTE (o)
() BREBRENGRREENT

Number of Contractual life

options Vesting conditions of options

BREHE =B IR BB IR Y & A HABR

Options granted to a director and employees 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years

-on 17 January 2012 on both of the first and 104
BT —2EEREENERE second anniversary
—-RZT—=F—A++tH of the grant date
REEH B EIR40% -
RELBEEEE K&
E_BFHRI0%

Options granted to directors and employees 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years

- on 30 April 2015 on both of the first and 104F
RTEZMESNERE second anniversary
—-RZE—RAFWHA=+H of the grant date
PR B #R40%

RRHBESESE K
FRFH A%
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31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Share

Options Scheme are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

3N BESEEURNARERNTR @

(b) BRAETE (@)
(i) BRENHE RMEFETEBNT :

BE-Z-HF+T-A=+T-HLEE

Outstanding number of options

WATEEREHR
Balance at Granted Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1January during the duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2015 year year 2015
WoE-1F RZE-1F
-A-H tZA=1-H
ERAEH RiLAH it T8 ftaeh ERRiL EREY f373
HKD '000 '000 '000 '000
AR i i i T
Executive director
yiTEs
Mr. Ma Baofeng 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 2,964 = = 2,964
SRELE Bk “B-E-ATtAZE
—-AttA ZE-25-A15A
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFHIES
Mr. Huang Guosheng 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 = 500 = 500
EEBLE “E5-nF “Z-RFMA=TAZE
MA=+A “ECREMAZTAR
Mr. Lau Sikyuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 = 500 = 500
HREE -1 ZE-RENA=TRE
MA=tA “E-REMAZTAA
Mr. Xing Zhiying 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 o 29 April 2025 0.485 = 500 = 500
MEREE “E-nF “Z-RFMA=TAZE
MA=+A “ECREMAZTAA
2,964 1,500 - 4,464
Employees
-]
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 5,929 = = 5,929
| _FC “F_F-ATtRE
—AttH “2-F-A15A
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 - 156,000 (24,000) 132,000
Fi “5-nF “E3-nFMAZTAZE
mA=+H “ECREMAZTAA
5,929 156,000 (24,000) 137929
8,893 157,500 (24,000) 142,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Share
Options Scheme are as follows: (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3N BEREEURGAERNSTR @

(b) HERRRESTEI ()
(i) BB AEST IS B RN 1TEE M

T @)
HE—_Z—NE+-_A=+—HILEE

QOutstanding number of options

HATTRERES A
Lapsed Balance at
Effect duringthe 31 December
Balance at for Lapsed Balance at
Exercise TJanuary  appointment duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price . ZOE of director year " 201;
NS . R~
-f-g  EEERE t=A=t-8
ER AR RiLAH 1 3] ik 7% EREN By E
HKD 000 000 000 000
AT T T T T
Executive director
yirEs
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 = 2,964 = 2,964
BB i “T-_5-ATtRE
—A+tA “ERICE-ATRH
Employees
1]
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 14,822 (2,964) (5,929) 5,929
g . S “F-_§-AttRE
—At+tA “ERICE-ATRH
14,822 = (5,929) 8,893

*  Mr. Ma Baofeng was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 9 October 2014.

At 31 December 2015, the number of the exercisable shares under
the Share Option Scheme was 62,293,000 (2014: 8,893,000) shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 157,500,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme were granted (2014: Nil).
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no share
option under the Share Option Scheme was exercised.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 9.1 years (31 December 2014:
7.0 years). The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2015 was HKDO0.55 (2014:
HKD1.50) per share.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

*

SREEENR_FZ-HNF+ANBEREZER
RRRPITES -

R-ZZE—FRE+-_A=+—0 - BRESZ
HRNA/TEAD EE R 562,293,000 (=
LT — P4 : 8,893,0000%) °

RBE-_E—AFE+_-_A=+—BILEE"
BE I AEETEI18 T~ B 157,500,00017 B A% 7 &
R (ZE—WF 8\ - REBEE-T—1F
MN—ZT-—ME+-_A=+—HIFE  BR
RERTEITE T R AR T T -

R-BE—RE+-A=+—BHARTENE
B 2 NEFHFRHBEOBRAIINFE (=ZF
—OF : 7.0F) RZZTE—RHFF+-_HA=+
—HRARITENBREZ IEFHTEES
0.55/8 7 (ZZ—P4F : 1.50/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of service received in return for share options granted
is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted.
The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on the Binomial Lattice Model. The contractual
life of the share options is used as an input into this model.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

3N BESEEURNARERNTR @

(b) R E B (1)

(iii) B IR FE R D B R BRE
BEEBEREMBERORBEALE " THRR
EREBRENAAETZE - IR B
MG AR EIRE — B SRR A YE,
2 o BIER S L HEAR Jh AR = BT A /YA
ER o IBAMTEMTEHE WA B BhEER

Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the Binomial Al e
Lattice Model.

Granted on Granted on
17 January 2012 30 April 2015
R=F-—=F R-B—FE
—A+tH mMA=+H
Eiges] =
Fair value at grant date REH BN ARE HKD11,642,00087C  HKD29,443,1417% 7T
Share price A (B HKD1.50/8 7T HKDO0.485/8 7T
Exercise price TEE HKD1.507 7T HKDO.485/% 7T
Expected volatility TEHRR iR 55.309% 53.89%
Expected option life T HA A A% i AR 10 years4F 10 years#F
Expected dividend yield rate TEHEAAR B E 211% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 3 A = 1.507% 1.638%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of three
comparable companies. The expected dividend yield rate is based
on the average dividend of three comparable companies. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

EHPRIB VAR =Ml B R AR E LK
BEH - FHREMEERTDIENR=AAT &L
RAFRNFHREGH - FEBERRED
AR EGBFTENEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MRIRRMEE
31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

32

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In addition to the disposal of Zhuhai Port as disclosed in Note 10,
the Group disposed two subsidiaries, together with two associates,
during the year.

On 10 April 2015, the Group agreed to sell its entire equity interest
in Gerrards Agents, an indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company,
at an aggregate consideration of HKD1,995,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,662,000) to an independent third party. The
completion date of the disposal was on 22 July 2015. Gerrards
Agents was dormant.

On 30 December 2015, the Group has agreed to sell its entire
equity interest in Bright Rock, an indirectly owned subsidiary of the
Company, together with two associates, Tiaro Coal and Paragon
Coal, at an aggregate consideration of AUD20,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB95,000) to another independent third party. The
completion date of the disposal was on 30 December 2015. The
principal activity of Bright Rock was investment holding of these
two associates.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

2 HEMBELHF

U EE 1 OFF IR B S BT 50 « AR M
POEL & R B A Rl R AR S A F -

RZZT—RAFHA+H XEEREN
4 X 81,995,000 T (KWHHERARK
1,662,0007T) # E M Gerrards Agents (&
AEFAEHEENHRBEAR) 2 BRELE
FT—R2BUFE=F - ZHEFEHNTKA
Hﬂ/‘t’j_ﬁ—ﬁitﬂ:—i—:ﬁ ° Gerrards
AgentsE B (=&

RZZBE-—RF+A=1+H  XEEREN
# R B20,000R 7T (KIHEE R AE%95,000
7C) B E M Bright Rock (AR RIMEERH
MELNR]) B2 EPARME - ERMEEE QT
Tiaro CoalXParagon Coal * HE&EFHS—%
BUE=F  c ZHEZENTKARR-Z
—RF+=HA=+H ° Bright RocklyEE %
BREEEREMEEE AR -
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

32 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuep) 32 HEMB AR @
The carrying amounts of assets/(liabilities) of Zhuhai Port, Gerrards BB « Gerrards Agents&Bright Rock
Agents and Bright Rock as at the respective disposal completion REAHERKABMZEE (AF) BEE
date are as follows: W
Gerrards
Zhuhai Port Agents Bright Rock Total
Gerrards
HREH Agents Bright Rock @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
i3 ARBTR ARBTR ARETTR ARETR
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 15 1727154 - - 172754
Lease prepayments REBMER 17 106,122 - - 106,122
Interests in associates i NG g 18 - - - -
Inventories F& 277 - - 277
Trade receivables FWE 5% 6,743 - - 6,743
Prepayments and other receivables RS E NG 76,065 100 - 76,165
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEN 4,683 2 - 4,685
Trade payables ERE SRR (2,942) = = (2,942)
Other payables Hi AR (370,216) (32) - (370,248)
Borrowings =t (1,083,210) - - (1,083,210)
Net assets BEFE 464,676 70 - 464,746
Non-controlling interest SRR (185,870) - - (185,870)
Cumulative exchange differences RELERBARMNEE
recognised in respect of the net REEANZTELZH
assets of the disposed subsidiary HERENIEZRR
reclassified from equity to profit or loss = (16) 4,454 4,438
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZME /(BE) 70,834 1,608 (4,359) 68,083
Direct expenses in relation to the disposal BEHESANERRY 360 - - 360
Total cash consideration REAEAE 350,000 1,662 95 351,757
Net cash inflow arising on disposals HEEENBRERALE
Cash consideration AeRE 350,000 1,662 9 351,757
Direct expenses paid BRERAY (360) = = (360)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of WEZRERASZEN (4,683) 2) = (4,685)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEENBRETALE 344,957 1,660 95 346,712
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e EmEME
31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

32

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTinueD)

On 16 December 2014, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement (the “Agreement”) with a company (the “Purchaser”).
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group agreed to sell its entire
equity interest of Ruifeng Coal, an indirect owned subsidiary of the
Company, at an aggregate consideration of RMB80,000,000 to the
Purchaser (the “Disposal”). The completion date of the Disposal
was on 29 December 2014 (the “Completion Date”). Ruifeng Coal is
principally engaged in coal mining and operation in the PRC. Details
of the Disposal are included in the Company’s announcements and
notices dated on 16 December 2014.

The carrying amounts of assets/(liabilities) of Ruifeng Coal as at the
Completion Date are as follows:

32 HEMB QT w
MR_TE—NEFE+-_A+"8 AEHHE—
Maa (TBF FIiRmEERE ([#Zi5
&) c BEZWE  ~AEBREZREREA
R #¥80,000,000 T A B /7 i & AR 7 fE #
MBARIMEKEEBHRAEZR ([HESE
B])  HEZEHBEZEKAHA-ZT—NF+
—A-t+hB ((ZRBEHE)) -HRAKEEES
REBRYEREREERERE - BRAHEEE
ZHBECHNARATBRA-S—NE+ =
B+ Bz RERBE -

BESEN KA AR,/ (AE) EAE
mF

Notes RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 15 322,791
Coal mining rights B IR BRI 16 294,361
Inventories FE 4
Trade receivables FEWE SR 289,814
Prepayments and other receivables TR BR 3N R E A FE Y BR 5K 16,656
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 8
Trade payables FERTE SRR (17,296)
Other payables HAth FET AR FR (401,063)
Tax payable FERFIIR (177.792)
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIRIEZRER 29 (12,400)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIEA & 19(b) (41,064)
Net assets of Ruifeng Coal at HEREERER AR EEFE
the Completion Date 274,019
Non-controlling interest FEFE R = (31,434)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR 2 EiE 6 (162,585)
Total cash consideration ReRERHE 80,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Ruifeng Coal ~ HERREEEL ZHELRAFEE
Cash consideration RERE 80,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERIBCEEY (8)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Ruifeng Coal ~HERREEEL 2B LR AFEE 79,992
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33 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks with respect to general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
approximately RMB5,934,404,000 (2014: RMB8,000,352,000).
In addition, as at 31 December 2015, the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company have executed corporate guarantee
to certain banks with respect to general banking facilities granted
to an associate of approximately RMB635,690,000 (2014: Nil) as
disclosed in Note 37(c).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and its
transaction price was nil (2014: nil).

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and currency
risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bill
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customer operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At the reporting date,
877% (2014: 49.7%) of the net trade and bill receivables was due
from the five largest customers within the coal business segment.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 33, the Group does not provide any other
guarantee which would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31
December 2015.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

33U BERELN

MW_EBE—RE+-A=1+—8 ARAFHE
ETAAGIMBRARERZ —RIRITEEYD
AR¥E5,934,404,0007C (ZFE—NF : AR
#8,000,352,0007T) M#&E TRITEHEL A R)E
1R o BEAN - AN EES7 ()P EE - M =T —
AFE+-_A=+—H ' ' KRAREAXAQRGET
EBARM — gL &R —RIBITE
B4 A R 635,690,000t (=& — P4 -
) A5 TIRITRIL QA AIER o

AAB Y RAERERTAELTZRA > A
AENABEELANSEFERERSERAT
(ZZ—POF : &) o
ctREREERAAE
AEBEELFEKBRETEEHEE R
ﬁi FEREERR - AEBEEENZE
& A N 7N 52 B 38 54 S5 AL % P B A RO B S
J"LM*EEIB@ﬁ&If@IJ C FFBER T o

EERE
AEBZEERBRTIZREEKEZRARN
FEM T - EEEEEEETZEEK » IR
BREZEERERERR - AREHMAE
KRB R — fﬁi%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%}f‘ ETTIEER
fily o

AEEARNEERREIEXEREFMNE
%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%gﬁﬁﬂ%%l*Wm-
Eitt - FBRAEEFERFF®EREAR
SR FEHIREERKRES - RBREH - &
WE SRR REREEFEFRST. 7% (ZF
—POF : 49.7%) THERB IR F=EHEBAEK
EEHE HREERREBSEREEL
BREERGEMERARAZS - BRIIEESS
Frat B iR R E—RFE+_A=+
—H  AEERAEEZEERRKRITERE
AT HABIELR o
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR G EREREERAAE @
VALUES (conTinuED)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) "BV E SR

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, but the borrowings are subject to
approval by the parent company’s management. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with any lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the reporting date of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

AEBAENEEEREQTREERESE
B ERERARSEARERERE K&
BeBRAETHERERPESEFRREE
SRR R FE 2B - AREREL M+ 2 59
RemEhAAZTESHMERE CEEARE
TRE  NENEREHZRHESHER

TRAVNAEBZIENTECRABNRER
ZRBEHRNMA - AAIHEANIZAHR
FRBASRE (BREMEBHNERFTEZH
B W AEE  BlimERERZH
K5 E) URAKEA AN K2 RE B

|
=T B o
Rl 7

As at 31 December 2015
R-E-R&+-A=t-H
Total Withinone  More than one
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  yearand less More than
amount cash flow ondemand than five years five years
E3iig: —FRg —F#&
REE  RERAE REX BREFR REQE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Current g
Trade and bill payables e S WOAES 1,088,711 1,088,711 1,088,711 - -
Financial liabilities included in other payables ~ stARMENERz SRA R 2,228,575 2,228,575 2,228,575 - -
Borrowings EA 3,302,997 3,544,655 3,544,655 - -
6,620,283 6,861,941 6,861,941 - -
Non-current #E5
Financial liabilities included in other payables ~ stARMERERz SRARE 82,195 101,000 = 80,800 20,200
Borrowings fBE 2,602,325 2,777,251 - 2,777,251 -
2,684,520 2,878,251 - 2,858,051 20,200
9,304,803 9,740,192 6,861,941 2,858,051 20,200
Maximum exposure of financial HBERENKARR
guarantee contracts (Note 33) (PHzE33) 635,690 667,411 332,748 334,663 -
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (conTinuED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
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e MR M

bEMmEAMREER A

(b) RENE SRR (=

As at 31 December 2014
RZE-mF+-A=1-H

N LB )

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

Total Withinone  More than one
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  yearand less More than
amount cash flow ondemand  than five years five years
AR —FR% —Fi&
REE Renmeds BEX BREA RENE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Current ]
Trade and bill payables EREZERRERNER 1,048,131 1048131 1,048,131 - -
Financial liabilities included in other payables T AEMENEZz 2 RER 2,209,129 2,209,129 2,209,129 - -
Borrowings & 4,734,105 4,996,444 4,996,444 = =
7,991,365 8,253,704 8,253,704 = =
Non-current FHH
Financial liabilities included in other payables T AEMENEHz2HEE 95,782 21,200 - 80,800 40,400
Borrowings i 2,917796 3,465,589 - 2,649,402 816,187
3,013,578 3,586,789 = 2,730,202 856,587
11,004,943 11,840,493 8,253,704 2,730,202 856,587

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming under
the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer

credit losses.

LA HEREN 2B AEERIBEDE
EREFREBITHMAKERENZESEE

R (HERZHFHIREZESR) -
SR ZEH  AEERSRAMRE

R’ TJ% E
BIR

BREMRIE - A - LB BRF S
FHRBERRELRRNAEEMAE - M
e i ER R AV AT RE M B BUR S 8 F 75 P JE 42

RS USRS

AL IR EEE B RIBENE
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e MRIRRMEE
31 December 2015 ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H

34

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As 31 December 2015, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB6,228,989,000 (2014: RMB5,278,281,000).
As disclosed in Note 28, certain borrowings amounted to
RMB197,102,000 were overdue and carried interest at 6.72% to
12.96% per annum and additional penalty interest at 3.36% to
6.48% per annum. In addition, subsequent to 31 December 2015
and up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, further borrowings of RMB297,540,000 were overdue.
The liquidity of the Group is dependent on its ability to implement
the measures to improve the Group’s immediate liquidity and cash
flows as described in Note 1.2(c).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below:

34 SRERE

ERALE@m

(b) RBEL R (#)

R_ZE—RF+-_A=+—8  A&EBZR
BEEFBEANARES,228,989,0007T (=
T — P F: AR#5278,281,0007T) ° #
KT RE28FTHE BR - AR 197,102,000t 2
ETHEECBE  WIXK6.72%E12.96%H)
E%Mﬂ 8 [ 3%3.36% £ 6.48%H) F K| K5t

BRI o AN RZE—RFE+ZA=
T—HREBEREERNGETBHRRMERD -
RHABARY297,540,000tEED &
HH REBZ2ESMEEXRBAITH M T

2(c )ﬁerZ%E.mﬂﬁz%ﬁ%lﬂﬂﬁvéﬁm
‘i&fﬁimﬁ}] BE

(c) FIRERR

AEBZAMEXRERFERBEE AT ZF|
T&lxzﬂ EAZEERAREED RIAR

imbﬂrﬂ /A//'ETEﬂTH o EIRE
Eoin 2 RE BN REREHNH T ()

Interest rate profile (i) FIZRER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's TRFINAEEZEERRE B 2 A=
borrowings at the reporting date: A
2015 2014
“E-hF T
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest value interest value
rate BREE rate REAE
per annum RMB’000 per annum RMB’000
BRFR=E ARBTR BR R ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEREEE :
Borrowings BE 4.35%-12.96% 2,760,496 | 4.80%-8.70% 3,867,099
Less: pledged deposits A EEBER N/A
TER - | 0.35%-3.00% (400,914)
2,760,496 3,466,185
Variable rate borrowings: AENREE
Borrowings fEE 4.35%-7.28% 3,144,826 | 2.09%-9.00% 3,784,802
Total net borrowings BESTE 5,905,322 7,250,987
Net fixed rate borrowings as a BN REEFEE
percentage of total net borrowings BEGFENAIL 46.75% 47.80%
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c)
(i)

(d)

VALUES (conTinueD)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in the interest rates of variable rate borrowings prevailing
at the reporting date, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax by approximately
RMB31,448,000 (2014: RMB35,139,000) and increase/decrease
the Group's accumulated losses by approximately RMB31,448,000
(2014: RMB35,139,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax and consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to re-measure those
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the reporting
date. The impact on the Group’s loss after tax and consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2014.

Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through
the People’s Bank of China or other institutions authorised to
buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through purchases giving rise to cash balances that are
denominated in USD, while all the other operations of the Group
are mainly transacted in RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the
RMB value of purchase costs of commodities that are denominated
in foreign currencies.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

G ERMEREER A AME @

(c) FlZEEAM 2
(i) BRE DM

BREMEHEMESRIZIIE - RFE5HEA]
i ] pe 1“‘%%J$if§%;‘ftﬂ/?l%1oof%
o GhrteEyEE—_T—RAF+_AZ=1+
—RAIEFEZAEBREGEEBREM, B
#)ANR¥31,448,000 (ZE2—4F : AR
#35,139,0007T) RALE Rt EEE N,
A # AR #E31,448,0007T (ZF — P04 -
AE#35,139,0007T) °

J:LESUEE AT RS B 2 BR T 1& B 18 B4R
BRERARELEZNREE - EPKRENE
“@JE’\#&t‘:EE%«?E IEFHEAE%?*TE
@Eﬁﬁ’\]??%ﬁﬁﬁifﬁ%ﬁlﬂ $'§@Z%\ﬁ
‘REBEBEGEER T ERARNXE e
f'JgiﬁmﬁJﬁTt%ﬁf’Eﬁﬁﬁ ZAM Ty
PREREE — T — U AR RI M) B AEETT o

(d) shiEs B

ARBAT B BABAINE - FIEPRAR
HEINER 5 WA B EARRITHEM
EREREEINENEBETT - SNER S PR
RANEXRSHEARRITABRNER - %
FEXREZHHEKETE - ARENIMNER R
TE2REBEEHARTIENR S ER -
ﬁ$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ1ﬁ%%%$%¥u/\§ﬁ%tﬁ§

5 o EXBHFZEUIINEAEBRRBRA
E’J/\E%f‘f@
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

34

(d)

(e)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

G EREREERAAE @

(d) FhEER B ()

TRETAESERBEARNBRAEEXE

B MENEEXZERNT
BHiHE - AMELNHERRER -

BE B LASME

2015 2014

—E-hfF —E—F

Denominated Denominated

inUSD inUSD

PETEHE PAETTEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents RERBCEEY 436 33

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the foreign exchange risk associated with
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities will not be significant.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The Group classifies all its financial assets and financial liabilities
as loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35 EAEE

At each reporting date, capital commitments outstanding not REEREBE - WRREGRE P BRRELD

provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: BEMNRBITEARENT :
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZE—OFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment Yz - E M 48,176 281,312
Interests in an associate (Note (i) R A w2 s () = 6,509
48,176 287,821

(i) At 31 December 2014, Bright Rock was committed to invest in Paragon
Coal which amounted to approximately AUD1,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB6,509,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in Bright Rock, which held interest in Paragon
Coal (Note 32) and accordingly there is no commitment as at 31
December 2015.

RZZE—MF+ZA=1+—H ARFZH
B2 F]IBright Rock%n’{i&é{EAParaéon Coal
Zﬁ%ﬁzﬁ 31 300 Q00T (HERDARY
0,

REE_T-—AF+_A=1+—HIFE "
& H:' ’%Bnght RockZ & & f& #% @

Bright RockiF& Paragon CoalzfEas (s

32) A R—F—RE+_A=1—8%

36 OPERATING LEASES 36 K&EHE
(a) Leases as lessee (a) EEAFEBEAZRE

The Group leases properties and vessels under non-cancellable
operating lease agreement. The lease terms are between one to
eight years. The agreements do not include an extension option.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

AEBRBETAIMECLEHERZEEME
K - BN F—2N\F - ZEHHETE
TR -

AAHHELLHER THARRKEHEENK

operating leases are as follows: BT
2015 2014
—EB-HF| ZF0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Within 1 year —FR 14,017 16,593
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FREREFN 1,509 12,299
15,526 28,892
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e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

36 OPERATING LEASES (conTiNuED)
(b) Leases as lessor

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable

36 KEHE m)
(b) EAHBAZEE

AR HHEE S HER TR R FERERIK

operating leases are as follows: AR -
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZE—POFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Within 1 year —F R 9,169 40,252
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA - 7136
9,169 47,388

The Group leases vessels under various agreements which
terminate between one to three months. The agreements do not
include an extension option.
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain transactions with related parties
of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, the executive director and his
close family members; (i) Mr. Xu Da, the executive director and his
close family members; (i) Mr. Ma Baofeng, the executive director;
(iv) Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), a
company controlled by Mr. Xu; (v) Qinhuangdao Development Zone
Yuanfan Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yuanfan Technology”), a company
controlled by Mr. Xu Da and Qinfa Industry; and (vi) Tongmei Qinfa,
an associate. Mr. Xu is the shareholder of Qinfa Industry and
Fortune Pearl, the ultimate controlling party of the Group.

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the above
related parties for the year are as follows:

(a) Recurring transactions

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

IVBEEFIRS

AEBEAKENFESETETRS &
ROMTESFRELEREEREE : (V1T
ESRERENEEREE  (IMTEES
RIEZLE : (VRELERFNARNREERH
EXSEERAR ([RBEX]) © (WiRESL
ERRBEXRENNRESRERENBH
BRAR (TEWRBE]) - Rvi)itERF R
KRB - FEERRBERXRAKERRE
BALRIBR -

AREBFRE FRBETNRXZHIBAOT

(a) BREMRS
Transaction amount for the
years ended 31 December

Payable outstanding
as at 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE W+=A=+-8
ZR5EE Z R BT ERR
2015 2014 2015 2014
-1 | ZTWF| =B-Rf| ZT-QmF
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT AR¥T T ARETT
Sales of coal to HERKT
- Tongmei Qinfa - RKRE 270,085 615,452 - -
Purchase of coal from REERRE
- Tongmei Qinfa - ARRE 4,317 362,929 433,545 252,007
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e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—8H

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTinueD)

(b) Guarantees provided by related parties

IVTEERIRSZ @

(b) BAET R HER

2015 2014
—E-FRE —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFT
(Restated)
(s &)
Guarantees of bill payables and borrowings BREEREEZFBRHED
provided by Mr. Xu and his close family members ENEEREEER 7,279,380 5,852,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by REREREERBBRHD
Mr. Xu Da and his close family members EEER 7,046,160 4,852,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by BRIE L ERENEEER
Mr. Ma Baofeng 370,000 200,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by FREERENEEER
Qinfa Industry 1,372,000 =
Guarantees of borrowings provided by RINEIIRENEEER
Yuanfan Technology 152,000 =
(c) Guarantees provided to a related party (c) Rt F—BBAETHNER
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZT-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Guarantees given by the Group for banking AEEFRHZRE
facilities obtained by Tongmei Qinfa BISHIRITR AR EMNER 635,690 -
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31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTinuED) ITHEEFRZ @

(d) Key management personnel remuneration (d) AREEEALEHE
Key management personnel are those persons holding positions HAREEEATHEEEZXBEEZERBHRE
with authority and responsibility for planning, directing and BEREHAKREEHNENREEZAL
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, (BREARRES) HARBTEEALTZME
including the directors of the Company. Key management personnel LU

remuneration are as follows:

2015 2014

—E-a% —F-lF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARMEET T

Directors’ fee 2ok 3,316 3,153
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REMREVET 6,721 12,675
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes BRIRERIET B K 77 57
Discretionary bonuses 1B TEAL - 420
Share-based payments VAR (9 B ETE Y 3K 4,433 161
14,547 16,466
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38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED 38 [ RERAKYETET

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective in these consolidated

financial statements.

2 %A

HAER o

AE1E 5T B PR B 15

ZRER B EERA T 5 B MR B I R 5 F AR
B IS IRR L2 7 7] MRS R BIFR A 15 4R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTFIBHR 2%

BN E T BEER

IAS 1 Amendments Disclosure Initiatives 1January 2016
SRRt ERE 15 (BRI A) WERETE —ZT-R"¥—-A—H

IAS 16 and IAS 38
Amendments

R R ERIE 1698 R BB e R 2ER
£385% (7T A)

IAS 16 and IAS 41 Amendments
R e AR5 1655 MBI & R 4R
EVALACCHYN)

IAS 27 Amendments
B stERE 2757 (IBFTAN)

IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 Amendments

B PR B 75 ¥R 5 22 B 28 1 098 [
R s RIS 285 (1BETAN)

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and

IAS 28 Amendments
B PR B Fs R 5 22 RS2 1058

B PR B 745 R 5 2 R 281 255 %
Bl 5t ERIZE 2858 (BFTA)

IFRS 11 Amendments

B B S ERFE 115 (BRI A)

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

ARSI E REHTTEN D R

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

BE EENEY

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
B mR A ERE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

KREENAEBZNRARALOERANEEREIEA

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

KREER : BRGEAKRIIINE

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

WA EXBRENERTRIENA
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1 January 2016

—T—R"F—H—H

1 January 2016
—T—AF—A—H

1January 2016
—E—RE—H—H

To be determined*

/= =l
S

1 January 2016



38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED

(CONTINUED)
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38 i= ARBRAN BT E] R AR AE FT Bl PR B 5

= ZE Bl ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTFIBHR 2%

RIS HBEER

IFRS 14** Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1January 2016
B R B 795 o R RII 2B 1 45 %> EERIERA —E—R"¥—A—H

Amendments to IFRSs
RO RS LR 2B R]

IAS 7 Amendments

PR s 2 RIS 79

IAS 12 Amendments

e RIS 258 (1BETAN)

IFRS 9 (2014)
RE SR ERIFE R (Z T —MF)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

1 January 2016

BB SREEN T ——FE T —UFHEH —ET—XRF—H—H

ZEEE

Disclosure Initiatives

KTt E

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses

AR ERERRLERAEE

Financial Instruments
S@MIT A

1January 2017
—E—+F—-H—H

1January 2017

—2—+F—H—H

1January 2018
- N\&—H—H

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1January 2018
I3 B B 745 R 5 MR RN 55 1 5957 BFE AW —E-N\F—H—H
IFRS 16 Leases 1January 2019
RO RS AR 21658 HE —E-NF—A—H
*  On 17 December 2015, the IASB issued “Effective Date of Amendments @ E@g%ﬁ_ﬁgﬂ‘:ﬁ ‘f‘i‘t A BB & 5+ A4E B
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28” This update defers the effective date of the Z B & 3 o [ BRI 75 3 5 A2 Al 81 05% K% B
amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or BRE T ERE 28%&2('55T%$7ﬂ HER| - &
its Associate or Joint Venture” that the IASB issued in September 2014. HICE TER G RAZB R __T—NF
Early application of these amendments continues to be permitted. NABMGE [REESEBENR LA EDRE
Faﬁﬁ'j’éf?é%ﬁk&é/l ERIAZ ERAH - 12

PRAZEETRESIIRGT -
** |FRS 14 applies to first annual IFRS financial statements for a period o BIERB B A AL AR PN T — N —
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to A—BZzBARARNENERM RS
the Group. HRIFEMBREER - AR EETEA -
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38

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED

(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements except for the following:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have an impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. Further information about the impact will
be available nearer the implementation date of the standard.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the
impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED

(CONTINUED)
IFRS 16 Leases

Under IFRS 16 a lessee recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is treated similarly to other
non-financial assets and depreciated accordingly and the liability
accrues interest. This will typically produce a front-loaded expense
profile (whereas operating leases under IAS 17 would typically have
had straight-line expenses) as an assumed linear depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and the decreasing interest on the liability
will lead to an overall decrease of expense over the reporting period.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate
implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use their incremental
borrowing rate.

As with IFRS 16’s predecessor, IAS 17, lessors classify leases as
operating or finance in nature. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset. Otherwise a lease is classified
as an operating lease.

For finance leases a lessor recognises finance income over the
lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment. A lessor recognises operating
lease payments as income on a straight-line basis or, if more
representative of the pattern in which benefit from use of the
underlying asset is diminished, another systematic basis.

e I ERR M

31 December 2015 —Z—H4¥+=-A=+—H

38 i=) AR BRAN AR RT I A4S BT Bl PR B 75

A @)

H =~

BRI R ELEAE165% HE
RIFBEBR P BHRE LR E165 - HERRS
BRERZEENEERE GREREE
RO IE S R E E 2 77 AR M AR
E BEELNE  HESELNHHEAZ
XHEN (BERSFERF175R T 2 EEH
E-REEESRXHL) FRBEEEREEN
BRRERTE - MAEND 2HE K EHER
CLiDPAF T3 AN X

HERBVFREMARNZHEREF
B HWAEETHERSNER  BlRZ
EXRUW - M BEXRTRANSETE - AEHE
ANEERERFHEERN X -

FRBEBRVBREENF 162G EERES
AHERIZE175E - HEEAREESBAKLEMR
EAREME - MHERKEREEM G EE
B2 @AB D Al be B O SR - A0 SR

BHE AR HESBERKLEHE -
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38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED

(CONTINUED)
IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
Recognition exemptions

Instead of applying the recognition requirements of IFRS 16
described above, a lessee may elect to account for lease payments
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis for the following two types of leases:

- leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no
purchase options - this election is made by class of underlying

asset; and

- leases where the underlying asset has a low value when new
(such as personal computers or small items of office furniture)
— this election can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
IFRS 16 in the future may affect amounts reported and related
disclosure. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until the Group performs a detail

review.

39 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Fortune Pearl, which is

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
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40 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

Reclassification for the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2014:

(a) For the purpose of presenting the discontinued operation,
the comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the related notes have been restated as if the
Port Business had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period.

(b) Reversal of impairment on trade receivables of RMB9,011,000
were reclassified from administrative expenses to other
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41 RAREE
(a) Outstanding litigations (a) RRFR

Up to the date of this report, the following legal proceedings are still
outstanding.

(i) Litigation claims relating to the performance of the
contract execution between Liaoning Zhonghuitong
Asset Management Limited (“Zhonghuitong”) and
Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy

On 29 November 2012, Xinglong Coal acquired certain coal
mining machineries at a consideration of RMB94,708,000.
On 27 June 2013, Xinglong Coal settled the purchase of
machineries by way of bill payables of RMB94,708,000 which
was guaranteed by Zhonghuitong. Xinglong Coal eventually
repaid the bill payables of RMB59,021,000 and failed to honor
its remaining obligation of RMB35,687,000. As a guarantor,
Zhonghuitong settled the principal and interest of the bill
payables of RMB35,687,000 on behalf of Xinglong Coal. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, Zhonghuitong applied
to the Liaoning Shenyang Municipal Intermediate People’s
Court to order Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy to repay
RMB35,687,000, late penalty charges of RMB3,788,000 and
interest payment of RMB6,888,000, totalling RMB46,363,000,
in addition to the court litigation costs. The interest payment
was calculated on the basis of 0.05% per day from 28 June
2014 until the settlement.

Up to the date of this report, the case has not yet been
concluded. The principal and interest of RMB35,687,000
have already been recognised as payables to Zhounghuitong
included in other payables in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015. As a result
of the foregoing, the Group further recognised the late
penalty charges of RMB3,788,000 and interest charges of
RMB6,888,000 in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuep) 41 FAREE mw
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued) (a) ARIREFED ()
(i) Litigation claims relating to damage of properties with (i) EEENREBMEBXRNRARER

local villagers

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were several
litigation claims initiated by the local villagers against the
Group relating to compensation for properties damage of
RMB9,210,000. Up to the date of this report, the litigations
are still in progress. As a result of the foregoing, the Group
recognised the provision for litigation of RMB9,210,000 in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

(iii) Litigation claims relating to unsettled property, plant

and equipment contract sums with several suppliers of
the Group

Up to the date of this report, there were several litigation
claims initiated by the suppliers against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of overdue trading debts
in relation to purchase of machineries with an aggregate
amount of RMB132,206,000 and the late penalty charges of
RMB6,605,000 and corresponding legal costs of RMB108,000.
Up to the date of this report, the litigations are still in progress.
An aggregate amount of RMB132,206,000 has already been
recognised as payables to these suppliers included in other
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015. As a result of the foregoing, the
Group further recognised the late penalty charges and interest
charges of RMB6,605,000 and corresponding legal costs of
RMB108,000 in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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41 ZIAREE @
(a) RRFFFA (@)
(VSR ERWBEREEREN ZRERE

41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuep)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)
(iv) Litigation claims related to unsettled considerations

in relation to the acquisition of coal mining rights of
Xinglong Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were litigation
claims initiated by the previous owners (the “Previous Owners”)
of Xinglong Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine against the
Group to demand immediate repayment of the unsettled
considerations with an aggregate amount of RMB51,338,000
in relation to the acquisitions of coal mining rights of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine in 2013. Pursuant to the
judgments of the Shanxi Shouzhou Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court dated 20 April 2015 and 10 December 2015, the
Group was ordered to pay the Previous Owners the unsettled
consideration of RMB51,338,000, the late penalty charges
and interest charges of RMB3,000,000 and corresponding
legal costs of RMB350,000. On 23 July 2015 and 4 January
2016, the Group lodged appeal applications to the Shanxi
Provincial Higher People’s Court. Up to the date of this
report, the litigations are still in progress. The amount of
RMB51,338,000 has already been recognised as payables to
the Previous Owners in other payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015. As a
result of the foregoing, the Group further recognised the late
penalty charges and interest charges of RMB3,000,000 and
corresponding legal costs of RMB350,000 in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT

Bx REER R ENRARR

HE2_ZET—AF+-_A=+—HBItH
B EREBAEZREBENRNEE A
([ATEEA]) SAEBIRHFRBAR -
DRVHNENEER - —=FKEH
EHEER D EREBEREREEEORSR
B4 H AR%51,338,0007T ° B4 1L
EWPMNTmARRARERBBAE-Z—H
FWMA-_+HEHE-_ZE—RHFE+_-_A+H
RHR - REBWHSRAEE AN
KRR EARKS1,338,0007C « H4HE
T & B A RES3,000,0007T & 48 &
ERERAREK350,000L RZE—
AFF+A-Z+=BF=_Z—XF— AN
A AEERLUAESRARZERED
FHF-BEEZARERE  FRMDEETT
B o % AR¥S51,338,000tE R =
E—RAF+_A=1+—HNEETHEK
MERPEREENAES ARIE » W&
AHMEMAER - AR LRE - A%
EREE—_ZT—RFE+-_A=+—81
FEMNGREMBRERTE—TEREN
& MF B ARE3,000,0007T & AERE
EEE R ARE350,0007T °



41
(a)

225

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinueD)
Outstanding litigations (continued)

(v) Litigation claims relating to default of repayment of
bank borrowings

The Group was in default of its repayment on certain bank
borrowings with principal and accrued interest amounting
to RMB148,882,000 and RMB328,000 respectively (the
“Defaulted Bank Borrowings”). On 15 December 2015, a bank
filed a lawsuit in Zhuhai Municipal Intermediate People’s Court
against the Group to demand immediate repayment of the
Defaulted Bank Borrowings. Up to the date of this report, the
litigation is still in progress and the Group is currently in the
process of negotiating with the bank to renew or roll over the
Defaulted Bank Borrowings. The principal of RMB148,882,000
and interest charges of RMB328,000 have already been
recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses included in
other payables respectively in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015.

As at the reporting date, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the provision for the above litigation is sufficient in the
consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December
2015.

Other than the disclosure of above, as at the end of the reporting
period, the Group was not involved in any other material litigation
or arbitration. As far as the Group was aware, the Group had no
other material litigation or claim which was pending or threatened
against the Group. As at 31 December 2015, the Group was the
defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to
certain litigations arising from the ordinary course of business.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities, litigations or
other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained at present, but the
management of the Group believes that any possible legal liability
which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases will not have any
material impact on the financial position of the Group.

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued the
guarantees to certain banks in respect of borrowings made by
Tongmei Qinfa, an associate of the Group. Under the guarantee, the
Group that is a party to the guarantee are jointly and severally liable
for any of the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa from those banks.

As at 31 December 2015, the directors of the Company do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the Group
under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group at
31 December 2015 under the guarantees issued is a portion of the
outstanding amount of the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa amounting
to RMB635,690,000 (2014: Nil).
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42 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in Note 1.2(c)(v) in relation to proposed disposal
of HK Qinfa International Group, the following is the significant

event after the reporting period.

Subsequent to year end, the condition of the agreement between
the Company and the Creditor dated 25 December 2015 detailed
in Note 30(d) has been fulfilled and completion of the Agreement
took place on 6 January 2016, whereby a total of 215,000,000 new
Shares were allotted and issued to the Creditor at the subscription

price of approximately HKD0.272 per Share.
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43 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43 AR B B AR R =
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the EBARARRBERRNTBRRROER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: W
2015 2014
—B-AF —E—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z®E - 658,807
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H At pE U R 5K 4 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE ] 141,533 534,049
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 16 1
141,553 534,050
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H AT ER K (99,861) (5,212)
Net current assets REBEEFHE 41,692 528,838
Net assets EEFE 41,692 1,187,645
Capital and reserves B R 4
Share capital LN 193,275 176,531
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities K AR P AT HRR B 5 156,931 156,931
Quasi-capital HER 45,771 -
(Deficit)/reserves (B4t /i (354,285) 854,183
Total equity RSB 41,692 1187645
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of R-ZE—RNEMA-_+HhBEFRHZEEER
China Qinfa Group Limited on 29 April 2016. ERARESSH £ RIFRET)E -
Xu Jihua Wang Jianfei
HhEHE FRIF
Director Director
EZE EZE

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HEFFIR



228

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RARMEE

31 December 2015 —Z—HR%E+—A=+—H

43 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43 AR TN BMR R @
COMPANY (conTinueD)
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of RARMER RO REVRERNE B F
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below: BEEIIAT
Perpetual
subordinated Share-based
Share Share Quasi-  convertible  Contributed Exchange  compensation  Accumulated
capital premium capital  securities surplus reserve reserve losses Total
XARR HRHAER

Bx K R WERER  MABR  ENBR  SMORR  ROER At
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RVBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD
ARETT  ARETT  ARNIR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARETR

Notes Note30b)  Note30(e)i)  Note30(d)  Note30(c) Note 30(e)(v) ~ Note 30(e)lv)
(iF3 BErsom)  HEES0E)) HEE30) HEE30) FEs0@)  BHEES0E))
1January 2014 R=E-RF-A-A 176,531 307378 = 156,931 658,719 (64,272) 14120 (47458) 1,201,949
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2ERA /(BB
for the year Az
Loss for the year EREE = = = = = = = (12.276) (12,276)
Other comprehensive income Hp2ERA
Foreign currency translation differences INEEEER = = = = = 217 = - 217
Total other comprehensive income H2ERAES = = = - - 217 - - w7
Total comprehensive income/(oss) 2EMA/(BR) &8 - - - - - 2117 - (12,276) (10159)
Transactions with equity HERREAZRS
shareholders,recorded directly in equity RERERIIR
Distribution relating to convertible securities ~ EFERESBENHDE 30(0) - (4628) - - - - - - (4,628)
Equity-settled share-hased payments FEREDIRDA
AT = = = = = = 483 = 483
Share options lapsed BRiERE = = = - - - (6,334) 6,334 -
Total transactions with equity shareholders ~ EEFRAAZRFEE = (4,628) = = = = (5,851) 6,334 (6145)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-E-ME+-A=t-A
k=%-1%-A-A 176,531 302,750% = 156,931 668,719* (62,155 8,269% (B3,400)F 1,187,645
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2EUA /(BB
for the year ag
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (1273378 (1273376)
Other comprehensive income EfREHA
Foreign currency translation differences IEhEEE = = - - - 31475 - - 31475
Total other comprehensive income H2ERAER = - - - - 31475 - - 31475
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EHN/(BR) €8 - - - - - 31475 - (1273378)  (1.241.901)
Transactions with equity shareholders, HERHEALRZ
recorded directly in equity RERERIIE
Distribution relating to comvertible securities ~ EFAREFERNIR 30(c) = (4728) = = = = - (4728)
Shares issued in respect of placing FRERANRG 16,744 2,372 - - - - - - 40116
Payables capital as quasi-capital {ERBAANENESELR 300) = - Uyl - - - - - M
Equity-settled share-based payments REREENRD
BERMNR = - = = - - 14789 - 14789
Share options lapsed BRMERE = = = = = = (1,341) 1341 =
Total transactions with equity shareholders ~ EEREEACR5LE 16,744 18,644 47N - - - 13,448 1341 95,948
31 Decerber 2015 RoE-Ft=p=t-8 1875 30 71 1661 679 (0R0F oI (1354 416w
*  These reserves accounts comprise the deficit of RMB354,285,000 % EZ%E%T%@%F’:‘$@_@W%%%§WZJE%&
(2014: reserve of RMB854,183,000) in the statement of financial AR#354,285,0007T (ZT— M4 : #FEA
position of the Company. R#854,183,0007T) °

China Qinfa Group Limited HEI &% EBEER AT



www.qginfagroup.com



	Cover

	Contents

	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights

	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis

	Business Outlook

	Directors’ Report
	Profile of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Corporate Social Responsibility
	Financial Statement

	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Back Cover



